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“EZNFTHEF SREBRER2N FELERX
g REXRET BEFEREREBEN  MLE
FEEE HEZRBTABLEANE FHAEEE
FRARAEFBRBRNRINEEY -

BRUSREBNHNE ZES5NRRFE BEEALQT
FEFLZERREBNYE EBREGSKZ T
REME HARURHBERARBRNORE BEE
FRMRBEERENNREFYEBBISRNNZE
BRKERFMISEEE  RBERFIBESEE  SIABA
CERMBELRNRBUERRI  WEFRAERLY
BEANAEE UEERER - ESNRETHMAK
% SAKENPBEREVRE  HETAEHX
SEZAEBERBRAOHE -

AEEER—FHBUENREEERF EETERZ
TEBERITE ERRB - E_TTN\EE AKEY
BAREANBERERENNBY RIREEBIRSGE
FMe & WMARBREEARERARBRIZE - LEE
TEXHERETHEREBRENLE  HAKEN
REBFNAMELEMA TR ©

REBEESEERSASRBHEZMB AR - BAI%EE
EFIEEE  WETBRRA - RRERRBENTE
MRPIMEREEUR R RERNTOFEERE
B-AEHENELZEBY B TIRZRE BEA
REAEBEERBE 2B -

The latter half of 2008 had witnessed the full swing of the
financial tsunami on a global scale. Hong Kong’s economy was
hard hit, and the surging unemployment rate also adversely
affected the entertainment and consumer capabilities. In times
of economic depression, piracy activities in the film industry
are prone to aggravate. Thus, in this fiscal year, the Group
intends to prudently maintain quality cinematic production.

At present, the drastic impact of the global financial tsunami
is still in force. Fortunately, the Group has the foresight to
prepare well in advance, including diversification in investment
opportunities, especially in businesses that generate stable
revenue contribution. Thus, investments in Macau’'s tourism,
entertainment and gaming industries have become some of the
Group’s new business initiatives to increase earnings. Apart
from acquiring Kingsway Hotel in Macau, renamed as Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong, Macau and introducing strategic shareholders
with extensive and solid experiences in gaming industries,
the Group has also entered into the lucrative business of
gaming promotion business, and initiated a series of financing
activities timely to further strengthen the Group’s financial
foundation, and this hopefully would steer the Group clear of
the hard times amidst the global financial tsunami.

The Group, in the capacity of regional entertainment
investment, has seen the achievements of strategic diversity
in business developments. In the fiscal year of 2008, about
90 percent of the Group’s earnings were generated from
investments in the gaming and entertainment industries
and the profits accrued from their business operations. The
generation of stable income has thus been sustained and
expanded considerably in capacity. This has, in turn, reduced
the proportion of investment in film production and distribution,
and has made significant and desirable contributions to the
Group with better earnings in business operations.

Hotel Lan Kwai Fong, Macau is a subsidiary owned by
the Group. The Hotel is currently under renovation, to be
transformed into a luxurious and exquisite featured hotel.
Business is thus temporarily suspended. Since Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong, Macau is situated in the most prosperous business area
along the new coastline of Macau’s commerce and tourism
zone, this geographical advantage is expected to bring in
sustainable financial benefits as soon as the Hotel’s renovation
project is completed.
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Investments Limitedsd] Y BE B # - LB RE
330,567,000/ 7T ' HEAKEMEX AL LTRE 21
EXZHEBEERERARREIEERERR LA (HE
ERB)RREZHERBERBERAR CRE) 2 28
MeEEXSER_ZEENEL A+ HETZRERR
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% Ji #it % Chairman’s Statement

Furthermore, SJM-Investimentos Limitada, the biggest
gaming and entertainment corporation in Macau, has already
undertaken to lease part of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong, Macau for
casino with no less than 50 mass market gaming tables and a
slot machine entertainment centre. Apart from stable profits,
the lease agreement shall bring about mutual benevolence for
both corporations, and that a synergy effect is anticipated in
the Group’s discerning investment in the gaming promotion
campaign for lucrative returns in earnings.

Business ventures into Macau’s gaming and entertainment
industries enable the Group to better grasp the business
opportunities in Macau’s gaming market. In addition, the
revenue generated from the business itself outgrew the
guaranteed earnings originally expected of the Group.
Although the financial tsunami is in force, and more stringent
measures have been adopted on the mainland Chinese
tourists travelling to Macau, and have adversely affected the
gaming industry in the short-run, the Group is, nevertheless,
confident of the mid- and long-term economic growth in China
and in Macau. The Group believes that China’s economy
will take the lead to revive in the global financial tsunami,
and that restrictions on travelling to Macau by mainland
Chinese tourists are expected to be short-term measures.
Indeed, the gaming and entertainment industries will surely
thrive and prosper further with the enhancements in Macau’s
infrastructure developments.

On 13th May, 2008, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited,
a direct subsidiary wholly-owned by the Group, signed a
purchase agreement with Glenstone Investments Limited.
At a total amount of HK$330,567,000, two of the Group’s
investments listed in Hong Kong were sold to Glenstone,
including Riche Multi-Media Holdings Limited (now named
“China Star Investment Holdings Limited”) (henceforth “China
Star Investment”) and Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding Limited
(henceforth “Brilliant Arts”), together with their full equity
interests therein. This purchase agreement had already been
passed by voting during the special shareholders meeting
held on 11th July, 2008.
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MREXREAEENPEZEXETE  BEXREER
VEVESE VEEMTHEM BTHRTEY <
FHEEREZCRBIENGEEHRER EHAEEZLE
BAREEETAHRMEE - i ERRERERRE
BAR AKBERENREZRENFRAD S - Hit
EEHGHEMRLAZED  JRALAKESRENHE
EREEAGz e YEARBGSRIZBRESR  THEM
EEBEE HREBEZZTMREUNRAEE -KE
BEEZA-

AEERZZTEN\F+-ANBBERAM  ERLEHA
B SFE-REAEARG BEMREERHIEE
BRANAEE KHEREERHOSETLZRAEE &
71,064,486,0801% % & X 17 - & & 1~ 2> 744,400,000/
TTWRBEBEAREE SEN-—FERERG  UER
SRR EEBEITAR - BEZARBEERN REE
B URZZZNF_ATABRAEGRYE  REKE
EFUHARRRKEEUMAKEL B TEL—F-

HMEEZKBER AEENMBER BEVRE
EaXHZal BARE ZBRARBERAKXEHR
AEEEEYHCREER B ERBELEEREABF
B E -

To enhance cost effectiveness, the Group has already reduced
film productions and distributed films directly to the mainland
China channels, thus leading to the gradual diminishment
of the strategic function of China Star Investment as the
Group’s film distributor in China, and it has not generated
the synergized outcomes on the Group’s core businesses.
Since the performance of Brilliant Arts has not measured
well enough in stock prices, the Group has not obtained
adequate profit returns from Brilliant Arts. Consequently, the
directors believe that the selling of the equity interests of
these two companies provides the Group with the opportunity
to restructure its investment portfolio. In addition, the surplus
amount of immediate cash flow acquired in this transaction
shall become expenditures on routine business operations
and also the essential capital for new initiatives and potentials
in the subsequent diversified business investments and the
Group’s investments in general.

The Group made an announcement on 8th December, 2008
that, according to the open offer of 1,064,486,080 offer shares
on the basis of two offer shares for every one existing Share
held on the record date with the bonus issue on the basis of
three bonus shares for every one offer share taken up under
the open offer, at the price of HK$0.05 per offer share, to raise
the equity capital of not less than HK$44,400,000. The open
offer received very enthusiastic responses, and the open offer
had become unconditional on 19th February 2009, reflecting
the fact that investors had casted their vote of confidence
to the Group in raising capital to further expand lucrative
business initiatives.

The Group believes that further financial stability can be
achieved subsequent to capital raising. Together with the
strategic diversifications, the expansion of stable income and
business opportunities provides the Group with the competitive
edge to obtain a more privileged strategic position in face of
the financial tsunami.
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% Ji #it % Chairman’s Statement

During the past year, the Group succeeded in deploying
measures to optimize revenue, despite the hardships faced
by the cinematic productions in the local market, thereby
facilitating and furthering visible improvements in the
financial health of the Group. The Group was also able to
timely seize the business opportunities in the development
of Macau’s gaming and tourism industries for better strategic
diversification in business opportunities. Our colleagues are all
loyal and dedicated to the Group, and have always been very
progressive in exploring new income sources for the Group’s
long-term earnings. The Group shall also continue its prudent
practices in business policies, to better grasp business
opportunities so as to reduce the unnecessary risks in
investment to a minimum. The strife to gain lucrative business
profits is to reciprocate the benevolence of shareholders for
their years of support to the Group.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman
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Bt % Bl B8
REZFHESFH(EEATORERE BE-_ZTt
FH+_A=+-HLEEERAXRAMBHEBEED S
I AVERERFEEINTN - FBHR R IEEZE L
£ Exceptional Gain Profits Limited %Kingsway Hotel
Limited | — & °

HE-_ZZN\F+ A=+ BLFE AEFzE
EREEIMNI91%E £9227,747,0008 0L (Z T + F -
78,351,000 7T) ©

FEEREFELEER 2 RERFREEEF D HIL
#3121,695,0007% 7T 165,590,000/ 7T + M A F 2 K& &
BRFEEESD 5 /65910,000% T 103,807,000/
T REEEBNAEE T ZRN RS 0B K EBest Mind
International Inc. ([Best Mind ) & BBR%# 14 7R P E %
HIRS LB E MR -

BE_ZT/\F+-_A=-+HULEFE BEHBEARE
15 4 7 /90,604,000 Tt * ¥ % 4 5 1892,547,00078 7T
HE198%

i’ E
EEERREHRE_TT N\F+ A=+ —HLEFEZ
KEBEFFR000IBL(ZTTLF  8) - BRAQT
R-ZEZNFE A+ ARG ZRAEAR-_ZTZTA
FRAMBEY - AIFRMRE KB SR.0017%E T (BRA
B AR AEER0.02E T (BAEME) -

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Following the termination of the Proposed Disposal (defined
below), all corresponding results in the income statement
for the year ended 31st December 2007 were re-presented
to conform with the current year’'s presentation. Details are
disclosed in the section “Termination of the Proposed Disposal
of Exceptional Gain Profits Limited and Kingsway Hotel
Limited”.

For the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group’s turnover
increased by 191% to approximately HK$227,747,000 (2007:
HK$78,351,000).

Profit from operations and profit for the year amounted
to approximately HK$121,695,000 and HK$65,590,000
respectively as compared to loss from operations and loss for
the year of HK$65,910,000 and HK$103,807,000 respectively
for last year. The turnaround of the current year’s result was
mainly attributable to contribution from the sharing of profit
streams from investments in gaming and entertainment
business in Macau after the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Best Mind International Inc. (“Best Mind”).

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31st December 2008 was HK$90,604,000,
representing a 198% improvement over loss of HK$92,547,000
in the last year.

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.001 per
share (2007: nil) for the year ended 31st December 2008.
Assuming the capital reorganisation as announced by the
Company on 26th February 2009 will become effective on 4th
May 2009, the final dividend will be adjusted from HK$0.001
per share (before capital reorganisation) to HK$0.02 per share
(after capital reorganisation).
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EXKEE

SR P 203,327,000/ 7T 5(89% K B 18 % @
IREEZTE - 19,141,000 T 8% KB BEF HTEBH K
5,279,000/ 7T, 3(3% K B B 1E IR %5 K H A iR B A o

REE  REEB2 K TK M EBest MindZ100% %
AER ZATZEREBRMFERRLES —BEE
EXZE¥ N 2aa2—0cho Sociedade Unipessoal
Limitada ([ Ocho |) &% #] - Best Mind,z R 4 % 35 i
HASEEZEN ASECABVRBRLEESHY
203,327,000 T A BREFLE (ZUEXRS
ZHERAROchoz BEmEA AN) SR BIRE 2 &K
151,385,000/ 7T 1= H134% ©

REYRTERNS ERAFRETE(LERES
BY)RBzMR AEERTHERELMNENEE -
RZZENF EFRTHHEZEETER19,141,000%
T (ZZ T4 :58,970,00087T)  MESBEEAE
18455,000/% 7T (Z T T+ : )7 78,336,000 7T) ° &
EERLETZAREFRASGBRELEAEERE
100EBERIEZIMWA - EHMEEE TR F R
REERLEETERENR -BHE-_SEN\F+A
=T—BHIEFE mSHEERSHER 671,000 T -
% 5 [ 835,791,000/ 7T, 188% © AR EEFHH B
TE AEEHSIERNERETEB R RNBELS
FAEETREREUAREERER S NF+ A
=+ —BZEEAE 5 R #EREE13,646,0007 T &
9,760,000/ 7T °

BUSINESS REVIEW

Of the total turnover amount, HK$203,327,000 or 89%
was generated from gaming and entertainment business,
HK$19,141,000 or 8% was generated from film distribution
business, HK$5,279,000 or 3% was generated from production
services and other service income.

This year, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Best Mind, the profit
receiving company from Ocho Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada
(*Ocho”), one of the leading gaming junkets at one of the
VIP gaming rooms at the Grand Lisboa Casino in Macau.
The sound performance of Best Mind has exceeded our
expectation as the Group had shared revenue of approximately
HK$203,327,000 from the gaming and entertainment business,
a 34% higher than the guarantee profit of approximately
HK$151,385,000 for the same period as provided by Mr. Ng
Cheuk Fai, the guarantor in this acquisition transaction and the
beneficial owner in Ocho.

For the film distribution business, the Group had released
only 2 new films in the market in response to the weak
market condition of the entertainment industry in these
years, especially for the Chinese language films. In year
2008, turnover for film distribution division amounted to
HK$19,141,000 (2007: HK$58,970,000) and its segment results
amounted to loss of HK$455,000 (2007: profit of HK$8,336,000)
respectively. The decrease in turnover was mainly attributable
to partial income from sale of film rights of 100 titles in our film
library was recorded in the last year. The segment loss was
attributable to sales of certain old titles at lower prices during
the year. The marketing and distribution expenses for the year
ended 31st December 2008 was HK$671,000, representing a
88% decrease from HK$5,791,000 for the last corresponding
year. In response to the weak film market, the Group had
reassessed the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
allocated to film distribution business and the carrying value of
film rights at 31st December 2008 and recognised impairment
of HK$13,646,000 and HK$9,760,000 respectively.
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For the geographical segments, turnover for Hong Kong
segment amounted to HK$17,330,000 or 8% of the total
turnover as compared to HK$62,366,000 or 80% of total
turnover in the last year. Segment results amounted to
HK$5,040,000 as compared to HK$14,029,000 in the last year.
The decrease in turnover and segment profit by the Hong
Kong segment was mainly attributable to partial income from
sale of film rights of 100 titles in our film library was recorded
in the last year.

Turnover for Macau segment amounted to HK$203,327,000
or 89% of the total turnover as compared to HK$14,046,000
or 18% of total turnover in the last year. Segment results
amounted to HK$203,327,000 as compared to HK$9,474,000 in
the last year. This year’s revenue mainly represented revenue
derived from sharing of profit streams from investments in
gaming and entertainment business in Macau. Turnover for
Macau segment for the year 2007 mainly represented provision
of hotel services by Kingsway Hotel Limited (“KHL”) which
ceased business in June 2007 and is now under renovation.
Therefore, KHL does not contribute any revenue during the
year.

For the year ended 31st December 2008, administrative
expenses (net of amortisation of leasehold land and
depreciation on property, plant and equipment) amounted
to HK$77,330,000, a 50% increase from HK$51,585,000 as
compared to the last corresponding year. The increase was
mainly attributable to an impairment on amount due from
associates of HK$25,179,000 for the year.

Finance costs for the year ended 31st December 2008
amounted to HK$31,522,000, an 146% increase from
HK$12,827,000 as compared to the last corresponding year.
The substantial increase in finance costs was attributable to
the issue of an aggregate principal amount of HK$384,000,000
unsecured convertible notes (“Convertible Notes”) as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of Best Mind. In
accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39 issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
interest expenses of HK$13,729,000 for the Convertible Notes
were calculated using the prevailing market interest rate of
similar instruments of 7.75% per annum, instead of the actual
coupon rate of 5% per annum.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2008, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$2,605,167,000 and a net current assets
of HK$132,755,000,
(2007: 1.6). The Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$138,145,000 (2007: HK$203,837,000,
of which HK$181,102,000 classified as assets held for
As at 31st December 2008,
borrowings of HK$696,683,000 comprising a bank overdraft
of HK$174,826,000, a bank mortgage loan of HK$8,467,000,
a secured bank term loan of HK$375,000,000 and an
outstanding convertible notes with liabilities component of
HK$138,390,000. The bank mortgage loan was secured by
the Group’s investment properties with carrying value of
HK$40,880,000,
Kong Prime Lending Rate per annum and repayable by 61

representing a current ratio of 1.3

sale). the Group had total

interest bearing at 2.5% below the Hong

monthly instalments. The bank overdraft facility and the term
loan were secured by the Group’s leasehold land, building and
construction in progress with carrying value of approximately
HK$991,034,000 (2007: HK$794,813,000, classified as
assets held for sale). The term loan was repayable by 18
equal consecutive quarterly installments of HK$25,000,000
each commencing from the 9th month after the date of the
first loan drawdown. The overdraft facility was repayable on
demand and reviewed annually by the bank. The outstanding
convertible notes were unsecured, interest bearing at coupon
rate of 5% per annum and will matured on 17th May 2012.
The convertible notes carry the right to convert into shares
of the Company at an adjusted conversion price of HK$3.0
per share as of 31st December 2008. As at 31st December
2008, KHL, a subsidiary of the Company had banking facilities
amounting to HK$575,000,000 which were utilised to the extent
of HK$549,826,000. The Group’s gearing remained reasonable
during the year with total debts of HK$696,683,000 against
shareholders’ funds of HK$1,418,711,000. This represents
a gearing ratio, calculated in the basis of the Group’s total
borrowings over shareholders’ fund of 49%.

As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Macau
Patacas and United States Dollars, the exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates was considered to be minimal and no
hedging activity was considered necessary. As at 31st
December 2008, the Group had no contingent liability.
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On 11th December 2007, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent and had conditionally
agreed to place on a fully underwritten basis an aggregate
1,400,000,000 new shares to independent investors at a price
of HK$0.12 per share. 1,400,000,000 new shares was issued
on 29th February 2008 under the general mandate granted to
the directors of the Company at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 24th January 2008. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$163,500,000 was used for the acquisition of
Best Mind.

On 18th March 2008, the Company had issued 236,333,333
new shares at a price of HK$0.3 per share as part of the
consideration upon completion for the acquisition of Best
Mind.

On 9th May 2008, the Company completed a capital
reorganisation comprising (i) share consolidation that every
10 issued and unissued shares be consolidated into 1
consolidated share of the Company; (ii) capital reduction that
the nominal value of all issued and unissued consolidated
shares be reduced from HK$0.50 each to HK$0.05 each;
and (iii) share premium cancellation that the entire amount
of HK$1,356,449,856.32 in the share premium account of the
Company as at 31st December 2007 be cancelled and credit
to the contributed surplus account of the Company, a sum of
approximately HK$864,665,000 in the contributed surplus of
the Company be applied to set off against the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 31st December 2006.

On 1st December 2008, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place on a fully underwritten
basis an aggregate 88,000,000 new shares to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.102 per share. 88,000,000 new
shares was issued on 23rd December 2008 under the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2008. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$8,800,000 was intended to
be used for the Subscription (defined below).
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On 4th December 2008, the Company announced that China
Star Production Services Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
with Hong Kong Movie City Company Limited to dispose a
number of system/unit used for post production process to the
final cut of films for a total consideration of HK$11,200,000.
This disposal constituted a discloseable transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules. This disposal has not yet
completed as at 31st December 2008 and the assets to be
disposed was classified as assets held for sale accordingly.

On 8th December 2008, the Company announced that it
proposed to subscribe the zero coupon convertible notes
in principal amount of HK$60 million to be issued by Golife
Concepts Holdings Limited (“Golife”) in five tranches of HK$12
million each due on the tenth anniversary of the date of issue
for such tranche (“Subscription”) and to be convertible into
shares of Golife at an initial conversion price of HK$0.05
per share of Golife. The Subscription was approved by the
shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company on
23rd January 2009. On 29th January 2009, Golife demanded
subscription of HK$60 million convertible notes and the
Company subscripted the HK$60 million convertible notes at
the same date.

At the same date, the Company also announced that
1,064,486,080 offer shares at a subscription price of HK$0.05
each on the basis of two offer shares for every shares held
on 23rd January 2009 with bonus issue on the basis of three
bonus shares for every one offer share taken up under the
open offer of the Company. The estimated net proceeds of
not less than approximately HK$42,000,000 was intended to
be used for the Subscription. The offer shares and the bonus
shares were issued on 26th February 2009.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the authorised share
capital of the Company increased from HK$100,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each to
HK$500,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.05 each on 29th January 2009.

On 26th February 2009, the board of directors of the Company
announced that the Company intended to put forward to the
shareholders of the Company for their approval a proposal
involving capital reorganisation of the Company comprising (i)
share consolidation that every 20 issued and unissued shares
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Best Mind International Inc.
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of HK$0.05 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of
HK$1.00 each of the Company (“Consolidated Share(s)”); (ii)
capital reduction that the issued share capital of the Company
be reduced through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of
the Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the issued
Consolidated Share such that the nominal value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01
and the credit arising from the reduction of issued share
capital of the Company be credited to the contributed surplus
account of the Company; and (iii) share subdivision that the
each of the authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of
HK$1.00 each be subdivided into 100 new shares of HK$0.01
each.

On 11th March 2009, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with China Star Investment, a company which
the directors of the Company have beneficial interest and its
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
China Star Investment agreed to grant an unsecured loan
facility of up to HK$200,000,000 (the “Loan Facility”) to the
Company. Details of the Loan Facility were set out in the
circular of China Star Investment dated 30th March 2009.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

Best Mind International Inc.

On 18th March 2008, the Company had completed the
acquisition of 100% issued share capital of Best Mind at an
aggregate consideration of HK$1,054,900,000 satisfied as to
HK$600,000,000 in cash, HK$384,000,000 by the issue of 5%
convertible notes at an initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per
share and the balance of HK$70,900,000 by the allotment and
issue of 236,333,333 shares credited as fully paid. Best Mind
becomes a subsidiary of the Group and starts to contribute
cash profit to the Group.
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Best Mind had entered into profit agreement with Ocho, a
Macau company engaged in the gaming promotion business,
to acquire 0.4% of the rolling turnover generated by Ocho and/
or its customers at one of the VIP gaming rooms operated by
Ocho at the Grand Lisboa Casino in Macau. Mr. Ng Cheuk
Fai, the guarantor in the acquisition agreement and the
beneficial owner in Ocho, has guaranteed to Best Mind that
the profit to be received by Best Mind shall not be less than
HK$264,000,000 and HK$120,000,000 during the period from
17th August 2007 to 31st December 2008 and the period from
1st January 2009 to 16th August 2009 respectively. During
the period from 18th March 2008 to 31st December 2008, the
Group had recorded revenue of HK$203,327,000 from the
gaming and entertainment related business.

MATERIAL DISPOSALS

Classical Statue Limited (“CSL”), China Star Investment
Holdings Limited and Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding
Limited

On 13th May 2008, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary,
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Glenstone Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company to dispose the
entire issued share capital of CSL for a cash consideration
of HK$330,567,000. CSL's major assets are the 58,360,612
shares of China Star Investment, representing 29.90% of
the issued share capital of China Star Investment at date of
agreement; 109,090,908 shares in Brilliant Arts, representing
approximately 8.68% of the issued share capital of Brilliant
Arts at date of agreement; and a convertible bond receivable
from Brilliant Arts with principal face value of HK$1,000,000.
The disposal had completed on 18th August 2008.

The Group recognised a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$14,897,000 upon completion of the disposal.
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TERMINATION OF THE PROPOSED DISPOSAL
OF EXCEPTIONAL GAIN PROFITS LIMITED
AND KINGSWAY HOTEL LIMITED

On 1st August 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
with Legend Rich Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Star Investment, an associate of the Group, and China Star
Investment relating to the sale of 100% of the issued share
capital of Exceptional Gain and the relevant sale loan for
an aggregate consideration of HK$447,000,000 (“Proposed
Disposal”). Exceptional Gain is an investment holding vehicle
which indirectly holds 50% interest in KHL. The principal asset
of KHL is Kingsway Hotel (renamed as Hotel Lan Kwai Fong,
Macau), a three star hotel with a total 383 guests rooms locate
in Macau. Kingsway Hotel ceased its operation from end of
June 2007 and is currently under renovation to becoming
a luxury boutique hotel. Following the completion of the
Proposed Disposal, KHL will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

The Proposed Disposal was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting of the Company
held on 24th October 2007 and was expected to complete
before end of year 2008. Accordingly, all the results of the
group headed by Exceptional Gain which comprised the hotel
operations were classified as discontinued operations for
the year ended 31st December 2007 and all its assets and
liabilities as at 31st December 2007 were classified as assets
and liabilities held for sale.

The Proposed Disposal was subsequently terminated on 23rd
December 2008. The completion of the Proposed Disposal had
hinged on the release of the security given by the Company
relating to KHL to be replaced security given by China Star
Investment. It did not appear that the relevant security would
be released anytime soon by the relevant bank and as such
the parties had determined not to keep their shareholders and
investors lingering on the status of the Proposed Disposal.

Following the termination of the Proposed Disposal, all
corresponding results for the year ended 31st December
2007 were re-presented to conform with the current year’s
presentation.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2008, the Group employed 93 staffs
(2007: 78 staffs). The directors believe that the quality of its
employees is the single most important factor in sustaining the
Group’s reputation and improving its profitability. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, medical schemes and discretionary
bonuses, options are awarded to certain staffs according to
the assessment of individual performance.

PROSPECT

During the year under review, the Group has successfully
diversified its business into the gaming and entertainment
business and broadens the Group’s revenue sources and
provides stable cash income to the Group. The performance
of this new business is encouraging. Despite the tightening of
travel restrictions for Mainland Chinese travelers to visit Macau
in late 2008 may have impact on Macau's gaming revenue
growth over the last few months, the performance of the
gaming and entertainment business remains strong and the
Group is optimistic in the potential growth of China and Macau
in the medium and long term growth. The Group believes that
travel restrictions would be short term and the Macau gaming
and entertainment business would growth internationally when
its infrastructural development becomes more matured. The
income stream of the Group will become more solid and stable
following the grand opening of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong, Macau
(formerly known as Kingsway Hotel) in around Mid 2009.

Besides, the Group will continue its strength in the production
of high quality films with stringent control and cautious
measure on capital investment and efficient management.

Looking ahead, the Group will streamline its business
operations which can enables the Group to operate in a
much cost effective manner, such as the disposal of CSL and
concentrate its resources on investments opportunity with
good potential of revenue growth and a positive impact on the
Group’s return in the long run.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 60, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany,
Vice Chairman of the Company. He has over 20 years of
experience in the entertainment and multimedia industries. He
was the founder of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’s”) and
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred
Years”), which produces films recommended by audiences
and distributors around the world. He is also a chairman and
executive director of another main board listed company in
Hong Kong and the vice-chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and
New Territories Motion Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr.
Heung was appointed as an executive director of the Company
in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 52, is the Vice Chairman
of the Company. She is the wife of Mr. Heung Wah Keung
and has over 15 years of experience in the entertainment and
multimedia industries. Ms. Chen has produced a number of
blockbuster films for Win's and One Hundred Years. She is also
an executive director of another main board listed company in
Hong Kong. In 2003, she was selected as one of 2003 Women
in Entertainment — International Power by The Hollywood
Reporter. Ms. Chen was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in 1996.

Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 41, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 10 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. Mr. Hung was appointed as a non-executive director in
1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is the sole proprietor
of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho was appointed as a non-executive
director in 1996.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Man, aged 46, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr Leung read law at the
University of East London before completing the Legal Practice
Course at the College of Law, York. After having admitted as
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 1999, he has
moved into the field of intellectual property. He is currently
an in-house solicitor at an international patent and trademark
agency firm. He has substantial experience in intellectual
property practice. Mr. Leung was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in 2007.

PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Cheuk Fai, aged 51, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Ng is well versed in the Macau gaming market
and is responsible for providing updated market information as
to the trend, the move as well as the performance of various
market practitioners in Macau. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
2008.

Ms. LI Yee Mei, aged 46, is the Talent and PR Controller of
the Group, has over 20 years of experience in entertainment
business and culture industry. Ms. Li joined the Group in 1996.

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 44, is the Manager-Legal
Administration Department of the Group. She has 15 years
of experience in the TV and film industry and with extensive
knowledge and expertise in all legal aspects relating to
production, distribution and copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang
joined the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 46, has served as the Group’s Film
Consultant since 2000. He has produced and directed films
and television drama series for more than 20 years, many of
which earned awards and were screened at international film
festivals. Mr. Wai's “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” were hugely popular television drama series attracting
over 100 million viewers when they were on air. His recent
feature films “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”, “Fat Choi
Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All Seasons”,
“Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics” and “Mad
Detective” have earned a total of over HK$200 million dollars.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 43, is the Financial
Controller, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of the Company. She graduated from the City Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy in 1990.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
responsible for ensuring high standards of corporate
governance are maintained and for accounting to
shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31st December 2008, except for the
following deviation:

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

The Board will periodically review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company with
a view to continuously improve the Company’s corporate
governance practices by assessing their effectiveness with
evolving standards to meet changing circumstances and
needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2008. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in
managing the Company’s affairs. Members of the Board
are expected to maximize the investment return and the
Company’s long-term value.

The Board comprises three executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. There is no relationship
between members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah
Keung, the Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany, the Vice Chairman of the Company. The names,
biographical details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 20 to
the annual report. In addition, one of the independent non-
executive directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is an independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment,
and that non-executive directors should be of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to various standing
committees of the Board including Finance Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and the Vice Chairman and the senior
management of the Company.
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The types of decisions which are reserved to be taken by the

Board include:

1.

matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director of the Company;

formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy or
entering into contracts involving significant capital
acquisition or expenditure;

financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial
statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under
the Listing Rules or other statutory requirements;

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities;

major appointments or removal to the Board, the
Vice Chairman, the Company’s chief financial officer,
company secretary and external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board and the authority delegated
to the Vice Chairman and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the Vice Chairman
and the senior management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practice Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk
management policy.
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During the year, eight full board meetings (of which four
were regular board meetings) were held and the individual
attendance of each director is set out below:

LEESEERAHY &

Attendance rate

D=
Heung Wah Keung

[FEEES
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

FEE
Li Yuk Sheung

HEE
Hung Cho Sing

&=

Ho Wai Chi, Paul

REX
Leung Hok Man
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which give a
true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
directors of the Company are also responsible for selecting
and applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting
policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the Company and
report that the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner after the end of the relevant period,
as laid down in the Listing Rules.

A statement by the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 42 and 43 to the annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman are separate and
not performed by the same individual to ensure that there is a
clear division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a
balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of
the executive directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and should
be subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
least once every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Bye-laws. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose
of this code provision. Each of the non-executive directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and
Mr. Leung Hok Man, and an executive director, namely Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee is principally responsible for formulating and
making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structuring for all remuneration of the directors of the
Company and the senior management of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the website of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year or as requested by the director responsible for human
resources function.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to
review the remuneration packages of the staff of the Group. All
the committee members attended the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr.
Leung Hok Man. Mr. Heung Wah Keung is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee shall make available to the public on
request.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is, having
regard to the independence and quality of nominees, to
make recommendations to the Board as to ensure that all
nominations are fair and transparent.
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The chair, in consultation with the person responsible for
human resources and the secretary of the Nomination
Committee, should be primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each Nomination Committee
meeting. The chair, with the assistance of the secretary, shall
ensure that all members shall receive sufficient information in a
timely manner to enable effective discussion at the Nomination
Committee meeting. The chair shall, with the assistance of the
person responsible for human resources, brief all members
on issues arising at each Nomination Committee meeting.
The secretary shall circulate the draft and final versions of the
minutes of meetings and reports of the Nomination Committee
to all members for comments and records within a reasonable
time after each meeting, subject to any legal or regulatory
restrictions restricting such circulation or the making of such
reports. The chair shall report in the forthcoming regular
board meeting any key decisions made and shall table before
the Board an index of meetings and issues discussed. The
secretary of the Nomination Committee shall record minutes
of all duly constituted meetings of the Nomination Committee.
In the selection process, the Nomination Committee shall
make reference to criteria including experience in the industry,
professional and education background and commitment in
respect of available time.

The re-election procedure set in the Company’s Bye-laws
provides that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing, Mr. Ho Wai
Chi, Paul and Mr. Leung Hok Man. Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 to the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the website
of the Company.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
to oversee the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures and the internal and external
audit functions. The Audit Committee annually assesses
the appointment of the external auditor, taking into account
the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the audit
service provided, the audit firm’s quality control procedures,
relationships between the external auditors and the Company,

and the independence of the external auditors.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out
below:

HESERE HER
Attendance rate

A=
Ho Wai Chi, Paul

HEE
Hung Cho Sing

REX

Leung Hok Man
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with senior management
and the Company’s external auditor their respective audit
findings, the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company, legal and regularly compliance, the internal controls,
risk management and financial reporting matters. During the
year, the Audit Committee has selected and recommended to
the Board for appointment of a professional firm to conduct an
annual review on the Company’s internal control system. The
Board agreed with the recommendation of the Audit Committee
and passed the resolution to appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited to conduct an annual review on the
Company'’s internal control system. To monitor the integrity of
the financial statements of the Company, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the 2008 interim report and 2008 annual report
before their submission to the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng to perform audit related services only. Audit fees
of approximately HK$610,000 was incurred for the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s internal
control system and to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained. The Board is responsible
for approving and reviewing internal control policy while
the responsibility of day-to-day management of operational
risks and implementation of mitigation measures lies with the
management. As the internal control system is designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile,
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure, and to achieve
the business objectives of the Group, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control system
are as follows:

° Segregation of duties and functions of the respective
operational departments of the Group

° Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

° Designing an effective accounting and information
system

° Controlling price-sensitive information

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes updating the internal control
manual when there are changes to business environment or
regulatory guidelines.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
as well as risk management. Besides the Group has also
engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Consultants Limited (the
“Consultant”) to conduct review and make recommendations
for the improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.
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The review by the Consultant is conducted with reference
to the principles outlined in Internal Control and Risk
Management — A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The assessment
covers the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. Any material non-compliance or failures in
internal controls maintained by the Group’s management and
relevant recommendations for improvements are reported to
the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant, the Audit
Committee and the Board considered that the key areas of the
Group’s internal control system are reasonably implemented
with room for improvement. The Group shall use its best
endeavour to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal control
system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

To enhance transparency, the Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and investors
through a variety of communication channels.

The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity to
communicate with all shareholders. The Company is also
committed to providing clear and full performance information
in its annual report, interim report and press releases. The
Company also maintains a website at www.chinastar.com.hk or
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinastar, where detailed information
of the Company’s business developments, operations, financial
and other information are posted.
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# 3 @ #t W Directors’ Report

The directors are pleased to submit their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31st December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, provision of
post-production services, investing in operations which receive
profit streams from the gaming promotion business and
property and hotel investment.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal
associate are set out in notes 51 and 52 to the financial
statements respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2008 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 44
to 175 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.001 per
share (2007: nil) for the year ended 31st December 2008.
Assuming the capital reorganisation as announced by the
Company on 26th February 2009 will become effective on 4th
May 2009, the final dividend will be adjusted from HK$0.001
per share (before capital reorganisation) to HK$0.02 per share
(after capital reorganisation).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2008 is set out on page 176.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17~ 18 and 19 to
the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 48. Movements during the year in the reserves of the
Company are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Distribution reserves of the Company amounted to
HK$21,986,000 as at 31st December 2008 (2007: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2008, turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 96% of the Group’s turnover and turnover
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 89% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31st December 2008, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 40% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any interests in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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Bx DIRECTORS

REERBEAFRTNEAREFEZESOT The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

BITESE: Executive directors:

BEST S Mr. Heung Wah Keung

PR AR I &2 & Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

FEREZT Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

BYkHITES: Independent non-executive directors:
HEEELE Mr. Hung Cho Sing

fARExRE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul

ZE S Mr. Leung Hok Man

BERATZ AEMAIEIA)E  MEKRSLE  FEBE  Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Heung

T+ ZEBLTRB2ETAEERNEETZ/RER  Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

FRELHREGR MHEERTBEBEEMT- and Mr. Leung Hok Man shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

BEAATZARME - BB IINTEEAETHESE  The term of office for each independent non-executive director
BRESERAL - is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

BANBRT RERFRSe FEREFT 2 EEWEE  No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
AAFKEEMMB ARSI FAATR —ERNRFE  general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
BCEEBRERIINMTUEIEZREEEL - any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one

year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
principles. These mainly relate to transactions entered into by
the Group in the ordinary course of business, negotiated on
normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis. Details
are set out in note 50 to the financial statements.

Two of these transactions also constitute “Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) On 23rd October 2007, KHL, a non wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement to grant a loan facility of up to
HK$196,000,000 to Most Famous Enterprises Limited,
a substantial shareholder of KHL. The transaction
is regarded as a connected transaction pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that
the transaction is not on normal commercial terms
as it is interest free, not in the ordinary course of the
Company'’s business but in the interests of the Company
and the independent shareholders of the Company as
a whole. The transaction was approved by independent
shareholders on 3rd December 2007 and amount of
HK$196,000,000 was drawn on the same date.

As at 31st December 2008, the outstanding loan
granted according to the loan agreement amounted to
HK$183,750,000.



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B E

E £ B AR 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

BRS (2

by RZZEZENFAA+=H KRAAZEZENE
A@|China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited£i
Glenstone Investments Limited ([ Glenstone]) 57
- EEWZE AR ERE330,567,000% 7T
& Classical Statue Limitedz 2 #02 # /7 A
([CSLHEEEIB]) » Glenstone IR AR Z E B
R UHRARLTERAEFC0% L e &AM
E AL ERERI0% Em AR RAT ZH
TESRFTERF) REXSHERH LMHA
FVATHL s BERS -

BUFNTEFREACSLHEFTADNR —REE
R NAARRZMERLFRARBAZAR
EBBIEPAL - CSLEEREERBURRN -
ZENFLAT-ARE AR _FENFNA
TABZERX -

EENERGN2ER

HRAABATEERTERRAFERLERRARL
T+ ACSLIEEEIEE HGlenstoneZ BEXBEA A WE
BRH)BMCSLEEEBEXNBEEZERAL -

BREMAREEN REERERFAEAER - L E
EHAARALEEFAMNBARSEIVEARAES
BEERIHEEEEAERZEREHN -

# 3 @ #t W Directors’ Report

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) On 13th May 2008, the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Glenstone Investments Limited (“Glenstone”) to dispose
the entire issued share capital of Classical Statue
Limited for a cash consideration of HK$330,567,000
(the “CSL Disposal”).
shareholder of the Company and is beneficially owned
as to 60% by Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and as to 40%
by Mr. Heung Wah Keung who are both the executive

Glenstone is a substantial

directors and substantial shareholders of the Company.
The transaction is regarded as a connected transaction
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that
the CSL Disposal is on normal commercial terms, in the
interest of the Company and not in the ordinary course
of the Company’s business. The CSL Disposal was
approved by independent shareholders on 11th July
2008 and had completed on 18th August 2008.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The CSL Disposal as set out in part (b) of Connected
Transactions constitutes a contract of significance of Mr.
Heung Wah Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
executive directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company as they are the beneficial owners of Glenstone, the
purchaser in the CSL Disposal.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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EEZzROREBR G ER

BREARTR(EFRBERAD TEHFLABEH) S
M FE 2 BRM ((ERBLM)) ME - RBECE™T
BUOAERENEFIINBRETAD (RETAI A
BAARRILEBHARSMABRDA ([BRM]) 2R
ERZEENFFT_A=+—H SEEREFZH
BALTHBERAADR REMBKERZ By REBRNE
=T

1. FAREBRER

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2008, the interests of the directors and
their associates in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register (“Register of Interests”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

EEnS

Name of director

1. Interests in ordinary shares of the Company
R
ERvil=g ] -
FERGEA Approximate
54 Number of percentage of
Capacity shares held interests held

DE=:Pi EnBEBEANRBZER 1,432,266,019* 29.90
Mr. Heung Wah Keung REEE 2w
(EE3)) Beneficial owner/interest of
(“Mr. Heung”) spouse/interest of controlled
corporation
BREA S &+ EnBEBEAN BBz ER/ 1,432,266,019* 29.90
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany REEE R
R S:=u)) Beneficial owner/interest of
(“Ms. Chen”) spouse/interest of controlled
corporation
FEBLT EnEEA 1 0.00
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung Beneficial owner
LR E RIFE - All interests stated above represent long positions.
IR & 487,713,070 ML £#5H ~ 28,544,949 These shares are held as to 487,713,070 shares by Mr.

B Rzt (£ 2B MB) A - 913,243,500 i R
12+ % & %A ZPorterstone Limited ([ Porterstone )
#A K&2,764,500/% FiGlenstone Investments Limited
2EHAEZZEERAT ([ E]) FE - Glenstone
Investments LimitedfPorterstone & A ¢ 4 7 Bl 4% # &
60% 240 % # ik

Heung, as to 28,544,949 shares by Ms. Chen (the spouse of
Mr. Heung), as to 913,243,500 shares by Porterstone Limited
(“Porterstone”) (a company wholly-owned by Ms. Chen) and
as to 2,764,500 shares by Dorest Company Limited (“Dorest”)
(a company wholly-owned by Glenstone Investments Limited
which is in turn controlled as to 60% by Porterstone and as to
40% by Mr. Heung).
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EECROLEBERORES (&) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2, BEAXARRGZER 2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company
RZZEENF+_A=+—H ARQRAEFHEAE As at 31st December 2008, the directors of the
ATAERAIRBARGRMD 2 BREREZ Company had interests in share options to subscribe for

shares in the Company granted as follows:

HATEZBRESR 2 HERHHA
Number of underlying shares comprised in the outstanding share options
R-BENF-FA-B R-SBNEHB(MZ0 R-BENE+CR=1-A Figcd -3
As at 01.01.2008 Adjustment during 2008 As at 31.12.2008 B AE
(Note d)
#RA #EA #RA
SRiTEE  EBEE HEEE HREE  BEER  EBER  HGREE Approximate
ESpt % Exercise price Direct  Deemed Direct  Deemed Direct ~ Deemed @9 percentage of
Name of director Exercisable period per share interest interest interest interest interest interest Total  interest held
(ic) (Hizta)
(Note ¢) (Note d)
B
HK$
mEE 28.03.2000 - 27.03.2010 15459 500,544 500,544 (450,490)  (450490) 50,064 50,054 100,108
Mr. Heung 02.06.2000 - 01.06.2010 7492 226,629 226,629 (203,966)  (203,966) 22,663 22,663 45,326
16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 15.81 120,205 120,205 (108,184)  (108,184) 12,021 12,021 24,042
17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 520 248,068 248068  (223262)  (223.262) 24,806 24,806 49612
1095446 1095446 (985902)  (985902) 109,544 109,544 219,088 0.00
(i) (lita) (Hita)
(Note a) (Note a) (Note a)
Fat 28.03.2000 - 27.03.2010 15459 500,544 500,544 (450,490)  (450.490) 50,064 50,054 100,108
Ms. Chen 02.06.2000 - 01.06.2010 7492 226,629 206629 (203,966)  (203,966) 22,663 22,663 45326
16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 15.81 120205 120205 (108,184)  (108184) 12021 12,021 24,042
17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 520 248,068 248068 (223,262)  (223,262) 24,806 24,806 49612
1095446 1095446  (985902)  (985902) 109,544 109,544 219,088 0.00
(ih) () (i)
(Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
FIRAT 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 15.81 1,204,574 - (1,084,117) - 120,457 - 120,457
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 520 2,480,677 - (2,232,609) - 248,068 - 248,068
3,685,251 - (3316,726) - 368,525 - 368,525 0.08
LHREERER - All interests stated above represent long positions.

i
rreoath

S
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company (Continued)
Notes:
a. These share options are held by Ms. Chen, the spouse

of Mr. Heung. Mr. Heung is therefore deemed to be

interested in these share options.

b. These share options are held by Mr. Heung. Ms. Chen
is therefore deemed to be interested in these share
options.

c. The exercisable period commenced on the date of

grant of the relevant share options.

d. The exercise prices and numbers of options which
remained outstanding during the year have been
adjusted due to completion of share consolidation

during the year.

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2008, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or the
spouse or children under 18 years of age of such director, to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, details
of movements in the share options to subscribe for shares of
HK$0.05 each in the Company granted under the share option
schemes and the fair value of the share options are set out in
note 49 to the financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2008, the register of substantial

shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above

in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had

an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the

Company:
FEEBROSE FEEREALAY
FEROBE Number of Approximate
% £ Number of underlying @it percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shares held Total interests held
Porterstone ERBEEA 913,243,500 - 913,243,500
Beneficial owner
REEE EE 2,764,500 - 2,764,500*
Interest of controlled
corporation
916,008,000 - 916,008,000 19.12
REF(REE]) REEB BE 23,633,3333 56,000,000 79,633,333* 14.96
Ng Cheuk Fai (“Mr Ng") Interest of controlled
corporation
SNERHERAF (ML) EREEA 44 - 44
Kingston Securities Limited Beneficial owner
(“Kingston”)
Hit - 2,938,545,212 2,938,545,212
Other
44 2,938,545,212 2,938,545,256 61.34
FRE REEE BE 44 2,938,545,212 2,938,545,256 61.34
Chu Yuet Wah Interest of controlled
corporation
BFo¥ REEE 44 2,938,545,212 2,938,545,256/ 61.34
Ma Siu Fong Interest of controlled
corporation
BEE it - 478,000,000 478,000,000 9.97
Au Tsui Yee, Maggie Other

LR ERTR -

All interests stated above represent long positions.
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FTERR(E
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* Itk %A% 15 i Glenstone Investments Limited® & #& 2
MEAFZERA - Glenstone Investments Limited8l
FPorterstone & z # B 60%E 7 ©

# IERNBRIEELERE 2 AFLucky State Group
Limited# 74 °

A HERNHHSNEFE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

* These shares are held by Dorest, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Glenstone Investments Limited which is in turn beneficially
owned as to 60% by Porterstone.

# These shares are held by Lucky State Group Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr Ng.

A These shares are held by Kingston.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2008.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2008.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 49 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 21 to 30 to the
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant subsequent events are set out in note
53 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th April 2009
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Hodgson Impey Cheng

31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 44 to 175 which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31st December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B E

E &

B B R &

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

¥ 5% ¥ B ) % Independent Auditors’ Report

Rz EE(E

AR EEB G AGMBEM 2B BRI ERELT
BERIE ZSEUBRKATETERRE  THREX
ETERTIE URZEE AV ERRECFEEAE
REBRBULIE A EWETE ©

BERSRPTREFUNERERSEAMBREMFTELR
BREEMZEBRERE - METEZREFIURNZEED 2 #
B SRFEARRFRERMEREAUBERRES
BEABRRAZER EFEZFARE  ZHHER
HZAARAEREERATVPHEIGRAMBHRREBL
WEES - URFAFEERBERAZEEEZERF - BY
FEEHRARZABEF cBRMERER - BERTE
RHEESEMRACEBRRZABEERAEL 285
stz A BN URFBGEMBHRRZBREI IR -

AZEEITRE  ARBMTEESRERNEENER
B ARAREMT cERE AR AR -

=z
=

ARBEBIRAE FANBRRCREEEYBRE L
REERATLER RAAR REER-FING
+ZAEt-RzEBMR R ERXEREXALE
EzEFRRERE  LEEESDR G2 RERT
ZARE -

BRI
HE SR LD
EEH LG HED

BE —EEAFWA-+LR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December 2008 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th April 2009
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“EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
M et FHT FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(fE5))
(re-presented)
EXHE Turnover 7 227,747 78,351
$HE AR Cost of sales (19,471) (49,415)
E7 Gross profit 208,276 28,936
Hup s Other revenue 8 7,920 9,076
H AU A Other income 9 43,987 8,885
THEX Administrative expenses (80,141) (75,451)
MSHEEREITHE Marketing and distribution expenses (671) (5,791)
LARRAD A5 2 RIBR 2 Share-based payment expenses (7,463) (17,660)
ROBRFEEEEZ Net realised and unrealised
TRHEEZEEBRNM (loss)/gain on financial assets
REBR (BR) s MEE classified as held-for-trading (14,877) 22,866
BEEEZE®R Impairment loss recognised
BIEEE in respect of goodwill 21 (13,646) (30,141)
BEHEEYRE ZERR Impairment loss recognised
BEEE in respect of film rights 27 (9,760) (16,850)
REYENTFEE (Decrease)/increase in fair value of
CAd) /1 investment properties 19 (11,930) 10,220
R (BE) Profit/(loss) from operations 121,695 (65,910)
BE AR Finance costs 10 (31,522) (12,827)
oy /N E Share of results of associates 25 (3,303) 56,648
HABRRERASZ Changes in fair value in respect of
B HERR 2 conversion options embedded in
N EEE convertible notes receivable - (50)
WHEK B AR 2 I8 Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 - 15,498
LEMBARZEBE Loss on disposal of
subsidiaries 46 (6,170) (45,471)
WRALEME AR Loss on deemed disposal of
[ dnid E interests in associates (17,551) (49,744)
BrREATEF] (E18) Profit/(loss) before taxation 11 63,149 (101,856)
MEER, () Taxation credit/(charge) 12 2,441 (1,951)
FEHN (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 65,590 (103,807)
AT AT Attributable to:
RARZ =R A Equity holders of the Company 90,604 (92,547)
LB R R R R Minority interests (25,014) (11,260)
65,590 (103,807)
gy Dividend 13
BEARIRE Final dividend proposed 4,790 -
EBESREFN, (FE) Earnings/(loss) per share
N Basic 14 HK$0.227% T (HK$0.667% 7T)
BE Diluted 14 HK$0.22i8 T  (HK$0.66/57T)

BEM < MY ER AR UL S B IMR 2 — &0 °

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.
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RZZBZNF+-H=+—H At 31st December 2008

—EEN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
b et FTERT FHEL
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - W RERE Property, plant and equipment 17 494,983 7,138
FHE R Interests in leasehold land 18 502,524 5,642
HEME Investment properties 19 49,930 51,100
EES Goodwill 21 24,391 29,062
EmREE Intangible assets 22 989,205 -
AftHEr emEE Available-for-sale financial assets 23 16,800 39,900
JEU — & AR 2 Convertible notes receivable
AHRBREE from an associate 24 - 667
JEU — R EgE = A B2 Conversion options embedded in
ARBEBERNEZ convertible notes receivable
R H from an associate 24 - 222
REE QAR Interests in associates 25 - 375,148
2,077,833 508,879
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 26 399 301
B Film rights 27 29,753 50,797
BUER B Films in progress 28 18,379 24,948
2 5) e W iR X Trade receivables 29 68,770 51,666
e BRREBEREM Deposits, prepayments and
U FhE other receivables 30 61,077 36,790
hERS Deposits for investments 31 - 400,000
HIFEERKRE Held-for-trading investments 32 25,713 16,600
BT —BLHBRREZER Loan to a minority shareholder 33 183,750 -
JE i Bt i N R 5R0E Amounts due from associates 34 - 7,359
TR I Prepaid tax 632 456
Re MRTTE% Cash and bank balances 35 138,145 22,735
526,618 611,652
DERBELEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 36 716 1,187,072
527,334 1,798,724
HWEE Total assets 2,605,167 2,307,603
BARG#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 37 26,612 140,305
®E Reserves 1,392,099 1,033,828
RARERFE A Equity attributable to equity
FEfh R holders of the Company 1,418,711 1,174,133
DB R B A Minority interests 284,264 1,328
W Total equity 1,702,975 1,175,461
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RZZZEN\F+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2008
—EEN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
b et FHET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITRE-—FREH Bank borrowings — due after one year 39 280,906 8,523
R R Unsecured convertible notes 40 138,390 -
RERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 41 88,317 3,466
507,613 11,989
REAEE Current liabilities
RITEX Bank overdraft 35 174,826 -
2 SR IR Trade payables 42 7,083 17,621
BEES - ERTIEE & Deposits received, accruals
H ftb JE S 5RIE and other payables 43 69,271 66,018
WITEE——FREH Bank borrowings — due within one year 39 102,561 2418
e D BUR R FRIE Amounts due to minority shareholders 44 40,502 -
FEIHLIR Tax payable 336 -
394,579 86,057
HOMARELEEE Liabilities associated with assets classified
E@aE as held for sale 36 - 1,034,096
394,579 1,120,153
EEHBE Total liabilities 902,192 1,132,142
BREREEASE Total equity and liabilities 2,605,167 2,307,603
RBEEFE Net current assets 132,755 678,571
HMEERTBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,210,588 1,187,450
R-ZZEZENFNA -+ +tHEHRESSERFETIR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 27th April 2009
mER BREAZE
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EF 2
Director Director
BE Mt 2 B SERE B Lt B S T3k 2 — 3040 o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

% & #1118 3 Balance Sheet
RZZZ\FE+-A=+—HILFE At 31st December 2008
—EENE —ETAF
2008 2007
it FTHT FHEL
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
*RBEE Non-current assets
N IIEENGIE $a Interests in subsidiaries 20 1,582,452 597,703
REBEE Current assets
e ENREREAM Deposits, prepayments and
FE W SRIA other receivables 30 826 1,808
KEEZES Deposits for investments 31 - 400,000
JRE Uz B /&8 /2~ B 3R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 87,041 241,317
JIE Wi B % R R FRIA Amounts due from associates 34 - 700
B RRITHER Cash and bank balances 35 115,579 21,054
203,446 664,879
WmEE Total assets 1,785,898 1,262,582
BRARFE Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 37 26,612 140,305
& Reserves 38 1,424,217 1,035,535
KABERBFEA Total equity attributable to equity
EiLEER shareholders of the Company 1,450,829 1,175,840
FREBER Non-current liabilities
JE BT /B8 A B R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 172,698 67,942
BELERHIBEARE Deferred tax liabilities 4,878 -
R RRRIE Unsecured convertible notes 40 138,390 -
315,966 67,942
REBEE Current liabilities
Bl EES - ERTIEE & Deposits received, accruals
H A fE A 5RIA and other payables 43 18,997 14,998
JE A B B A B 5k 8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 106 3,802
19,103 18,800
EEHBE Total liabilities 335,069 86,742
BEREEASE Total equity and liabilities 1,785,898 1,262,582
RBEETE Net current assets 184,343 646,079 o
HEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,766,795 1,243,782 e]

@&
o
pat
=
s
)
¥

RoBEAFMA= L AREFR I RBETE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 27th April 2009

BET: PR BA 2%
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EE BF
Director Director

BERT Z PR UL S R 2 — 800 ©

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.
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& & It A 5% B) #t & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZZ)N\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

HRE%S TER SHEE Bt RERH/ b
Bx  REEE  EAB&  ERRE  GHRE ZREEE  ZHEE  EMBE  ERRE  dHWRRE  (ERER) M BREER it
Financial Retained
Share-hased ~ Convertible assets Capital profit/
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange Special ~ payment notes  Revaluation  revaluation  reduction (accumulated Minority
31} The Group capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) ~ Subofal  Interests Total

TAn TEn Fin Tin TEn Fin Tin Thn Tin Tin TAn TEn Tin TEn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00

Wiy (k) W) (i) (W) Wy
(note 3) (note b) (note c) (note g) (note e) (note g)
WoF5tE-7-4 At 1st January 2007 35,28 906,988 186,624 3723 (6.867) 43238 566 - (9.800) 316,008 (780,885) 694627 1382 696,209
[3E] Exchange alignment - - - il - - - - - - - 571 0} 567
B BELARE Share of reserves of assoclates - - - 6,246 - 769 1247 - - - - 15,188 - 15,188
HENBRAER Disposal of interest n subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 320471 30471
TitE eREE, Fair value adjusiment on
ATEERE avallable-forsale finenciel
assets - - - - - - - - (2800) - - (2.800) - (2800
REARERERL Net incomef(expense) directly
WA/ (i) 58 recognised n equly - - - 6817 - 76% 1247 - (2800) - - 1009 4T 3B4%
SREENBERKNE Transfer to liabiltes associated
BEEHRE vith asses classfiied as
held for sale - - - - - - - - - - - (300.261)  (309,261)
FEEEGE Net loss for the year - - - - - - - - - S (A (@81 (11260 (103807)
EFRBMAR Total recognised incame and
BigE expense for the year - - - 6817 - 76% 1247 - (2.800) - (B (1958) (54 (19642)
EERf Placement of shares 03B 16793 - - - - - - - - -8 - 2028
fERERETRE Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options 3914 30,761 - - - (13.301) - - - - - 2374 - 21374
BARARR Share issuing expenses - (102 - - - - - - - - - () - (o)
EOuAREE Redemption of convertiole notes - - - - - - (566) - - - 566 - - -
BITAREE Issue of convertiole notes - - - - - - 54307 - - - - 54307 - 54,307
ShUBREE Conversion of convertible notes %6% 134409 - - - - () - E - - 0678 - 106738
BRERR RS Issue of shares from
rights issue 4,188 126,565 - - - - - - - - - 168,753 - 166,753
WRAX R 3R Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 17660 - - - - - 17660 - 17660
RZEECEFZAZT-BR  M3istDecemoer 2007
55\5-5-1 and st January 2008 140305 1,356,450 186,624 10540 (6,867) 55,292 1247 - (12,600) 316,008 (672866) 1174133 138 1175461
EXBE Exchange alignment - - - (146) - - - - - - - (146) - (146)
ERBELAGRE Share of resenves of associates - - - 10982 - 1079 - - - - - 12061 - 12061
HEHBAR Disposal of subsiciares - - - 20.008) 6,967 (7.844) - - 9073 - an (10935) (1183) (12118
BENE-EHE0TREE  Released on deemed disposel
of an associate - - - - - (930) (1.247) - - - - 217 - 21m
HBLTER Winding up of subsidiaries - - - (348) - - - - - - - (34) (128) (476)
TlLE AR Fair value adjustment on
ATEESE avallable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - - - (32,235) - - (32239) - (32,23
RRARERED Net incomef(expense) diectly
WA/ (558 recognised in equity - - - (9520) 6,867 (7,6%) (1.247) - (23,162) - 977 (33780) (1311) (35,091)
ERai Net proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 90,604 90,604 (25,014) 65,590
EERRAMARAREE Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - (9.520) 6,867 (7,6%) (1.47) - (23,162) - 91,561 56,624 26,32) 3049
HRREARARKLE Transfer from libilfes
BEEHRE associated wih assels
classified as held for sale - - - - - - - - - - - 309,261 309,261
WE-HHERIRES Issue of consideration shares upon
RERH acquision of a subsidiary 11817 2363 - - - - - - - - - 14,180 - 14180
RERH Placement of sheres A0 102576 - - - - - - - - - 176076 - 1769
RIEART Share issuing expenses - (4.200) - - - - - - - - - (4.200) - 42%0)
ot Capital reorganisation
L - capital reduction (199910) B Fil] - - - - - E - - - E
- (&) - share premium cancelation 702 / - (1364500 1356450 - - - - - - - - - - -
-HEEHER ) - set off against accumulated
losses (note f) - - (864,665 - - - - - - - 864,665 - -
BATARRE Issue of convertible nofes - - - - - - 71,691 - - - - 71691 - 71691
T Surplus on revaluafion upon transfer - - - - - - - 6,383 - - - 6,383 - 6,383
BOUARER Redemption of convertiole notes - - - - - - (367 - - - (s (18282) - (A
e Deferted tax - - - - - - (5,354) (1,093) - - - (6.407) - (6.407)
BN Share options lapsed - - - - - (13%) - - - - 1304 - -
PLOsGPEY:EN Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 7463 - - E - - 7463 - 1463
N-FENET-AZ1-A At 31st December 2008 26,612 100,649 878,319 1,020 - 53,666 32,665 5330 (35,762) 316,008 40204 1418711 24264 1,702,975
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& & It A 5% B) #t & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZZN\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

BE-NN-FARERREEIAR) - B aEq A
ERRARRZRETRN - FRBRAKRETTAR
AR -

AEEZANBABBRDERBRAERR -_TE_FAN
AtBREMME A BRARZ BE -

AR X 2 SRIBREE - HER R AR RER A
AREREEBBENRE L REZATER  ERHT)
WREERRHBREZATEERNHERE - 1T
BHMZEE UERKERBREZAFEELEEMESR
BHE(HE) AESE  YIEABEMX KA H
HE AR WAHERS ARG IR 2 i -

BEEB G ERE2R BT ZATRRREIRY
RERE D HEESD RN TAREATEE
BRAEHD (XFEBENRBREITREREZT
BMEXEE) METHAEREREERNHZATEER
MEZZAFERERAD - AEMHER VRSB HK
AIE - REBNEERRARBRERE  EERE
HER (EREEREROEE) AFRERED (BRE
ERBERBENRABR) RL-

REBZRABBBEER -AANEBEARQA
332,640,000k B # TR D 2 EEHR SR EE1.008 T
R ZSREECSHEBTMELEZSE - REFRER
RAABMBE129EMBB —HRER - BRAEIRE
RETREINAAREREZSE  8E R EE -
AR BEEEERNEER  GRBEREMEADEE
FAERZ AR -

RZEZNFRAANBRIZARABREHFNAE
—EENRERERS UHREBAQBRMGEE
FEEBERN ST+ E+_A=+—RHA22BXELD
1,356,450,000/8 JL st 4 - Mak s R0 m B IR T 15 &
FEBEEZADABARGBE ARABARBTH
864,665,000/ T EAEREARAR_STERF+=
A=Z+—BZZ2:BE MARRAGABHERHTE
RERARARESGREADBDBMEIREBBE
BFUHA -

BEBE_TT N\FT+_AZ+—-RAZKRHEREAR
4,790,000 7T - REEHN R BERAREE 285
35,414,000/ 7T

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
share premium can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully
paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus brought forward of the Group
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant options over the relevant vesting periods, the total
of which is based on the fair value of the options at grant date.
The amount for each period is determined by spreading the fair
value of the options over the relevant vesting periods (if any)
and is recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based payment
reserve.

Under HKAS 32, convertible notes issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition by
recognising the liability component at its fair value which is
determined using a market interest rate for equivalent non-
convertible notes and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from issue and the fair
value of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible notes reserve until the notes
are either converted (in which case it is transferred to share
premium) or the notes are redeemed (in which case it is
released directly to retained profit/accumulated losses).

The capital reduction reserve of the Group represented the
amount arising in relation to the reduction of the nominal value
of 332,640,000 issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed
by the directors, to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
the capital reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting
claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for
paying off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for
any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 8th
May 2008, a special resolution was passed to approve the
entire amount of approximately HK$1,356,450,000 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company as
at 31st December 2007 be cancelled and such credit amount
arising from the share premium cancellation be transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company, a sum
of approximately HK$864,665,000 in the contributed surplus
account of the Company be applied to set off against the
accumulated losses of the Company as at 31st December
2006 and the remaining credit balance in the contributed
surplus account of the Company will be utilised by the board
of directors of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company and all applicable laws.

The proposed final dividend as at 31st December 2008 was
HK$4,790,000 and the balance of retained profit after the
proposed final dividend was HK$35,414,000.
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% & Bl 4 i & & Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-ZZ)N\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

“EENE —ZETtF
2008 2007
M et FTHT FAT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’ 000
REEBFBzRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BREBATEF (F8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 63,149 (101,856)
HUTEIBEMIEAZE Adjustments for:
FMEZH Interest expenses 31,522 12,827
FEWA Interest income (1,497) (3,897)
S-S ON Dividend income (1,251) (79)
H b FE W R IB R B Reversal of impairment loss on

Ji5 48 [ trade receivables (95) -
ERERBERARTEZ Impairment loss

BEHERBEERE on amount due from associates 25,179 14,975
B 2 EWGRIE R B k18 Impairment loss on trade receivables 23 -
H i E R IB 2 R B 5 18 Impairment loss on other receivables 89 -
EHETHREZEER Impairment loss recognised in respect

RIEEE of film rights 9,760 16,850
EHMHEZERR Impairment loss recognised in respect

RIEEE of goodwill 13,646 30,141
ME WERREHEFE L Depreciation and amortisation of property,

2 E R plant and equipment and leasehold land 2,811 23,866
REMEZNFEE Decrease/(increase) in fair value of investment

B (4 hn) properties 11,930 (10,220)
HEWE  HasRRE Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

Z &8,/ CaFl) plant and equipment 20 (107)
ML EER 2R Gain on winding up of subsidiaries (476) -
HEWNB AR ZERE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 6,170 45,471
Ut i — FHI BT B8 2 B 2 47 58 Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary - (15,498)
WEALEME AR ER Loss on deemed disposal of interests

Z BB in associates 17,551 49,744
DEAEBEEEZEMEEZ  Netrealised and unrealised loss/(gain)

BEEERAEHRER on financial assets

Ca ) 35 classified as held-for-trading 14,877 (22,866)
[0l AT AR S HR 2 0 Gain on redemption of convertible notes (39,000) (2,315)
BB E 2 AT EBEEH Change in fair value in respect of

conversion options - 50
B ERREER Share of results of associates 3,303 (56,648)
AR D 25 2 SRIB R 2 Share-based payment expenses 7,463 17,660
LEGSEHA 2 EEIREME Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 165,174 (1,902)
FER D Decrease in inventories 115 885
B RIER Decrease in film rights 11,284 29,780
HIERBEZ R Decrease in films in progress 6,569 4,521
B 5 FE W IR N Increase in trade receivables (15,660) (39,130)
e BNRIEREM Increase in deposits, prepayments and
JE U SR TE 38 AN other receivables (11,547) (3,977)
HE RSN Increase in deposits for investments - (400,000)
JE LS Bt o B 5K IE 3 AN Increase in amounts due from associates (17,820) (16,429)
LB 5 EMIRI CRD) /180 (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (12,688) 569
EN—RBDEREFRIBE LN Increase in amount due to a minority
shareholder - 502
Bl EES - EETIEE & Increase in deposits received, accruals
H fth & A SRIBIE A0 and other payables 6,303 18,647
gEELS )/ (FTA)2RE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 131,730 (406,534)
(Bf) /BERFE Tax (paid)/refund (452) 235
REERELE/ (FFA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
ZBR&FHE operating activities 131,278 (406,299)
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BEMT 2 MR R E M B RER 2 —#fn o

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Dividend income
Acquisition of interests in associates
Acquisition of subsidiaries
(net cash and cash equivalent) 45
Loan to a minority shareholder
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Repayment from a minority shareholder
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 46
Subscription of convertible notes
(including expenses)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Repayment of convertible notes receivables

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes
Redemption of convertible notes
Repayment of bank loans

New bank loan acquired

Share issuing expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents 35

financial statements.

—EENE —ETEA
2008 2007
TERT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$' 000
1,457 3,773
1,251 79
- (130,813)
(199,999) (668,929)
- (196,000)

- 94,858

- 20

12,250 -
330,560 315,000
- (22,630)
(24,052) (24,032)
(197,131) (5,899)
- 52,000
(75,664) (582,573)
(28,682) (11,724)
176,976 390,415
- 160,075
(216,000) (20,000)
(77,474) (2,261)
- 450,000
(4,290) (10,226)
(149,470) 956,279
(93,856) (32,593)
57,321 89,347
(146) 567
(36,681) 57,321

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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1.

#f Notes to the Financial Statements
Z-ZF\E+-F=+—HIL4E For the year ended 31st December 2008

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun
168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively.

Tak Centre, West Tower,

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, provision
of post-production services, investing in operations
which receive profit streams from the gaming promotion

business and property and hotel investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning on 1st January 2008.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial

(Amendments) Assets
HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and
Treasury Share Transactions
HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a

Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction
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— 53

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the new amendments and
interpretations has no material effect on how the results
and financial position of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvement to HKFRSs'

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements?®

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements®

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items?®
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate?
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment -

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations®
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes*
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate?
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers?®
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2.

#f Notes to the Financial Statements
Z-ZF\E+-F=+—HIL4E For the year ended 31st December 2008

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009 except for the amendment to HKFRS
5, effective for annual period beginning on or after
1st July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2008

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st October 2008

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st July
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs and anticipates
that the application of these new HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group and the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”), and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In
addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention except
for certain investment properties and financial
instrument, which are carried at fair values.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.
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#f Notes to the Financial Statements
Z-ZF\E+-F=+—HIL4E For the year ended 31st December 2008

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated
on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Minority interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able
to make an additional investment to cover the
losses.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost, less any

identified impairment loss.
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3. FEEHRFEME(£E) 3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)
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(c)

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date, except for non-current
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, which are recognised and measured
at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the
acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s
portion of the net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of
incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of loses is
provided for a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associates.

associates are

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary
or associate at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition
of a subsidiary is presented separately in the
balance sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on
an acquisition of an associate is included in the
cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an
associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

i
rreoath
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of
such intangible assets is their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually and carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Revenue recognition

Distribution fee income is recognised when the
master materials have been delivered.

Sales of film rights are recognised when the
master films are delivered and the film title has
passed perpetually.

Sales of video products are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income, management fee income and
production fee income are recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term.

Hotel operating income is recognised upon
provision of the services.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

All direct and indirect costs relating to
the construction of property, plant and
equipment, including borrowing costs during
the construction period are capitalised as
construction in progress. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for its intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress), using the
straight-line method, over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates are as follows:

4.5% - 5%
20% — 33%
10% - 20%
18% — 25%
15% - 20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

i
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

()]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an
asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Interests in leasehold land

Interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
lease payment for leasehold land. Interests
in leasehold land are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The costs of
interests in leasehold land are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the relevant
interests in leasehold land or the operation
period of the relevant company. During the
construction period, the amortisation charge
provided for the interests in leasehold land
is included as part of cost of construction in
progress.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included
in the consolidated income statement for the
period in which they arise.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the
carrying amount of the asset only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group
and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has
changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
property at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment. However, if a fair value gives rise to
a reversal of the previous impairment loss, the
write-back is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of assets, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profit/accumulated losses.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdraw from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excluded items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and its further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to income statement
except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the entity intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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3. FESHHEEME £ 3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) #E& (n)  Inventories
GEDRRARATEEFEME 2 REE Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
ABR o RARFEANELETE - net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the

first-in, first-out method.

(o) B ¥ IRE (0)  Film rights
BYNMEATNEEREXNBAZEYRE Film rights represent films and television drama
BEEE - HEKARRTEBEREANE series produced by the Group or acquired by the
FRIREBEAR - Group and are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and any identified impairment loss.
HEHEEFRNERRRZ KA EEEE TR Amortisation is charged to the income statement
FEFEF A B BMAZ L BIFF AKRAR - & based on the proportion of actual income earned
TR BB TEBAZTF - WL RE during the year to the total estimated income
MRE B REHEESREG T lkE & from the sale of film rights. The amortisation of
BB A HUR © film rights will not exceed twenty years. In the
case where there is any impairment in value,
the unamortised balance is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount.
(p) HEFEE (p)  Films in progress

BUEREFIEBEPCEFRERER
Bl - BEARRHMCHARAREIRDS
BRI ZBEBEAR - KABRTERIZE
BRETREANRE -

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost incurred to date, less any identified
impairment loss. Cost is transferred to film rights
upon completion.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

i. Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets that requires delivery of
assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.
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3. Eggﬁ—rﬁ%mg (,és 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT '
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9 S@WIAEE) (q)  Financial Instruments (Continued)

i LREE (&) i. Financial assets (Continued)
BREm AN FEEINREZ 25 Financial assets at fair value through

BE profit or loss
FRERAATEEIEZ S/ Financial assets at fair value through
BENPEME BERBIEESE: profit or loss has two subcategories,
MEERRVABRARETASE including financial assets held-for-trading
BIEEAAFEBNRcE/RE and those designated as at fair value
Eo through profit or loss on initial recognition.
TREERHEARIEERM: A financial asset is classified as held-for-
trading if:
(i) BAXTZEARTAMR R (i) it has been acquired principally for
g3k the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

(i) BRAEBESHEENS (i) it is a part of an identified portfolio
BMITEMBEEHEHAN—I of financial instruments that the
SPREABGIEREHE Group manages together and has
FIER % a recent actual pattern of short-

term profit-taking; or

(iii) CREBEEARWEE LA (iii) it is a derivative that is not
BEREAH P TAEMNNTA designated and effective as a
TH- hedging instrument.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

i.

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss can be those financial assets
acquired principally not for the purpose
of selling in the short term but designated
by management as such at inception. A
financial asset other than a financial asset
held-for-trading may be designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

(i) G B3 18 7 88 08 B Sk K IR OR () such designation eliminates
L BHNAT AL R AT = 3K or significantly reduces a
BRZI—% % measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

(ii) ZeRMEEEKARER (i) the financial asset forms part of

(iii)

SE EZEAREERK
ERBRATEEEER
TURHGEERRZ —#EE
MEEN—HEeRMEMFEL
ME  WRZEEER
NEBRHEABIEA D EZ
BR

HEBREA BRI L
NENMETAZED M
ARG B 395 A 7T
ENREHAN(BER
BE)RERBBERMN
BRAFEEINERZEBE
o

a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management
or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis;
or

(iii) it forms part of a contract
containing one or more embedded
derivatives and HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated
as fair value through profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

i.

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, loan to
a minority shareholder, amounts due
from subsidiaries, amounts due from
associates, time deposits, cash and bank
balances) are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
An impairment loss is recognised in
income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

i.

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as any of the other
categories (set out above). At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in
equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale
equity investments will not reverse in
subsequent periods. For available-for-
sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that does not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured. They
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition.
An impairment loss is recognised in
income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired.
The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods.

i
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities
are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held-
for-trading if:

() it has been incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the
near future; or

(i) it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

ii.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be
designated as at fair value through profit
or los upon initial recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

(i) the financial liability forms part
of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management
or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis;
or

(iii) it forms part of a contract
containing one of more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be
designated as fair value through
profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in income
statement in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any interest paid on
the financial liability.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including
creditors and accruals, securities
trading and margin payable, deposits
and receipts in advance, bank and
other borrowings and amounts due to
associates are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective

interest rate method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
that contain both financial liability
and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and
equity components on initial recognition.
On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate
of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible loan notes
and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded
call option for the holder to convert the
notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes — equity reserve).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes
is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity
component, representing by the option
to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes reserve
until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in
convertible notes — equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible loan notes —
equity reserve will be released to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
income statement upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged
directly to convertible notes - equity

reserve.

Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component
and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designated as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised initially at its
fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derivative financial instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting
derivatives are deemed as financial
assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair
values of such derivatives are recognised
directly in the consolidated income
statement.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

ifi. Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in
equity is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

For financial liabilities, they are removed
from the Group’s balance sheet (i.e. when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires). The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.
In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance
sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in income
statement in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in income statement for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(s)

(1)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group'’s foreign operations are translated into
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Leasing (Continued)

(ii)

(u)
(i)

(ii)

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for
bonuses when there is a contractual
obligation and the amount can be
estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income,
with the employers’ contributions subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. The Group’s contributions to
the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group.
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3. FEEBHBEMEE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) EEERE) (u)  Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) KBROZNZHEHL (i) Share-based payment expenses
SERBEHABEROBRO 2 AF The fair value of the employee services
BEMETEERERERE 2AF received determined by reference to the
BE  DERBME LR MR fair value of share options granted at the
GERAELABRZAS  WR grant date is recognised as an expense
A B AR FE I R (BARR D X+t in full at the grant date when the share
ZHIEREE) - options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve).
TEERER - PR E®RAZ N At the time when the share options
M >t 2 OB G BB R are exercised, the amount previously
BEORE -WBRERSEE B recognised in share-based payment
2 Wl fEm A BRI R reserve will be transferred to share
ETE BRiocERZ2UERNDS premium. When the share options are
NeHBERBEHEREARR R forfeited after the vesting date or are
F o still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
(v) BEALRS (v) Related party transactions

ATTRERREEZBEANLH :

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ROTER-—BREZHETFNTALE
BEHEE (Rt AER HF
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A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the party, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, (a) controls,
is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (b) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (c) has joint
control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or

its parent;

the party is a close member of the family
of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
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3. FESHHEEME & 3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) BEALRS (&) (v)  Related party transactions (Continued)

(viy  #ZA Biv)E(v)IE Mz E A E R A (vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled,
TEEZESMEESLZ X ERIE jointly controlled or significantly
FIARXEAFEARNZEERTE influenced by or for which significant
EAREEZEER 3 voting power in such entity resides

with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(i) ZAAAEBEREAANEERESR (vii)  the party is a post-employment benefit
ATzHEMERZEERMMR plan for the benefit of the employees
2B EE N E o of the Group, or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.
(w) BREREFEEZBEEE (FERM) (w) Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
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MWEREBREARSARE  REBEE
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assets other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. In addition, intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whether there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and
gooawill

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible
assets and goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in notes 3(e), 3(f)
and 3(0). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions
made by management on the future operation
of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade receivables
is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that
the trade receivable balances are collectible
and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade receivable balances are
called into doubts, specific provisions for bad
and doubtful debts are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis
of the trade receivables balances and write-
off history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the income
statement. Changes in the collectability of trade
receivables for which provisions are not made
could affect our results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset
is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets,
as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)
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Investment properties

As described in note 19, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have
based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Should there are changes in
assumptions due to change of market conditions,
the fair value of the investment properties will
change in future.

Impairment of films in progress

The management of the Group reviews an
aging analysis at each balance sheet date, and
identifies the slow-moving films in progress that
is no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value
for such films in progress based primarily on the
latest available market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at each balance sheet date
and makes allowance for any films in progress
that productions no longer proceed.
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5. €®mITE 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) SRIASE: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
AEHE
The Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
THER TR
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
cREE Financial assets
FHIEEERE Held-for-trading investments 25,713 16,822
EXR R EYGIE (B E Loans and receivables (including cash
Re MIRTTHER) and bank balances) 391,612 85,734
AHEEZEHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 16,800 40,567
cRIBE Financial liabilities
8 58 B AR Amortised cost 813,539 94,580
(b) SHEKREEEBRERE (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies
AREB I TELRTEAERAES - The Group’s major financial instruments include
EE BELMHMEKSE BREMN equity investments, borrowings, trade and
B BEARESZHEER - ZE4RITA other receivables, trade payables, cash and
THEFNEEHER - BRESRITA cash equivalents. Details of these financial
HEZRE  URHEZERR Y HEH instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
FINT - B EEHRERRETEE RE The risks associated with these financial
B OBRAREENY FRETEL B - instruments and the policies on how to mitigate

these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) SREKREBEBREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
™iEE R Market risk
(i) SNE 7 S (i) Foreign exchange risk

ARETEERBLRMLER
B BRBORSHTIABT ([E
t) RBPIEE (DRPIE ) FHE -
A6 B R BB TR PTROE X
BYHELZINERR AKER
B EEAIERDEERERE
ZHONEEEE P T E - KEE K
BYEERIERR ARBE
B Z @i hERINERE

REBEBRH AEBEAINEFE
ZEREBEERBBZREBELT

The Group operates mainly in both
Hong Kong and Macau and majority
of transactions are dominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange
fluctuation of HK$ against MOP. The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign current assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at
reporting date are as follows:

—BEBN\F —TRLF
2008 2007
FET FHEL
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets

el MOP 222,501 391,337

=K Liabilities
B P MOP 221,458 193,947
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5. ﬁﬁﬂl B (éég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
5 R (F) Market risk (Continued)
(i) S E S (4E) (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

SNEREIRER 2 BURRE DT

TRHANAEE BT RPE
FEREZESRZHEE - RAA
HEIBEEASREINERRE
FIRAZBRELLE /5% BB
ERENHGUEABEERZES
BH FREIMBBEEREE
ZONEHEERER YEHRK
ENPRZBEAEER FFH5%
2B FRESMIMBIEINGD
BERAEBENEINELAEZ
EX - MEBERXREARRELT
HEEATAINEEEE - TXF
ZEBRBRHAREE L ETH
1B.5%H )i A 2 18 N8R o fis 45 7R
EEHBTRENS ENKE

BERRTAMZERE 7

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency
risk

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in the HK$ against the MOP. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans
as well as loans to foreign operations
within the Group where the denomination

ZEREAEBE - of the loan is in a currency other than the
currency of the lender or the borrower.
A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit where the relevant
currencies strengthen 5% against the
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant
currencies against the HK$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be
negative.
—EENE —ZETtF
2008 2007
THERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
il g -2 Impact of MOP
i A SR & 1R Profit or loss 54 10,165
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) SREKREBEBREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
AR (F) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) 1B 157 b2 (if) Price risk

AREZBRAREREAHLE
RERZEBEZUARFEET KR
ZEBMEBEE NEHEERAYER
AFPEEFECAEEABMBRER
B -AEEzEREARIES
R FE B X PR (E 2 % B R AR
BYRRS REXRRFEA
RAMBEFEZZBERED
BEIZBRAESR - EEBIARY
TRERKFEZEREAEEZSE
MER U AEEREER
R - BB EE
LR o

BURE D
ATEEELNDREARSE A
HART AR 2 BB R T EE °

The Group’s equity investments classified
as available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are measured at fair value at
each balance sheet date and expose the
Group to equity price risk. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity securities operating in provision
for cold storage and related logistic
services, manufacturing industry and
public transportation business in the
People’s Republic of China and Hong
Kong, which are quoted in the Stock
Exchange. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. In
addition, the Group will monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need rise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the reporting date.




CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Gy E £ R 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

B #t % Mt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZ)\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

5.

SRITA(Z

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) SREKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
5 R (F) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) B E 5 ()
BRE DT (&)
W% B EF+,/ T B&5% » Bl :

AEEBE_TTN\E
+TZA=+—HLFEZ
Bh B RTS8 0,
491,286,000 7L (Z T Z
+ & ¢ 80,7 £830,000
BIL) c M EZHRNER
BHmUAFEIEZEH

AEEZEBEESHH
& 518 0,/ % 840,000/
T(=FBLF MR
41,995,000 7T) © 1tk T
AR HEHEREZ SR

(ii)

Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If equity prices had been 5% higher/

lower, the Group’s:

profit before taxation for the year
ended 31st December 2008
would increase/decrease by
HK$1,286,000 (2007: increase/
decrease by HK$830,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss; and

financial assets revaluation
reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$840,000 (2007: increase/
decrease by HK$1,995,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at available-for-
sale investments.
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(b)

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

cRERETEEE RBEK(Z) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

W5 R (F) Market risk (Continued)

(i) B2 ERLFEEFEE G (i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
FEBARSIHNERREEHR The Group’s exposure to changes in
EFTHGEZRESRS - A& interest rates is mainly attributable to
AR TATEEMERRE T ER its time deposits and borrowings. Bank
RTES (RS0 borrowings at variable rates expose the
3 FEZ (- REBZWAR Group to fair value interest rate risk (see
WA o 2R AR F AT T note 39 for details of these borrowings).
BRI REETSE . KEFT B The Group’s income and operating cash
A F) RS PR o BT M flows are substantially independent
EBBERN MR RN E TR of changes in market interest rates.
) o N ESE The Group currently does not have an

interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
RoZENE+-_A=+—0K As at 31st December 2008 and 31st
—EEt+HE+-A=+—-08 K December 2007, a reasonably possible
B e 505 EE Y Fl& Y a change of 50 basis-points interest rates
HAEEHENAEEEE LS on borrowings would have no material
REFLER R @ E AL impact on the Group’s results for the year
and equity as at the year end.
EERRK Credit risk
RoEENE+-A=+—0 AXHYH As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s

HAREETEEMAASRNEE SR BE

BzARERAEERR

CIREHEERE

EREXRMIISRCEREREE LKA

g o

maximum exposure to credit risk which will

cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure

to discharge an obligation by the counterparties

is arising from the carrying amount of the

respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated balance sheet.
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5.

STRMIA(Z
(b) CREREEBEERBE(E)
EERK (&)

R EERRREREK  AEEEERE
AEETEEMAREMEERT AR
REDITEEWBHER - sk E - &
RAEERAAREZEERBE KER
15

AREZEERBREIEMEFHEMEY
HREEE - AKBYERERNEFEZRTRA
Be-AREEREREAMAKRZERER

A

a8 o
N

RBEEERR

AEEBRBARARRITFEREAS B
ERANERRERENREASRAE
REFEHBREE  BHERRDES -

EEEREEERDESRAR - BART
EENHMAREZARZABEEF R
HECEHRRMEEBRMNEEN VB
B BEEERSEMRITEE RS EEITR

P o

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In this regards, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade or other receivables. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank deposits and cash, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by management. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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5. QEEI B (/%ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREBEBREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REBESRARK(£) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRETASEEEEZCRAE KD The table below analyses the Group’s financial

RIEABEBAERN  REHEERERD
FIHAZ RS BRETON - RAKEZ
TEREAOEBRNTIMKAE - 0T

liabilities that will be settled into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

R-BENETZA=T-H

At 31st December 2008
B #
MEFY RemE REE
BRAIE -FR —En% AENLE @t @it
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year  2-5years 5years cash flows amount
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HKS$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
FTERER Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BITEX Bank overdraft - 174,826 - - 174,826 174,826
RITRE Bank borrowings
i - current - 102,561 - - 102,561 102,561
-FR - non-current - - 280,882 2% 280,906 280,906
ZHENTE Trade payables - 7,083 - - 7,083 7,083
BYilEs - EHEE R Deposits received, accruals
EffEr 3R and other payables - 69,271 - - 69,271 69,271
BN EREFE Amounts due to minority
shareholders - 40,502 - - 40,502 40,502
EERTARTE Unsecured convertible notes 7.75% - - 168,000 168,000 138,390
&t Total 394,243 280,882 168,024 843,149 813,539
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5.

SRMITHE(E 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

REBESRARK(£) Liquidity risk (Continued)

RZZZ+ET-A=1-H
At 31st December 2007
BifE
MEF Beng REE
ERAE -7  ZER¥  RENE @3 b
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
TR THEL THEL THEL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTELRAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
BIOREE Bank borrowings
i) - current - 2,418 - - 2418 2,418
¥R - non-current - - 8,209 314 8,523 8,523
ESEMHA Trade payables - 17,621 - - 17,621 17,621
BB S - BEIBE R Deposits received, accruals
EffE R and other payables - 66,018 - - 66,018 66,018
B Total 86,057 8,209 314 94,580 94,580
(c) SRIBEZAFEE (c) Fair value of financial instruments

SHMEELSMBEZALEBHEKRIUATA The fair value of financial assets and financial

NETF liabilities are determined as follows:

° BEEEEGETRIEEL N ERR o the fair value of financial assets and
BETSEEE 2o EELS R financial liabilities (including derivative
BERMEETEIA) 2 AT EBE instruments) with standard terms and
TR R2EMEEANLS HEBE conditions and traded on active liquid
g8 markets are determined with reference to

quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

. EmemEERSRBE (BT o the fair value of other financial assets

RTR)ZAFEEDIREARE
BERA  YRFABRREREAN -
RRERBAZUBEAKMS
ZERIFKRGTE - AR RE

REEZETAME -

AT

BEIRRABRETEEAMGE -

and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transaction
as input. For an option-based derivative,
the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. €@ IR (~& 5.

(c)

EMIEZAFEEE)
BRTRZFEN EEERE NERH
BREACHZEREERERAR KA
BEEENFEERS -

SREE Financial assets
R —fEHE A E 2 Convertible notes
AR AR R IE receivable from
an associate
cRERE Financial liabilities
EEARRER Unsecured convertible notes
d EXEE

AEEBEEEER  URRAEEZER
HARFELE  WEBBIER R ERS
BRRABREREADR - NBEFE - K
KEBBERBERTE -

AEBZEAEBOEER  HBRERT
fEREMTHERE REeMREEHEEAR
RADRIES A ARGELS  HEED
BITRA  RERREAMN -

— 95

(c)

amount
FTET
HK$’ 000

EREE
Carrying

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table,
the directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair value.

—EENE —ETLEF
2008 2007
DY EE BREE NFEE
Carrying

Fair value amount Fair value
THERT THET TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- - 667 691

138,390

77,775 - -

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of debts which include bank borrowings and
convertible notes, cash and cash equivalents,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained profits.
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SRMTER (& 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5.

d)y EXREE(E) (d)

AEBEEREEEERMENEE - 1F
RUER O AREEEEEEAL
RARRETROUIIZEBES KR
BRERAEALHREHREE - AEEHR
BAEBEEZHBEZHAEREEUEE
fEEMFHRERERGE -

AEBEAHEBFEEAGBLERTHES
50% - RZZEENF+-_RA=+—HEKZ
TT+FE+ A=+ BZEEABRER

Capital management (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As a part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and other sources of funds
other than issuance of shares, including
borrowings from related parties. Based on
the recommendation of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through raising or repayment of
borrowings.

The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratios as at
31st December 2008 and 31st December 2007

mE
are as follows:

—EENE ZEELF
2008 2007
FTERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEB() Total debt (i) 696,683 10,941
B BRE RRITER Less: Cash and bank balances (138,145) (22,735)
B FHE Net debt 558,538 (11,794)
A& 7 i) Equity (ii) 1,418,711 1,174,133
B FEERALL & Net debt to equity ratio 39% -
BEBERA L X Total debt to equity ratio 49% 0.9%

it - Notes:
(i) BEERERTES  RITHEERERFTER (i) Debt comprises bank overdraft, bank borrowings and
ER (BEFE D RIEH MR35 - 39K%40) © unsecured convertible notes as detailed in notes 35, 39

(i) BABBEARBZMAENREE - (if)

and 40 respectively.

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

BRERNEE 2 NAHBRERLCEER  TED In accordance with the internal financial reporting and
BEREDNREBDE  MAZBoBERE HiRwE operating activities of the Group, the primary segment

DR -EBNEIBELBHALBEERS -

B E RS -

B RRE -

reporting is by business segments and the secondary
segment reporting is by geographical segments.
There are no sales or trading transaction between the
business segments or geographical segments.

Business segments

The principal products and services of each of these

divisions are as follows:

BERBETEY RBIRESE Film distribution - Production and distribution of

B

motion pictures and television
drama series

FORPIR R E RS Hotel services -~ Provision of hotel services in
Macau

RE B ER R B WA Gaming and - Investing in operations which

Mz %% entertainment receive profit streams from the

gaming promotion business

il Lol
i)

-

=l
Wl ]
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁ*ﬁl (lfé_ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EHRSEB IO BERZROT - Segment information about these businesses is
presented as below.

—EENEF 2008
EYRT BERE EERRE Hitr Re
Film Hotel Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others Consolidated
TR FEL FEL FERL ThR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GEWAR CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
BB Turnover 19,141 - 203,327 5,279 227,747
NEEE Segment results (455) - 203,327 4,733 207,605
EUREZEER Impairment loss recognised
REERE in respect of goodwil (13,646) - - - (13,646)
EHEEYMELDBR Impairment loss recognised
REERE in respect of film rights (9,760) - - - (9,760)
RENELTEERD Decrease in fair value of
investment properties (11,930)
PERARIEEEL Net realised and unrealised loss
SREEZEERR on financial assets classified
REREREE as held-for-trading (14,877)
EhEBERARAER Share of loss of associates (3,303)
HEMB AR EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (6,170)
HRANEHE D AER Loss on deemed disposal of
BB interests in associates (17,551)
APBREMA Unallocated corporate income 51,907
b UNCIE T Unallocated corporate expenses (119,126)
BR 7 A0 7 Profit before taxation 63,149
RELE Taxation credit 2,44
FEER Profit for the year 65,590
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

¥BPE(E) Business segments (Continued)
—EENF 2008
gRT BERE BYRR% 2t RE
Film Hotel Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others Consolidated
TET TER TEx TEx TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GREEERX CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET
BE Assets
NEEE Segment assets 369,633 1,214,264 1,018,529 2,7M 2,605,167
N GAUNGIE o Interests in associates -
RAEBAE Consolidated total assets 2,605,167
a8 Liabilities
PHEE Segment liabilities 218,44 677,347 5 6,399 902,192
HiEH OTHER INFORMATION
EFRT BERE BYRERE Hitr R
Film Hotel Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others Consolidated
TEL TER TEx TEx TERL
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EYMERH Amortisation of film rights 18,593 - - - 18,593
MELTEREH Amortisation of interests
in leasehold land 129 90 - - 219
mE ERREEITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 2,139 453 - - 2,592
BBEYRERRZAERE Impairment loss recognised
in respect of film rights 9,760 - - - 9,760
EBBE/ERARNEEE Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill 13,646 - - - 13,646
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6.

PaE BT RN = A
DHEER (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
¥B2E(E) Business segments (Continued)
—_TTLHF 2007
BYRT BERSE  ERRRE Hify e
Film Hotel  Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others  Consolidated
TAT FART FAR FET FAERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEBAR CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
2E8 Turnover 58,970 14,046 - 5,335 78,351
NEEE Segment results 8,336 9,474 - 5,335 23,145
EBEWELEER Impairment loss recognised
HEER in respect of goodwill (30,141) - - - (30,141)
EBEEYMELDRR Impairment loss recognised
HEER in respect of film rights (16,850) - - - (16,850)
RENELNTFEEEM Increase in fair value of
investment properties 10,220
NERARIEEEYL Net realised and unrealised
HBEECEERR gain on financial assets
FEBGRHEE classified as held-for-trading 22,866
gl Share of profit of associates 56,648
KENBAR TR Discount on acquisition
of subsidiaries 15,498
HEMB AR EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (45,471)
HRRERLERERT Loss on deemed disposal of
BazER interests in associates (49,744)
FE NG N Unallocated corporate income 17,961
F R NG5 Unallocated corporate expenses (105,988)
BKEAER Loss before taxation (101,856)
BEL Taxation charge (1,951)
FEEE Loss for the year (103,807)
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Palk - -BT N = .
DHEER (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
¥BPE(E) Business segments (Continued)
—ETLF 2007
BYRT BERE  BRYRIRE Hith )
Film Hotel  Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others  Consolidated
FET FEL TR TET FEL
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GREEEBER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET
BE Assets
PEEE Segment assets 742,326 1,187,072 - 3,057 1,932,455
NGEINGIL F Interests in associates 375,148
ABEE Consolidated total assets 2,307,603
BE Liabilities
DEEE Segment liabilities 81,977 1,034,096 - 16,069 1,132,142
H & # OTHER INFORMATION
BERT BERE  BRRIRE Hit )
Film Hotel  Gaming and
distribution services entertainment Others  Consolidated
FET FEL TR TET FEL
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B MIER Amortisation of film rights 43,747 - - - 43747
HETER Amortisation of interests
B in leasehold land 165 15,259 - - 15,424
nE - BBEREE Depreciation of property,
e plant and equipment 2,891 5,551 - - 8,442
EHEYMELDHA Impairment loss recognised
REEE in respect of film rights 16,850 - - - 16,850
EBBELEER Impairment loss recognised
REEE in respect of goodwil 30,141 - - - 30,141
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6. ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁl (éé'%— 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
&2 E Geographical segments
TRETSUEINMAEE ZHE The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

sales by location of markets:

—EENF 2008
2R(BER
B B RARM) g
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
FAL FAL AL FhR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GEBAR CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BEE Turnover 17,330 203,327 7,090 227,747
HERR Cost of sales (12,022) - (7,449) (19,471)
MEEEREITRY Marketing and distribution expenses (268) - (403) (671)
PEEE Segment results 5,040 203,327 (762) 207,605
PEAREEEL Net realised and unrealised loss on
ERAEZRERR financial assets classified as
AERERER held-for-trading (14,877) - - (14,877)
RENMEATERD Decrease in fair value of
investment properties (11,930) - - (11,930)
BEHELERA Impairment loss recognised in respect
HEESE of goodwil (13,646)
BBEEINELDRR Impairment loss recognised
AR in respect of film rights (9,760)
EREBEDEEHE Share of loss of associates (3,303)
LEMBLARZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (6,170)
BEALERENT Loss on deemed disposal of
BRER interests in associates (17551)
FEUNILON Unallocated corporate income 51,907
RABRART Unallocated corporate expenses (119,126)
BB AR Profit before taxation 63,149
REES Taxation credit 2,441
ERER Profit for the year 65,590
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6. DEER(E& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
EDE(#E) Geographical segments (Continued)
—EENF 2008
2R(EBR
EE A HFRM G
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
TEn Thn Thn TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GREESER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
BE Assets
PREE Segment Assets 370,115 2,232,751 2,301 2,605,167
NN 3 Interests in associates -
GREENE Consolidated total assets 2,605,167
B Liabilities
NEEE Segment liabilities 224,749 677,352 91 902,192
2R(ERR
EE 35| BB Ge
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
TER TER TER TEr
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
HitEH OTHER INFORMATION
MELHER Amortisation of interests in
B leasehold land 129 90 - 219
nE BRREE Depreciation of property, plant
& and equipment 2,139 453 - 2,592
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6.

TREN(

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

tEDE(#E) Geographical segments (Continued)
—_TTLHF 2007
2R(BBR
Y il RPN e
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
Tix FET TR FiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SARMAR CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BXE Turnover 62,366 14,046 1,939 78,351
HERK Cost of sales (42,731) (4,572) (2,112) (49,415)
MEEEREITRY Marketing and distribution
expenses (5,606) - (185) (5,791)
NEEE Segment results 14,029 9,474 (358) 23,145
NEABIEEEL Net realised and unrealised
SHEEZBERR gain on financial assets
FERGAFE classified as held-for-trading 22,866 - - 22,866
REMERTEEM Increase in fair value of
investment properties 10,220 - - 10,220
BEHELERA Impairment loss recognised
REEE in respect of goodwil (30,141)
BEEYMEL Impairment loss recognised
BERRRERE in respect of film rights (16,850)
f A eUNG el Share of profit of associates 56,648
KENBARZE Discount on acquisition
of subsidiaries 15,498
HERBAR EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (45,471)
BRALEKS Loss on deemed disposal of
REERIEBE interests in associates (49,744)
FOBLRABA Unallocated corporate income 17,961
KAOBLRARX Unallocated corporate expenses (105,988)
BREAER Loss before taxation (101,856)
BES Taxation charge (1,951)
EEER Loss for the year (103,807)
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6. PEER(E 6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

EDE(#E) Geographical segments (Continued)
ER(BER
£E R RARM) g
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
TER TERT TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GREERER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AE Assets
NEEE Segment Assets 743,416 1,187,072 1,967 1,932,455
REE LR ER Interests in associates 375,148
GREERE Consolidated total assets 2,307,603
2k Liabilities
PERRE Segment liabilities 95,877 1,034,096 2169 1,132,142
ER(BER
£ pils BB g
Worldwide
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau and Macau Consolidated
TR T T TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A ER OTHER INFORMATION
NRELEE Amortisation of interest in
B leasehold land 165 15,259 - 15,424
nE BERZE Depreciation of property, plant
B and equipment 2,891 5,551 - 8,442
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7

—E -

7 TURNOVER

BITBRA
HEBRRE
HEBRTHEM
S L ON

SUEBIA

B 18R 1 B 5 % O A

BB EBRA

H s

Distribution fee income

Sales of film rights

Sales of video products

Service income

Production fee income

Receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business

Hotel service income

8. OTHER REVENUE

RITHE A
e AT R R BB KA

B WA

e B E A RIERBERA
HAOF B WA

B B A

Hp i A

Bank interest income

Interest income receivable from
convertible notes

Rental income

Management fee income from associates

Other interest income

Dividend income

9. OTHER INCOME

B 5 18 UK 55 SR (E 5 18
2 EE

T B0 I 40 2245 7 3
BEME  BBRR
25

Hip

Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables
Gain on redemption of convertible notes
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Other
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—22/\5 Pt L I
2008 2007
FHExT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
10,285

- 48,672

1 13

365 300
4,914 5,035
203,327 -
- 14,046
227,747 78,351
—EENF ZEELF
2008 2007
FHT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
1,456 3,587

40 228

312 240
4,860 4,860

1 82

1,251 79
7,920 9,076
225 Pt LI
2008 2007
FTHET FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
95 -
39,000 2,315

- 107

4,892 6,463
43,987 8,885
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10. FINANCE COSTS

AREFNERER
ARRERZHEERNS
ARAFANEHER
ZIRITIEER B
TEARBFENEH
BEZRITEENR
AREFNERER
ZEMBERF L

BRBLATER R (B #E)

BRBATEF, (B18) EMB TSR :

Imputed interest on convertible notes
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on bank borrowing wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on bank borrowing not wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on other loan wholly
repayable within five years

225 P I
2008 2007
TR Tt
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
13,729 1,501
17,746 11,228

47 91

- 7

31,522 12,827

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

charging:

EXRE (BREEMKAK)
i

2 B0 B =

FERA (BEHEEKL)
ME - BRRRETE

ME iz #iH

S BE &5 18 % AR

JE i — I HE & A7)
TRRERAEZ
BEHE s AT EEZES
FREENEZKE
BB

BB RMFEAX (Hat15)
BRRKEEARRIALZ
ERERREER

Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales)
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories (included in cost of sales)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Net foreign exchange losses
Change in fair value in respect of conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivable from an associate
Operating lease rental in respect
of rented premises
Employee benefit expenses (note 15)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
amount due from associates
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2008

TER
HK$’000

18,593
610

2,592

219
279

2,447
32,774

25,179

Profit/(loss) before taxation has been arrived at after

2007
TAET
HK$’'000

43,747
633

8,442

15,424

1,109

50

3,644
36,985

14,975
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12. BIEE R (Z8) 12. TAXATION CREDIT/(CHARGE)
—EBENE ZETLF
2008 2007
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BIEIK R (8) T The taxation credit/(charge) is as follow:
Hih AR R 2 AEATHIE - Current tax in other jurisdictions:
REEZEE Provision for the year (3) (15)
BEFERETR Under provision in prior years - (358)
3) (373)
BERIA Deferred tax:
KEE Current year 2,444 (1,578)
2,441 (1,951)
HRARBIRERB AR EIMAEARE ZE No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
REBEN K ZEERBENE 2EET A AR hE for both years as the Company and its subsidiaries
MEBE WTERHEMEEZ2EFENESHED have no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
B o taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax
losses brought forward.
BB NIF T ARF [E b 51 FE R B m 71216.5% Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007:
ZETEFATS%)AE AT N =T 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
ZANEREBREEHRL  BENEHMEH17.5% With effect from the year of assessment 2008/2009, the
Y8 216.5% © Hong Kong Profits Tax has been reduced from 17.5% to
16.5%.
HEMa ZR s MEREM EERBR ZEBTHE Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
tE o rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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12. ﬁ,lﬁjﬁﬁ/ (iﬁ‘ﬁ) (éég 12. TAXATION CREDIT/(CHARGE) (Continued)
FR - AREAWNARAGE N (B1E) 4 The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
BRZHIEINT ¢ profit/(loss) before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

ZEENE ZETtE
2008 2007
TER TET X
HK$’000 HK$' 000 %

BEBATEF (B1R)

BAMAERHEE
AHEZHE

DIEBERREE L
KRBT E

OB S Tupdi T

TRARBAZRBZE

AERZ M HEER
KRBT E
BAERERZAER
fhEREERZ
KRBT E
ERMAARRERE
WERARZ TRKE
ZHE

FRRBREL/ (XH)

13. RE

Profit/(loss) before taxation 63,149 (101,856)

Taxation at domestic

income tax rate (10,420) (16.5) 17,825 17.5
Tax effect of share of

results of associates (545) (0.9) 2,896 2.8
Tax effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purpose  (23,677) (37.5) (28,914) (28.3)
Tax effect of income not

taxable for tax purpose 19,681 31.2 9,772 9.6
Tax effect of estimated tax

losses not recognised (12,062) (19.1) (15,145) (14.9)

Tax effect of utilisation

of estimated tax losses

previously not recognised 29,466 46.7 17,254 16.9
Effect of different tax rates

of subsidiaries

operating in other

jurisdictions (2) - (5,639) (5.5)

Tax credit/(charge) for
the year 2,441 3.9 (1,951) (1.9)

13. DIVIDEND

225 P
2008 2007
TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FRHBRE

Final dividend proposed 4,790 -
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13.

14.

RE (&
EERBRRBE_TTN\F+_A=Z+—8
HFEEZREBREER0.001ET(ZTETLF
/) BRARINVNZZEZAF_A-+<BA
HZBAEER_STNFRALB AR - IR
HR B8 R B R0.001E T (MAEZHR) FHEA
FiR0.028 L (A Z4AE) °

REBAREBZARABRERBERBNREER
Z8

o

o

=
=

BRERN(EFE)
AARRSEEABESREARBEEF, (B
18) TR TRIREHE -

13.

14.

DIVIDEND (Continued)

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.001
per share (2007: nil) for the year ended 31st December
2008. Assuming the capital reorganisation as
announced by the Company on 26th February 2009 will
become effective on 4th May 2009, the final dividend
will be adjusted from HK$0.001 per share (before
capital reorganisation) to HK$0.02 per share (after
capital reorganisation).

The dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
have not been recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
is based on the following data:

—EENF TETAF
2008 2007
THET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SEEREAREERT Earnings/(loss) attributable to equity holders
(BE) 2R RaEEREE A of the Company for the purpose of basic and
FERBH, (') diluted earnings/(loss) per share 90,604 (92,547)
—ETLF
RH#HAE Number of shares 2007
(=7)
(restated)
HEESREERF Weighted average number of ordinary
(B18) 2 ¥ shares for the purposes of diluted
TS A earnings/(loss) per share 418,861,793 139,159,327

HRARRBROEHR_EZENFRAANBER
AEEREARBEERN, (BR) ARABEC
ZENF+ A=+ -HIEFERBRE_TZTL
FH A=+ —HLLFEZMNEFSE BB
EDRIRREREN - HRAR B RETE A
BREsEHEENGRAEN RS SRER
FHBELREENE WA ESREERF
(BR)BRBFABB2ER -

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the year ended 31st December 2008 and 31st
December 2007 for the purpose of basis and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share has been adjusted and
restated respectively resulting from share consolidation
which effective on 9th May 2008. The computation of
diluted earnings/(loss) per share did not assume the
conversion of the outstanding convertible notes of the
Company since their conversion would result in an
increase in earnings per share and a decrease in loss
per share respectively and thus anti-dilutive.
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15. {Eé%*”ﬁﬁfi 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—EBENFE —ETLEF
2008 2007
THER FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ExWe Directors’ remuneration 5,203 5,414
EZEe Directors’ fee 360 360
e RIEL Salaries and bonuses 19,077 13,134
LARRAD S 2 RIEBER Share-based payment expenses 7,463 17,660
BEIEATES Mandatory provident fund 400 372
BERMMAXL Staff welfare expenses 27 45
32,774 36,985
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
ARREECENH-RBUFRTES The Company’s board of directors is currently
R=ZHRITEEMEK - composed of three independent non-executive
directors and three executive directors.
FRENARRARESHE 8% /5,599,000 The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
BT (ZZEZELF:5810,0008T) ° & to the directors of the Company during the year
EEHE-_ZTEN\FF+A=+—HEZ was HK$5,599,000 (2007: HK$5,810,000). The
TELFF A=+ —BUEFEZHEN remuneration of every director for the year ended
T 31st December 2008 and 31st December 2007
is as below:
s LA BHELES WRR%HzREHE 48
Employee
Salaries Mandatory share-hased
- £1:81 Name of director and bonuses provident fund payment
Z2ENE CRECE RN CERrE YA CTRLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
TR7 ARSI TS TET
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 BGLEHIIN  HKS'000 EGLERIIN  HKS'000
mE®LE Mr. Heung Wah Keung - - 2400 2500 12
REERT Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany - - 160 220 12
FRERT Ms. Li'Yuk Sheung - - 643 634 12
HEERE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - -
0[5 Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - -
BEREE(MZEZLE M Fung Ho Sum - 2 - - -
ZA-AEH) (resigned on 1st March 2007)
ZEVEA(WZEZLE M Leung Hok Man 120 100 - - -
-f-BEZf) (appointed on 1st March 2007)
360 360 5,203 5414 36
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15. EERFBEX (&

(@)

(b)

EEZME (#)
ARREZEZHEBENT

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the directors of the Company
fell within the following bands:

EEAY
Number of directors
“ETLF
2007

£ %1,000,000% 7T

Nil to HK$1,000,000

2,000,001 7L £2,500,000/8 7. HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2

FRAERERERNARTNEEINHE
ERIMAREE R NBE R 2 BE K LR
L2 fE - FATEARRESHEMEM
B

hERSHMAL

AEERFANAEESTMZALTBRE
ME(ZETELF WMEB)ARARIES
H B 24,584,0008 T (ZEE L F .
4,804,000/ 7T) - I B R £ X ()3
R REAFEENEHK=FBAL(ZZZ
tE ZR)ZHMen T

(b)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during the year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2007: two) directors of the Company
whose emoluments are reflected in note (a)
above and amounted to HK$4,584,000 (2007:
HK$4,804,000). The emoluments payable to the
remaining three individuals (2007: three) during
the year were as follow:

EFTY¥A —=Tif

2008 2007

FHExT FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

e R E M ER Salaries and other allowances 2,220 1,328
RIRREFIET B3R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 32 24
RO Z 2 RERE Share-based payment expenses 1,891 5,349
4,143 6,701
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EAEX (& 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

IEBRRFMAL(E) (b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
H#p=-2(ZZZtF ZR) o HiE The aggregated emoluments of each of these
BB MeBBEHEENT : remaining three (2007: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals

—ETLHF
2007
1,000,001/ 7T 21,500,000 7t HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 -
2,000,001 7 £2,500,000/%8 7t HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 3
3 3

B E
REBRERHEDTE S ENEM 2R A
FROIAEMARESREF BT EATE
et ((BBELE) TR-ZFZEZ
FH+_A BRI THEEIRKESTE
([E:t8l]) - AEEHEEBREEHEAES
MEELTE - AEEREESEETH
FHRE A EREESAEMEBAZS%
®F o BF AW A EBR AETE 220,00008
T o HRREERELGEARARNR - &
BRAERIREHRERAIHIALE -
Al EE 2 BB BB H (A
BEENEEREE)BEBASEE - &
BEiE v EERAEBZEEYAF
B YH-—EBUEREELES -

FR - RKEFF SR E 2 WA R
BEETLT(ZTEZLF 50008 T) &
2 FEE 4 54000008 L (2T 4F
372,000/ 7T) ©

ERFRE 2 EBBFERE RRMIFE
TS BT % 33 0 B AT 32 2 AR AR N AT
K8 - RFIXBEE A RERRENEX
N—HEBHER  BURBHEE - A%
B 348 P (R R 2 % 2 SR KA T AT 8P
BM—BEDMZSEMEL AN -
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16. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under rules
and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all its employees
in Hong Kong and terminated the defined
contribution pension scheme (“Old Scheme”)
on 1st December 2000. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. The Group has chosen to follow
the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the mandatory cap of
HK$20,000. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated income statements as incurred.
In respect of those employees who leave the
Group prior to completion of qualifying service
period, the relevant portion of the employer’s
voluntary contributions forfeited (represents the
assets transferred from the Old Scheme) will be
reverted to the Group. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrative fund.

During the year, the retirement benefits schemes
contributions net of forfeited contributions
of HK$nil (2007: HK$5,000) amounted to
approximately HK$400,000 (2007: HK$372,000).

The employees employed by the operations
in Macau are members of the government-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government. The Macau
operations are required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government
is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.
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17. Y%« MEE B0 17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
E The Group
EEIE BF HENELE  GARKE  BEREE "E 3
Furniture Machinery
Construction Leasehold and and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
AR T TiEn ThEn Tk Tk Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost
RZZEtF-A-H At 1st January 2007 - 7316 1,246 10,705 37,391 3,842 60,500
hE Additions - - 5 34 230 130 399
HE Disposals - - - (3) (20) (498) (521)
RZZELF+ZF=F-BR  At31st December 2007 and
RZFE\F-A-H 1t January 2008 - 7316 1,251 10,736 37,601 3474 60,378
hE Additions 214,450 - - 324 378 - 215,152
ERREREY Deficit on revaluation upon
transfer - (1,179) - - - - (1,179)
BEERENZ Transfer to investment properties - (1,043) - - - - (1,043)
2Ba/ (2) BEHEL Transfer from/(to) non-current
ERBEE assets held for sale 274,196 3,049 - 514 (34,489) 195 243,465
b Disposals - - - (256) (638) - (894)
HEHBAT Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - ) - 2
RZEENETZA=T-H At 31t December 2008 488,646 7,043 1,251 11318 2850 3,669 514,977
2HNE Accumulated depreciation
RZEZtE-A-H At 15t January 2007 - 3470 126 9,606 35,642 2026 50870
EnigE (i) Charge for the year (nots) - 365 474 721 754 577 2,891
IHEREH Eliminated on disposals - - - (3) (20) (498) (521)
RZFELF+ZA=+-HR At 31st December 2007 and
RZFE\5-A-H 1st January 2008 - 383 600 10,324 36,376 2,105 53,240
Eng Charge for the year - 418 47 485 752 520 2,592
BEERENZ Transfer to investment properties - (1,191) - - - - (1,191)
BEERENEZERHEE  Transfer to non-current
assets held for sale - - - - (33,773) - (33,773)
HEREH Eliminated on disposals - - - (237) (637) - (874)
RZEENETZA=T-H At 31t December 2008 - 3,062 1017 10572 2718 2625 19,994
KEFE Net book value
RZZE\E+ZA=1-H At 31st December 2008 488,646 4181 234 746 132 1,044 494,983
RZZFLETZA=1-H At 31st December 2007 - 3,481 651 412 1,225 1,369 7,138

Mx: BE-_ZTTLF+-_A=+—-BLFE"
DEREREEEEBE T ZKHLITER X
5,551,000 T E EF RN EZIR - s BEHN
IR &I FE36(b)

R-ZEZN\F+-_A=+—H HEEIRELE
F 5 B #)488,646,0007% 7T %2,931,0007% 7T &
WIFEAEBETERITERZER -

note:  For the year ended 31st December 2007, depreciation
charge amounted to HK$5,551,000 of KHL, which
classified under discontinued operations were
excluded from the charge for the year. Details are set
out in note 36(b) to the financial statements.

At 31st December 2008 , construction in progress
and buildings of approximately HK$488,646,000 and
HK$2,931,000 respectively have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND

rEE
The Group
—EENF —ETAF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
2% Cost
n—A—H At 1st January 7,294 7,294
B EGHAR Surplus on revaluation upon transfer 7,562 -
EREREYE Transfer to investments properties (10,690) -
BRABEFLEZIERBEE Transfer from non-current assets held
for sale 517,568 -
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December 521,734 7,294
EYig 1 Accumulated amortisation
w—A—H At 1st January 1,652 1,487
FREE (W) Charge for the year (note) 18,240 165
BEREEREME Transfer to investment properties (682) -
w+=-A=+—8H At 31st December 19,210 1,652
REFE Net book value
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December 502,524 5,642
MaF: BEZZTELHF+A=+—BLFE" note:  For the year ended 31st December 2007, amortisation

DHERERIEEEERBET ZKHLE HHA X
15,259,000 7T B B F W 8 Sk - s B R
B 75 R 3% P 7136(b) ©

AEBNEEL 2 BEERNELEMOFE
HEEEFESFTOT

charge amounted to HK$15,259,000 of KHL, which
classified under discontinued operations were
excluded from the charge for the year. Details are set
out in note 36(b) to the financial statements.

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
values are analysed as follows:

—zz /5 JEEEEL I
2008 2007
FH7 FibT

HK$’000 HK$’000

REATHOFE BB L

Land in Hong Kong, held on:

R HIAE A9 Medium-term leases 3,067 5,642

BB ATHELFE 2RI T4 Land in Macau, held on:
AERAE A Medium-term leases 499,457 -
502,524 5,642
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*ﬂﬁiiﬂj%ﬁ (,M) 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
(Continued)
FE L MR #499,457 0008 L (ZEZHF - Interests in leasehold land of approximately
E)BIMBEAREEMERITERZER - HK$499,457,000 (2007: nil) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
a8~ B FIE 2 85 FF 218,021,000 T (— Amortisation expense on prepaid lease payments of
T EB)PRAFEERLEYE - Jr%;l%g%& HK$18,021,000 (2007: nil) has been capitalised to
BEET2AEIR BRNBEERE ZHEHMASL construction in progress under property, plant and
2190008 L (ZZEZ+F : E)ERNAFEEL equipment for the year. Amortisation expense on
AWAKRFE prepaid lease payments of HK$219,000 (2007: nil) has
been charged to the consolidated income statement for
the year.
*ﬁﬁ%% 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
rxEH
The Group
—EBENF —ETAF
2008 2007
TET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’' 000
n—R—H At 1st January 51,100 40,880
BRe: Transfer from
-~ BBERZE — Property, plant and equipment 752 -
—HE TR — Interests in leasehold land 10,008
REEEZ ORD) /8 (Decrease)/increase in fair value (11,930) 10,220
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December 49,930 51,100

REMERMBYEXGEMTHIEIGERD

Al (UFAEEZEEAL)APER_FTTNE
t-A=t—BZRAHMEETRHE  ZEERD
THRAEAEERIHFEEBLREUNRZ
B REVMEZHERSHATEIGHES (B
BHEMBEER)%E - DZ1ETEBLT%§/%EIJ

EMZ2eMBR2YEREERN (ZZZRFE
—hR) - W EEEETER -
REYE 7 BN F(EH#)40,880,0008 L (ZEZ

+ & 51,100,000 L) B IREA RN E B T E
BIIERZER ZEHEECRAENREEE2E
At e

Investment properties were valued at their open market
values at 31st December 2008 by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group who have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation report on the investment properties
is signed by a director of Grant Sherman, who is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
valuation, which conforms to the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties (1st
Edition 2005) published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, was based on the market value basis.

The aggregate fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$40,880,000 (2007: HK$51,100,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group. The minimum lease payments have been
paid in full at the inception of the lease.
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WEWE (& 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
AREEREEREERMES AT : The Group’s investment properties at their carrying

amounts are analysed as follows:

225 P
2008 2007
TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BEATHENZEZEBIEEME © Investment properties in Hong Kong, held under:

HhHIAE A9 Medium-term leases 49,930 51,100
= 22
mpﬁﬁ N E.I*Eﬁﬂ 20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ NN
The Company

—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
TET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
LT - ERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,028,888 30,708
R ZAERE Impairment loss recognised (30,299) (30,299)
998,589 409
JRE L B /&8 2 B 3R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,570,086 1,603,524
ERAZREBE Impairment loss recognised (986,223) (1,006,230)
583,863 597,294
1,582,452 597,703
FEWHB AR B EIER . 28 HEETER Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
H o ARAEERA ALRTEREZRBE free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion
TZEARERER - dut B KB R FRIES of the directors of the Company, the Company will not
YEFEBNEAZRIA o demand for repayment within twelve months from the

balance sheet date and amounts due from subsidiaries
are therefore shown as non-current.
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20. EABﬁE N —.HEE (/,/\) 20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
H b pE Uy E BB A jmlgn* AREEE Other amounts due from/to subsidiaries of the
SEBBE-ARAEERE R_ZTNF+_A Company are classified under current assets/liabilities
E-i——EI CREN BB A R IEZEEE{EEEE accordingly. In the opinion of the directors of the
HEB AT EERSR Company, the carrying amounts of amounts due from/to
subsidiaries as at 31st December 2008 approximate to
their fair values.
RARRZHMBARIZ B EAEDHRER The carrying amounts of interests in subsidiaries
ARE &8 WH2EBAEIHBRAREEZ is reduced to their recoverable amounts which are
ARBEREFENMEE ° determined by reference to the estimation of future cash
flows expected to be generated from the respective
subsidiaries.
ARBRZZEENF+ZA=+—BZ2TEWE Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
NAEFIBE NS - 31st December 2008 are set out in note 51.

21. %% 21. GOODWILL
EOoRTAREEER BN ([EEBRSENM]) Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating
ZHEBEDBEERERNOT units (“CGU”) identified according to business as

follow:
rEE
The Group
—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
FTER FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2% Cost
n—A— At 1st January 108,703 108,703
NE Additions 8,975 -
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December 117,678 108,703
Rt RE Accumulated impairment
»—HA—H At 1st January 79,641 49,500
EHERZREEE Impairment loss recognised 13,646 30,141
Wt+=—A=+—8H At 31st December 93,287 79,641
IREE Carrying amounts
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December 24,391 29,062
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21. BHE (&
[EENREN S
REEANANES  BERIEZETINELEREGE
- -MZBEENF+_A=+—H BEZE@O
BB EFTRERSE) DEWOT

21.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to the following cash generating units.
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31st December 2008 is
allocated as follow:

= LS t 2 A

2008 2007

FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BRRME Film production 15,416 29,062
B R IR 4 Gaming and entertainment 8,975 -
24,391 29,062

RAFE RARAREZRC2EBHUAEREER
EMTREFGEERARAETZHEEREFH
ERBYRREZELERSBU 2 ATREEE
VHANEEFREZELR BN AR ZHER
16 B 18 #013,646,000/& 7T + K i ) B2 1§ %2 T 4R 4%
EBZELREBUERZHELERE -

During the year, the directors of the Company
reassessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of film
production and gaming and entertainment businesses
with reference to the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers and determined that an impairment
loss of approximately HK$13,646,000 on goodwill
associated with the CGU of film production was
identified and no impairment on goodwill associated
with the CGU of gaming and entertainment businesses
was identified.
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21.

EE G

BEERENR (&)
BYRERBYERREZBSEEEN 2 A RE
CHEDNREEERSCESAENATHEATHERER
WK2EFRBEAEZTEMTE AFHERS
MEDNESEREE (ZTTLF:F) - tEER
XY EBAEYREREERRE ELARS S
g EsMHE 2 RATIERE - (FHEEIE
X2 BFFEED R BE18.20%K17.24% + I £
REBARARESMERS AT HI5ER
HEzEAReRE ((ReEESMBAL) - 5t
EXRcBMBAMREZ HMETRESTRER
A RZERRIRGE  FEZRUBELAEEE
BERBEATARRAMBSERZEAMETE 2
EFE ERERIAE - EFMERBEERNX -
EREARANBERFBEERRZAESTREZL
R OEELSBSBEMNEIMAE-—R-WEEXA
BREZA WRRERE@EZHTRER -

21.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film production
business and gaming and entertainment business
were assessed by reference to value-in-use calculation
based on a five year projection of the relevant cash-
generating unit with a zero growth rate (2007: zero).
Cash flows beyond the five year period have been
extrapolated using zero growth rate. This growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for
the market in which the CGU of film production business
and gaming and entertainment business operate. A
discount rate of 18.20% and 17.24% per annum for film
production business and gaming and entertainment
business was applied in the value-in-use model which
uses cash flow projections based on financial forecasts
approved by the directors of the Company (the “CGU
Forecast”) covering a five-year period. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections for the
period covered by the CGU Forecast. Key assumptions
included gross margin, growth and discount rate which
are determined by the management of the Group based
on past experience and its expectation for market
development. Gross margin are budgeted gross margin.
Growth rate represents the rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the five-year budgeted period and
are consistent with the CGU Forecast. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the industry.
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Aﬂ\E\}BﬁE 22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
rEH The Group
DA T Z FEF
Rights in sharing
of profit streams
FET
HK$’ 000
A Cost
RZZEZE+LF—HA—8- At 1st January 2007, 31st December 2007
—EELFE+-A=+—H and 1st January 2008
R=ZFTENFE—A—H -
U iE — KT B R 7 Acquisition of a subsidiary 989,205
RZEZNF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 989,205
2 RE Accumulated impairment
R_ZEZE+F—HF—H" At 1st January 2007, 31st December 2007
ZETtHF+A=+—H and 1st January 2008
RZZZENEF—-H—H -
ERAZRESR Impairment loss recognised -
RZZZENFE+_HA=+—H At 31st December 2008 -
IREFE Carrying amounts
RZZEZENF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 989,205
RZZTLF+_A=+—H At 31st December 2007 -
ﬁﬁ,ggjﬂgmgﬁﬁﬁﬂ = TR AR P IR 4438 H b — (] The intangible assets represent the right in sharing of
EEEVERELE 2SN EN EHERE profit streams, from junket business at the one of the
E]}LA&$E,}&§%,§+,}W§,§+@0 casino’s VIP rooms in Macau for an indefinite period

of time. Such intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment.

RZEZNFF+_A=+—H AQREFEZ As at 31st December 2008, the directors of the
EBUAERBEELEMPETHER QRS Company have assessed the recoverable amount
W ERES R FED RNz ENZBEREH 2 of intangible assets by reference to the valuation
BRE  HEEREE 2 AT E FREE - @55 & report issued by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
JE ° independent qualified professional valuers which

valued the right in sharing of profit streams using the
discounted cash flow method, no impairment was
identified.
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23ﬂﬁ:|\: Hj %Zﬁﬁﬂﬁé 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
rEE
The Group
—EBENF —ETLEF
2008 2007
TR FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RER ETERES - Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong,
mATEE at fair value 16,800 39,900
REBLTRaESFZAFTEENZ2ERERT The fair value of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
iz mE5EANEER ° have been determined by reference to the quoted
market bid prices available on the relevant stock
market.
B ETRBIE1200ME 2 R E R BERTE - & Disclosures pursuant to the requirement of section
BT 129(1) and the disclosure requirement of the Listing

Rules are as follows:

EEdt IE i AEERFERT FiE
EREH BIBER RS R 49 Rl RABELS  REBWH TEXK
Proportion of
nominal value
Principal of issued Proportion
Country of place of Class of capital held of voting  Principal
Name of entity incorporation operation share held by the Group power held activities
AREEBRAF BRE Bk LBk 16.79% 16.79% RELERIR
Daido Group Bermuda Hong Kong Ordinary R% - AER
Limited B K5 AT

MERBERE
Cold storage and
logistic services,
manufacturing and
trading of ice and
property and hotel
investment
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E-TTN\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

E L& — & Hﬁf} #é‘- NI 2 aJ '};% 24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
= E E LBZ — & Hﬁﬁ % NI FROM AN ASSOCIATE/CONVERSION
ﬂ}ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁq%Z}ﬁﬁﬁEﬁ% OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE
NOTES RECEIVABLE FROM AN
ASSOCIATE
rEE
The Group
—EEBN\E “ETLF
2008 2007
FTHT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FEU —FRIBE & N Rl 2 Al R R & Convertible notes receivable from an associate - 667
JE U — Rl Bt = R B 2 T3 R Conversion options embedded in convertible - 222
ERNE BRIk EIRE notes receivable from an associate
- 889

El—-BEBEQT

Pl —RBE A E ZAEREE
ZUBRRER REZBRREE
Conversion options

embedded in

Convertible notes
receivable from
an associate

convertible notes
receivable from
an associate

THT THT
HK$'000 HK$' 000
RZZET+FE-A—H At 1st January 2007 - -
REBABRERE Subscription of convertible notes 15,693 6,807
EEFBBA Imputed interest income 124 -
BRAARER Conversion of convertible notes (15,150) (6,535)
ERAHREREANE Changes in fair value in respect of
BikEE, N TER conversion options embedded in
2 convertible notes receivable - (50)
R-—FZ+F+=-A=+—-H At 31st December 2007 and
R=ZTENE—-F—H 1st January 2008 667 222
EEFBBA Imputed interest income 40 -
& Disposal (707) (222)

RZZENF+-A=t—H

At 31st December 2008
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REBEE-_ZET+FE+_A=+—BILFE &

A2 & & Wi B2 F]Classical Statue Limited
[CSL) T3 7% - BA22,500,0005% 7T 2 B 15 )
BLEERERBERAF(IKRE]) RBELASHE
25,000,000/ 7T 2 AT R Z 8 ([REA#H R ZE
B REZRMDVAZTEIZER L o RER
BREEATESRER - —FRA-TN
HEE - Y15 E R ER0.338 T (Al THE) -
BRIEFRBERNIERE TRIRBER T —_F
FAZ+TMA  ZEESEHEERHRERZX
BB EIEAR SR 2 100% B EIK BT -

K3

MN-ZBTLFENATHEB  RARITHEHGBRRE
i1 48 € %824,000,0008 L2 K E A R RiHE B &
#A72 727 272l RE[ 5 -

RZBZENFNA+TNR  AEECDHECSLE
B R W ARTTERETRBERE -

24.

it Notes to the Financial Statements
NFE+Z—A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
FROM AN ASSOCIATE/CONVERSION
OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE
NOTES RECEIVABLE FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2007, Classical
Statue Limited (“CSL"),
the Company, entered into an agreement to subscribe

a wholly owned subsidiary of

convertible notes (“Brilliant Arts CN”) with an principal
amount of HK$25,000,000 from Brilliant Arts Multi
Media Holding Limited (“Brilliant Arts”) at a price of
HK$22,500,000. Brilliant Arts has its shares listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. The
Brilliant Arts CN carries zero coupon and will mature on
24th May 2012. The initial conversion price is HK$0.33
per share (subject to adjustment). Unless previously
converted or lapsed, Brilliant Arts will redeem the
Brilliant Arts CN on 24th May 2012 at the redemption
amount which is 100% of the principal amount of
outstanding Brilliant Arts CN.

On 15th June 2007,
its conversion rights and principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 Brilliant Arts CN were converted into
72,727,272 shares of Brilliant Arts.

the Company exercised

On 18th August 2008, the Group disposed the entire
interest in CSL and the outstanding Brilliant Arts CN.
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

IS A REERE (W ita)
BB (Bitb)

Em 2 2FE

(a) EEBREANEEFE

Share of net assets of associates (Note a)
Goodwill (Note b)

Fair value of listed shares

(a) Share of net assets of associates

R—H—H

AEBE RS (BR), 87
LE-2iip

i) NCIE S

WRELE (M iFc)

1R U B8 R #2917 % A% A
=

E—SERER

JE(H B2 QA

s — R

d N
GAEE
R (HiFd)

R+-—A=+—H

At 1st January

(Loss)/profit attributable to the Group
Discount on acquisition

Share of results of associates

Deemed disposal (Note c)

Initial acquisition of 29.17% equity interest
in Brilliant Arts

Further investment in associates

Share of changes in reserves of associates

Disposal of an associate (Note d)

At 31st December
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rEE

The Group
—EBENF —ETLHF
2008 2007
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
- 329,678
- 45,470
- 375,148
- 150,353
—2BNF —ETLF
2008 2007
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
329,678 143,346
(3,303) 16,548
- 40,100
(3,303) 56,648
(16,123) (19,849)
- 3,616
- 130,729
12,061 15,188
(322,313) -
(326,375) 129,684
- 329,678
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25. REE& NEIREZR (& 25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)y ®HE (b)  Goodwill
—EENE ZEELF
2008 2007
FTER FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
m—A—H At 1st January 45,470 54,767
WRELRE (W) Deemed disposal (Note ¢) (18,176) (29,895)
TR BE R E29.17% /AN Initial acquisition of 29.17% equity interest

= in Brilliant Arts - 20,514
E—SPRENBE AT Further investments in associates - 84
HE— % NA] (f/i7Fd) Disposal of an associate (Note d) (27,294) -
®n+=—A=+—H At 31st December - 45,470

B 18 B 3 Impairment test

REBEE-ZZ+F+-A=1+—H R&
EHrHEREERAR([FREKRE]
ZAIWEEBDRBERBEEETH
HoBRERNRMNE  RERPEERE
ERABEEAMERUBRES A A10%
216.14% » It T LAZR R B Z 5 P 8k R
ERFHEcMBEAMGECRERE
TER o 18 R FHAR 2 IR & % = 18R A BA
RERPEERREDNIRERIEET%E
REHE - GEMBIEAMAZ B ZE
SREBUADNPREZBEBRRRMEE - =8
BERBEEMNE BRERFEE - 19H
AEBEERERBATLABRIEMSER
ZTERMEE - EMETDAEENE - 15
RERNAETEREBEAERERSR
B2EE WHEGKBEN R TEED
MRl R R TS AR 2 e R .
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For the year ended 31st December 2007, the
recoverable amount of the goodwill of Brilliant
Arts and China Star Investment Holdings Limited
(“China Star Investment”) were assessed by
reference to value-in-use calculation. For the
purpose of impairment testing, a discount
rate of 10% and 16.14% for Brilliant Arts and
China Star Investment per annum was applied
respectively in the value-in-use models which
use cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period have been
extrapolated using zero and a steady 7% growth
rate for Brilliant Arts and China Star Investment
respectively. There are a number of assumptions
and estimates involved for the preparation of
the cash flow projections for the period covered
by the financial forecasts. Key assumptions
include gross margin, growth rate and discount
rate which are determined by the management
of the Group based on past experience and
its expectation for market development. Gross
margin are budgeted gross margin. Growth rate
represents the rate used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the five-year budgeted period
and are consistent with the financial forecast.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the industry.
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

25. M DB (&

(c)

(d)

RREZER
N-ZBEENE—-—A-+N\B R&EH—
¥ L% = 77 8 17180,000,0000% B 13 -
RE D BT A B423,853,908/)% 1% =
603,853,908f% c H It - AEBE N RE 2
R H25.74%H EE18.07% - B B E
BamXETHAAEHEEBZE AR -

HEFRERE
REBEEZZZLF+ZA=+—8H1
FE HEEREFBRARBELRTYH
1,303,426,0008% B £ % & 2 ¥ x 1) (&8
ERTREUAIRTFEELET KRG
w2 At AEBERFHEEREZ
BmEEE i AEEUNBRED
33,181,000/ ST fE AF M HiE — H U EF
HEREZRD AEETEFHERE
CARBRE(EEARTHAHEEEW
RIRERNDEE —REERD) RBEHLLR
BRI REA 492,177,000 7T ° Lt
BHEARBOAEERPHEERE 2 &
M344%RE_TE+F+-_A=1+—H
£29.9% °

RZBEZNFHRA+T=0 ARFEZ2E
Bt B A A]China Star Entertainment (BVI)
Limitedf 78 2 8] 2 £ 2 EGlenstone
Investments Limiteds] 32 — 1) B & #
# L€ N {E330,567,00008 T &
Classical Statue Limited ([CSL]) 22 &
BEITRA-CSLZEZEENTHER
% 258,360,6 121D - AP EIERER
W B EIE #ITARAR 229.90% ° % H &
FHER_ZENFNATNBEK -
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(c)

(d)

Interest in Brilliant Arts

As at 28th January 2008, Brilliant Arts had
issued 180,000,000 shares to an independent
third party which increased the issued share
capital of Brilliant Arts from 423,853,908 shares
to 603,853,908 shares. As a result, the Group’s
interest in Brilliant Arts was diluted from 25.74%
to 18.07%. Such dilution of interest resulted
Brilliant Arts ceased to be an associate of the
Group.

Interest in China Star Investment

During the year ended 31st December 2007,
China Star Investment issued approximately
1,303,426,000 new shares of China Star
Investment (after considering the effect of
consolidation of 10 shares into 1 new share
of China Star Investment) through open offer,
placing and exercise of options. As a result,
the Group’s interest in China Star Investment
was diluted. Moreover, the Group acquired
further equity interest in China Star Investment
in the open market at a total consideration of
approximately HK$33,181,000. The Group has
also subscripted its entitlement and applied
for excess subscription for an aggregate
amount of HK$92,177,000 in the open offer
of China Star Investment on the basis of one
offer share for every two existing shares held
on the record date. The aggregate effect of the
above decreased the Group interest in China
Star Investment from 34.4% to 29.9% as at 31st
December 2007.

On 13th May 2008, the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary, China Star Entertainment
(BVI) Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Glenstone Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company
to dispose the entire issued share capital of
Classical Statue Limited (“CSL”) for a cash
consideration of HK$330,567,000. CSL's major
assets are the 58,360,612 shares of China Star
Investment, representing 29.90% of the issued
share capital of China Star Investment at date of
agreement. The disposal had completed on 18th
August 2008.
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25. E@Hﬁ,‘ f'—‘ﬁ n ﬁj *Eﬁ (/ég 25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
FTERERNARZTNFTA=FT—HZF Details of the principal associates at 31st December
HEAM ES2 2008 are set out in note 52.
UTHERSEAEREIEBRENRKEERES The following details have been extracted from the
M mx audited consolidated financial statements of the Group’s

significant associates:

—EENE ZEELF

2008 2007

THT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BER Turnover 2,000 61,552
BREAT (BB EF (Loss)/profit before taxation (20,281) 29,677

AEBEGRTE (BE) %5 (Loss)/profit after taxation attributable

to the Group (3,303) 16,548

EREBEE Non-current assets - 933,816
REEE Current assets - 700,329
FRBAE Non-current liabilities - (366,949)
mEAE Current liabilities - (181,981)
BEFE Net assets - 1,085,215
REBEGLEEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group - 329,678

26. B 26. INVENTORIES
rEE
The Group

—EENF ZTETLF

2008 2007

THExT FET

HK$ 000 HK$’ 000

LK & Finished goods 399 301
N2 5B EL1950008 L (ZEZ+ F Included above are finished goods of HK$195,000
197,000/ 7T ) LAR] B30 F(E 51 BR 2 B4k @ © (2007: HK$197,000) which are carried at net realisable

values.
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== B
%Eﬁﬁﬁ*& 27. FILM RIGHTS
rEE The Group
FAT
HK$’ 000
ﬁEZF Cost
W_EET+E—-H—H At 1st January 2007 637,858
A= Additions 13,967
HE Disposals (348,249)
RZZZLFE+A=+—AK At 31st December 2007 and 1st January 2008
—EEN\F—-A—H 303,576
NE Additions 7,309
LB R Expired (88)
RZZZENF+ZH=+—H At 31st December 2008 310,797
B REE Amortisation and impairment
RZTTLF—H—H At 1st January 2007 540,431
REFEH Amortised for the year 43,747
ERAZREBE Impairment loss recognised 16,850
H 5 B T 8 Eliminated on disposals (348,249)
RZETEF+ZA=+—AK At 31st December 2007 and 1st January 2008
ZENF—-HA—HR 252,779
$¢f§%ﬁ$ﬁ Amortised for the year 18,593
ERRZRERBE Impairment loss recognised 9,760
LB R Expired (88)
RZEZNF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 281,044
IREE Carrying amounts
RZZZENF+ZH=+—H At 31st December 2008 29,753
RZZZ+F+-H=+—H At 31st December 2007 50,797
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EEE‘H&*E(,,E 27.
REBFE &2 7%%5%%3%2957@%%
RERMTRETEERATDETZ(GE  EFHT
HE R Hﬁ%ZTW@é%’E I?ﬁmﬁﬁaﬁk%ﬁﬁi%
f i B 7B 2 R E B 18 40 /9,760,000 7T (=

TE A+ : 16,850,000/ 1) ©

EXRECTREERNE2EERERZFE
maFfl o EREEERTERFITRE18.20% -
ERRBEARREERAERERSAFZIUBE
BA(TEXERN]) 2AERERET  AFHRRSE
MEDZETERES - WERXIEBBER R
BFFEEZTHZERFHERE - REZ AR
5@:1%2%@Fsﬁi&ﬁiﬁéﬁiﬁﬁrﬁ&ylﬁfﬁj“ 1
i IERREBAEEEEERBBELRN
EEMmGER2BAMETE 2EHE iﬁﬁz&
PRE - BRELGANKEIFHRERR2ES
MEZLE HEFRAMBE T - FTRXR
BRbtzhl WRBMERBH 2B ERAR -
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RERER
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FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

During the year under review, the directors of the
Company reassessed the recoverable amount of
film rights with reference to the valuation performed
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent
professional valuers and determined that impairment
loss of approximately HK$9,760,000 (2007:

HK$16,850,000) on the film rights was identified.

The recoverable amount of film rights was assessed
by reference to value-in-use calculation. A discount
rate of 18.20% per annum was applied in the value-
in-use model which uses cash flow projections based
on financial forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company (the “Film Forecast”) covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period have
been extrapolated using zero growth rate. This growth
rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate
for the market in which film rights operates. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projections for the period
covered by the Film Forecast. Key assumptions include
gross margin, growth rate and discount rate which are
determined by the management of the Group based
on past experience and its expectation for market
development. Growth rate represents the rate used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year budgeted
period and are consistent with the Film Forecast. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the industry.

FILMS IN PROGRESS

BEREY Films in progress
ZUEHR B & UAB AR ] PT s IR (B RS 1B AT 2 -

&EE

The Group
—EENE —ETLHF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
18,379 24,948
Films in progress were measured at cost less any

identifiable impairment loss.
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29. gg@q&;ﬂ‘ﬁ;ﬁk 29. TRADE RECEIVABLES
BTEPZBREHA30E0H M - B FEWER The credit period granted to customers ranges from 30
RZEERAWWT - to 90 days. The aged analysis of the trade receivables

is as follow:

rEE
The Group
—EBENF T LF
2008 2007
FTHERT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
REZEERIERBR QA Brilliant Art Multi-Media Holding Limited
K E B A A and its subsidiaries
0Z£30H 0 to 30 days - 12
- 12
HAth Others
0£30H 0 to 30 days 22,721 885
31260H 31 to 60 days 339 2,784
61£90H 61 to 90 days 136 224
91&£180H 91 to 180 days 73 151
H#iB180H Over 180 days 46,862 51,644
70,131 55,688
B BSRENMER ZRERBE Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables (1,361) (4,034)
68,770 51,654
&5t Total 68,770 51,666
EEEBERRECEFERERZERDTOT ¢ Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:
61£90H 61 - 90 days 136 224
HBiB90H Over 90 days 45,574 47,761
@t Total 45,710 47,985
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29. BSEWER(Z 29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

1=

B RERFRERRE

Movement of impairment loss on trade receivables:

rEH

The Group
—ETN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
TR FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
»—A—H At 1st January 4,034 4,036
ERRZRERBE Impairment loss recognised 23 -
1 85 Written off (2,601) 2)
A 1 R T Reversal of impairment loss (95) -
W+—-_BA=+—H At 31st December 1,361 4,034

FEAESRREREHREEEEEENA
45,710,000/ 7T (Z T Z + & : 47,985,000/% 7T)
ZES ZEBERBESAIES HEAEETE
FUIEH REBERE AEETERZEEH
HREEMERD -

EETEZBRBER A REEZES  ARAE
FEEREIREEFCEEEZGNSELA

RBHE DRBETEREREERETRRERE
THEHARBHRERBEZZRE—SHERE
BEE-

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$45,710,000 (2007: HK$47,985,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the directors of the Company consider any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
credit were initially granted up to the reporting date.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company considered
provision for impairment in values be made in respect
of trade receivables to their recoverable values and
believe that there is no further credit provision required
in excess of the provision for impairment.
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30.

I?zéﬁ AN REREERR 30

e Deposits
TE T 5RIA Prepayments
Hitnfed 508 Other receivables

B BNFELEMEREFBEZEEERZER
FEERE -

EEHERBE Kt EEFRAZREAMTAOT :

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

AEE NN

The Group The Company
—EENE 5 = —ETLE
2008 2007 2007
THERT TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
59,644 32,237 6 1,426
486 579 215 382
947 3,974 605 -
61,077 36,790 826 1,808

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and
other receivables approximate to their fair values.

Aging of other receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

HBiB90H Over 90 days
ERERE  BRZFEKDER R 2EURE -
WEBERZEERIELRERE AEEALERH
ZEERFAEMERS -

rEH
The Group
—EBENF —ETLF
2008 2007
THERT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
947 780

Management believes that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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31. }Qﬁﬁﬁ 31. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS
RIBBLFNATRARZZZLFE+ATE On 16th August 2007 and 10th October 2007, the
AR B fE U EEBest Mind International Inc. (FBest Company entered into sale and purchase agreements
Mind |) & H£100% A BRIV E S 3 in respect of acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of
K& A1,054,900,0008 7t ([WEEHE]) °Bz% an aggregate 100% equity interest of Best Mind
400,000,000 TE R —_EE+F+ A =1+— International Inc. (“Best Mind”) with total considerations
B E S A - W EBest MindZ FFIER MR AR of HK$1,054,900,000. Total deposit of HK$400,000,000
AR ZEELF+ _ANBMEBTHEZEE was paid to the vendor as at 31st December 2007.
Details of the Acquisition of Best Mind were set out in
the Company’s circulars dated 6th and 7th December
2007.
RZZFEENF=A+\B KRBT KFESIE - On 18th March 2008, the Acquisition was completed
il BT X2 {7 2400,000,000/8 TiZ € E AEWE S and the deposit paid of HK$400,000,000 has been used
BZRE - BEFBEANM B HREMETS - as consideration for the Acquisition. Details were set
out in note 45 to the financial statements.
32. ﬁ{FE%?ﬁﬁ 32. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS
rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
THER FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EHRE Listed investments:
—REB LMz ERES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
BAFEE at fair value 25,713 16,600
REEH FMAEBREBERIARFEBIEZSR At the balance sheet date, all financial assets at fair
BEANRTEBEIER ZELTREZATE value through profit or loss are stated at fair value. Fair
BENZEEERTARcMEEABMEE value of those listed investments have been determined
by reference to the quoted market bid prices available
on the relevant stock exchanges.
33. "n % /'l\%lﬂﬁ§2§zﬂ 33. LOANTO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
FTAEB LRI ZEFAEERER - 28K The loan to a minority shareholder of the Group is
/EE’\TEHXEH\E&T\ﬁ’ﬂ FZHBRANEE - unsecured, interest-free and repayable for a term not
exceeding 3 years from the drawdown date.
MNTEIE—A&ER 34. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES —

34. FEUR
ART

e DR FASEERE 2

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amounts due from associates of the Group and the
Company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

— 134 —



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
ey E £ ER 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

W} % #t ¥ B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZN\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

35. RERRELEHEHR 35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
F&EE RADHE
The Group The Company

—BENE 2 —BENF —ZTAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
FERT TET FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FRRRITRS Cash on hand and at bank 19,025 2,049 3,559 368
EHFR Time deposits 119,120 20,686 112,020 20,686
Re RRITHER Cash and bank balances 138,145 22,735 115,579 21,054
FEHRBRITZE KBS BRITERNRIRZ Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
AN RYERE - CHFHEFIZEEREA—BE daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
“EAATE RIEAEBNBERSZTEmME - I made for varying periods of between one day and three
CREZEAZEPRTHERMEWERFE - BRe & months depending on the immediate cash requirements
BITES T EREEE AL EBEMEE - of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-

term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and bank balances approximate to their fair

values.
HIMEenEARMs  Re kR ZEERBER For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
TEhE2 (B AEERTEY) RESRER cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
FAIRR —_EENE+_A=+—BAERR-_ZEZT net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash
+tFE+_A=+—HBZBEERBELSEERTHA equivalents at 31st December 2008 and 31st December
WA EEABREZEBEEYENT ! 2007 as shown in the cash flow statement can be

reconcilied to the related items in the consolidated
balance sheet as follows:

~EH
The Group
—EENE ZETLF
2008 2007
TERT FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Re RIBITHEH Cash and bank balances 138,145 22,735
RITHEX Bank overdraft (174,826) -
(36,681) 22,735
HAARELERRDEEL Cash and cash equivalents included in
RekBFeFEER (HiF36) Non-current assets held for sale (Note 36)
e MIRTTHEH Cash and bank balances - 181,102
RITEX Bank overdraft - (146,516)
- 34,586
(36,681) 57,321
FITELZTIIETEFE (N F4.25EE5.75E) 5t Bank overdraft carried interest at market rates which
B e range from 4.25% to 5.75% per annum.
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36. BEHEIRDEE 36. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR

SALE

(a)

RZZETZNF+ZA=H AEEFI—
B LB E11,200,0008 THEHE
T EREEE Bt RZTZTN
FH+_A=+—H %ZEWE HERF
BEREEDDEARELEAE -

RZETZELFNA—HBH ARAAIHEAP
B £ 1% & &legend Rich Limited (F
EERE22EMBRA) I —H1H
FoOBRU ARFIREHE R SEE
il &€Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
([Exceptional Gainl) & &F 2 BT AN -
LA B 7 15 5% H Bl fiExceptional Gain#h
RARR A2 #HE B K K409,222,0008
JT - #8X {8 /447,000,000 T (22

& EI8]) ° Exceptional GainJii% & %
&2 7] E#ABKingsway Hotel Limited
(TKHLD) (AEEE2REXB L WEA
Al) 250% % - BEHEFHELARA
BREEARTR-_ZTZELFTAZ+TA
RIT7MBRR KRG E#E - WHEBR =
ZZN\FRATK - Bt - BExceptional
GanBBE 2 SB (BEZEEXEL) 2
BEEDDERORILEEER  MER
ZEEEF+ A=t -HZMBEER
BEDOERFEELEEEREE -

RZZEENF+ZAZT=H " ARAIH
FE 2% & Rlegend Rich Limiteds] 32
RIEMBALIERZHEEE  WAIKAE
Mo BEZTTEF+-_A=+—HILF
B ERIEREER ZEBENEERAK
TYEH R ECEET -
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(a)

On 3rd December 2008, the Group entered into
an agreement to dispose certain of its property,
plant and equipment at a total consideration
of HK$11,200,000. Accordingly, the carrying
value of these property, plant and equipment
was classified as assets held for sale as at 31st
December 2008.

On 1st August 2007, the Company entered
into an agreement with China Star Investment
and Legend Rich Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Star Investment, whereby
the Company has agreed to sell and/or
procure the sale of 100% of the issued share
capital of Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
(“Exceptional Gain”) and a sale loan owned by
Exceptional Gain to the Company amounted to
approximately HK$409,222,000 as at the date of
the agreement for an aggregate consideration
of HK$447,000,000 (the “Proposed Disposal”).
Exceptional Gain is the investment holding
company which holds 50% interest in Kingsway
Hotel Limited (“KHL”), a subsidiary of the
Group which operates the hotel operations.
The Proposed Disposal was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 24th
October 2007 and was expected to complete
in May 2008. Accordingly, all the results of
the group headed by Exceptional Gain which
comprised the hotel operations were classified
as discontinued operations and all its assets
and liabilities as at 31st December 2007 were
classified as assets and liabilities held for sale.

On 23rd December 2008, the Company entered
into a termination agreement with China
Star Investment and Legend Rich Limited to
terminate the Proposed Disposal with immediate
effect. The results of the discontinued operations
for the year ended 31st December 2007 were
re-presented as continuing operations in the
consolidated income statement.
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36. IFEREFFHEE (£ 36. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE (Continued)
(c) DEARBELHEZEERABENLEERY (¢)  The major classes of assets and liabilities
TEERMT classified as held for sale at the balance sheet

date are as follows:

rEH
The Group
—EENE ZEELF
2008 2007
FHET FEL
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M KR RERE Property, plant and equipment 3,758
HETHER Interests in leasehold land 517,568
rEITRE Construction in progress 274,196
2R Inventories 213
Z 5 EIRERE K Trade receivables 1,462
e ENRIEREAM Deposits, prepayment and
JE W 58 other receivables 12,773
BY—LEBREZER Loan to a minority shareholder 196,000
BekBeEEHEE Cash and cash equivalents 181,102
DEARBELHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 1,187,072
BITEX Bank overdraft 146,516
B S5 ENER Trade payables 2,150
JEETIEE R EMMBENFKIE  Accruals and other payables 4,170
BT D 8GR FRE Amounts due to minority shareholders 40,502
FES IR Tax payables 609
BEERIA Deferred taxation 80,888
RITIEE Bank borrowings 450,000
LR RER Minority interests 309,261
HEAOBARIELHEEE Liabilities associated with
EMzAaE assets classified as held for sale 1,034,096
PEABEHLEZEEFE Net assets classified as held for sale 716 152,976

R-_ZEZE+E+_A=Z=+—HB HEHEHEY
794,813,000 L 2 W% MERZE  HELH

RERTERIR CEMEREBRMERITER
TR o were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group.

At 31st December 2007, property, plant and equipment,
interests in leasehold land and construction in progress
with carrying value of approximately HK$794,813,000
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37. BRA& 37. SHARE CAPITAL
RGEE S8
Number of shares Amount

S —=zi+ @EETVED -TTif
2008 2007 2008 2007
TR i TR Fibn
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

SKREE0.05 T2  Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each

BER
EERAE Authorised: 20,000,000 20,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
R & B (A7) Share consolidation (Note b) (18,000,000) - - -
WRAEIR (H72b) Capital reduction (Note b) - - (900,000) -
2,000,000 20,000,000 100,000 1,000,000
BRARBERE:  Issued and fully paid:
R—HA—H At 1st January 2,806,097 704,646 140,305 35,232
R & B (A7) Share consolidation (Note b) (3,998,187) - - -
WRAEIR (#772b) Capital reduction (Note b) - - (199,910) -
HUE B Consideration shares for acquisition
NRBITZRE of a subsidiary (Note ¢)
Bt (K#rate) 236,333 - 11,817 -
[e) Placement of shares
(Mizta, d, tkg) (Notes a, d, f& g) 1,488,000 646,695 74,400 32,335
AR (4 ite) Rights issue (Note e) - 843,769 - 42,188
1TE R AR (A7 321 Exercise of share options (Note /) - 78,285 - 3,914
HREBABRER Conversion of convertible
(Ki7th) notes (Note h) - 532,702 - 26,636
R+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 532,243 2,806,097 26,612 140,305
st - Notes:
(a) RZZEENE+_A=-+=0 AAFANURE (a) On 23rd December 2008, the Company allotted
FRIEFROA02B T MBI IR E BT KRBT and issued an aggregate of 88,000,000 shares
4 #£88,000,000/% A 2 B B 15 © FT {5 3B F 5 by way of placing to independent investors at a
#764,600,0008 T AR REHEFRIZERE price of HK$0.102 per share. The net proceeds
R AR ([EME]) %17 A £ % 560,000,000/ of approximately HK$64,600,000 will be used for
TZEEBBRBERE - subscription of the zero coupon convertible notes in

principal of HK$60,000,000 issued by Golife Concepts
Holdings Limited (“Golife”).
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37. WA (£ 37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

et - (& Notes: (Continued)

(b) RARBZZEENFRANBRITZBRERHI (b) At the special general meeting of the Company held
A& BBT —HEEIRERAMERAF on 8th May 2008, a special resolution was passed to
ZRAELTZ8 ([RAEA]) - approve the following changes to the capital of the

Company (the “Capital Reorganisation”):
(i) BHAaM  RARBRAPREES K (i) Share consolidation: every ten existing
SR EEC.05B T2 B BIT R ARET shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued and
B1n & Bt A —REE.50E TR M ([4 unissued share capital of the Company be
B 1R 1) consolidated into one share of HK$0.50 each
(the “Consolidated Share”);
(ii) EANHR : ARR 2B BITRABR (i) Capital reduction: the issued share capital of
BEARRBRAFFREZETEHR the Company be reduced by cancelling the
3 85 B B% Z50.457% 7o i B & - 46 mFT paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.45 on
ERETAMBROZERERESS each issued Consolidated Share in the share
0.50/8 7LB A £0.058 7T+ & capital of the Company such that the nominal
value of all issued Consolidated Shares will be
reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.05 each; and
(iii) KRBEERAFREEHBRHD 2K (iii) the nominal value of all the Consolidated
{8 8 8 1%0.507% 7L F & & R0.057% Shares in the authorised share capital of
T UL FE R A B1,000,000,000 the Company be reduced from HK$0.50
7% 7t (% £2,000,000,0000% & B i each to HK$0.05 each, resulting in the
%) 4 %E100,000,0008 T (9 A reduction of the authorised share capital from
2,000,000,000% & % H {80.057% 7T 2 HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
) c RAZHEENR-_TZN\FAHA Consolidated Shares to HK$100,000,000
NBEER - divided into 2,000,000,000 share of HK$0.05
each, the Capital Reorganisation was effected
on 9th May 2008.

(c) RZZEZNF=ZA+N\B TEEUHERK (c) On 18th March 2008, the Group acquired entire
f€1,054,900,0007% 7t Y BEBest Mindz 2 I equity interest in Best Mind at a total consideration
fi% 4 - E #600,000,000 7T AE & L+ of HK$1,054,900,000 which were satisfied by
384,000,000/8 7L A B 1T Al A fE =48 5 A A HK$600,000,000 in cash, HK$384,000,000 by the issue
1270,900,0007% 7T LA B 2 & 2% 17236,333,333/% of the Convertible Notes and HK$70,900,000 by the
ARFIBHRKRHH AL - allotment and issue 236,333,333 shares credited as

fully paid.

(d) R-ZZETZNFE—F-+MA  KQBIUEEH (d) On 24th January 2008, the Company allotted and

AREROI2BETZERABIREERLER
#171,400,000,0008% A" A R B 1 © FT1S 3R TBF
FE#7163,500,000/8 L AR MEESRE -
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issued 1,400,000,000 shares of the Company by
way of placing to independent investors at a price of
HKS$0.12 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$163,500,000 were used for the Acquisition.
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37. R& (&

Wit - (%)

(e)

RZZZLF+A+EH  ARBNUERFR
#17843,769,024% B §%0.05% 0 2 FT AR 15 - &
EAR-ZTLFETATHBEREMBRKRN
BB —IRERAR D - REERBR0.20E T -
FT 18 3% 58 49164,800,000/8 L Ty A A Uk B8 =
15 o

RZZEELFRNAZ+HEBRER-ZEZTLFNA
ZF+NH ARRNUEESF R SRR EAR0.40
BITROIBTZERMBIREERER
%17 42 51165,905,0000% % 13 %274,790,0008%
& 15 o BT 15 7018 )F %8 9 Bl £964,600,000/% 7T &
56,200,000/ 7T D BIEARSE 2 — & iEE
S REEREZA -

RZZETLENA+EtHAR-TZT+LERA
=+ 8 ARAUREEFXNRERI7TETZ
BB IR E E 5 B8 &% 17124,900,000
F% % 17 581,100,000/ B 17  FT 18 R IBERE A
£ 4974,000,000/8 T I AEAREE 2 — R & E
el

RZTELFERAATN\B KRR UNRER
B [%0.32/8 7L # 177 & ¥1168,500,000/% 7T 2
MRER HWETAREEEREEZ
F+_RA=+—BULEFEERENLA

A my
g S

¢l
o

gAY
e
==

BHE_TT+F+_A=+-BULHFE BT
HWREREATERS 2 BRE  UR1TER
B P%0.24275 TR IE A ££32,985,000/ ix 15 + 1%
1715 B 5 IR0.427% 7T R & $£5,900,0000% A% 17
RIRTEESR0.277E LR A $£12,600,000
BRRm-THEEREZMSREBIELNA
21,374,000/ 7T °
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37.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

On 17th October 2007, the Company issued
843,769,024 new shares of HK$0.05 each by way of a
rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every
two shares held on 15th October 2007 at a subscription
price of HK$0.20 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$164,800,000 were used for the
Acquisition.

On 25th June 2007 and 28th September 2007,
the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
165,905,000 shares and 274,790,000 shares by way of
placing to independent investors at a price of HK$0.40
per share and HK$0.21 per share respectively. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$64,600,000 and
HK$56,200,000 respectively were used for general
working capital of the Group and for the Acquisition

respectively.

On 17th April 2007 and 30th May 2007, the Company
allotted and issued 124,900,000 shares and
81,100,000 shares respectively by way of placing
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.37 per
share. The aggregate net proceeds of approximately
HK$74,000,000 were used for general working capital
of the Group.

On 18th May 2007, the Company issued zero
coupon convertible notes in the principle amount
of HK$168,500,000 at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.32 per share. These convertible notes were fully
converted into ordinary shares during the year ended
31st December 2007.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, certain option
holders exercised their option rights to subscribe for
an aggregate of 32,985,000 shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.242 per share, an aggregated of 26,800,000
shares at an exercise price of HK$0.277 per share,
an aggregate of 5,900,000 shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.42 per share and an aggregate of
12,600,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$0.277
per share respectively. The net proceeds from the
exercise of option rights amounted to approximately
HK$21,374,000.
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38. RESERVES

HRH%A B4 Bk REEN/
RHEE 0N BV V| FERE HHGE  (2HER) &8
Share-based ~ Convertible Capital  Retained profit/
Share  Contributed payment notes reduction  (Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
T T ThT Tan T Tin Thn
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
(Hita) (Hisn) (o) (Histe) (fiite)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note d) (Note c) (Note e)
AR The Company
R-E5tE-A-H At 1t January 2007 906,988 207,548 43238 566 316,008 (864,665) 609,683
EREE Loss for the year - - - - - (27,969) (27.969)
WRAZZFER Share-based payment expenses - - 17,660 - - - 17,660
EERH Placement of shares 167,953 - - - - - 167,953
%R Share issuing expenses (10,226) - - - - - (10,228)
FARSE Issue of convertible notes - - - 54,307 - - 54,307
ERmakEE Redemption of convertible notes - - - (566) - 566 -
RETAREE Conversion of convertible notes 134,409 - - (54,307) - - 80,102
StREaRG Issue of shares upon rights issue 126,565 - - - - - 126,565
ARBRER RN Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 30,761 - (13,301) - - - 17,460
RIZTLEFZA=F-HR At 31st December 2007 and
“5%)\f-3-A at 1t January 2008 1,356,450 207,548 47597 - 316,008 (892,068) 1,035,535
ERH Net proftfor the year - - - - - 92,565 92565
SRE-BHELTES Consideration shares for acquisttion
RERD of a subsidiary 2363 - - - - - 2363
EERH Placement of shares 102,576 - - - - - 102,576
BOEDHT Share issuing expenses (4,290) - - - - - (4,290)
FARSE Issue of convertible notes - - - 71,691 - - 71,691
EOUARRE Redemption of convertile notes - - - (33672) - (44570) (78242)
B Deferred tax - - - (5,354) - - (5,354)
ElRERH Share options lapse - - (1,394) - - 1304 -
ROz FER Share-based payment expenses - - 7463 - - - 7,463
RrER Capital reorganisation
-RAH - capital reduction - 199,910 - - - - 199,910
~HERhERR - share premium cancellation (1356,450) 1,356,450 - - - - -
-BR2iEE - set off against accumulated losses - (864,665) - - - 864,665 -
R-FE\E+ZA=1-8 At 31st December 2008 100,649 899,243 53,666 32,665 316,008 21,986 1424217
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(4

BE-AN-FBRERRDE (BFTR) AR
BB EER B RAAR ZRETRG -
ERBRABREIT T ARRMRE -

ARBZAFBABRBRTIIERBRAERR -
ZoFNATHERME 8 RAMKRZ 85 - K
DRMBEMBLRZHEAREE FERAR
RAN—AN-_FAKEEAFDEITRAT
BZ2EZ8 UWERR-_ZZT-_FhA+HERH
BEMMBEAERRZZE -

BE-AN-FERERTDE(BFTA) - 27
ZHABBRAESIR - AT ARRANFE
THOER TREA RS SRR E S A
H K

0] ARARREHBERIREREEEE
HmEEEZERE &

(if) ARBEEZAERBENKSMD
AR BB N E AT BN R i (B R
2K -

VAR 63 32 9 2 BB RE 8 - 488 70 R AR R I A
REGTAINEREEARANREZRE 22
FEE ESBOURLERARBREZA
FTEEAEE SREHZUBURKERE
Bz A FREEEEGRRE (HE) NED
AFEUEABETIRARMBEAXHER AK:
I AE R B = VAR AR S 5 2 SRR A

38.

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company can be
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to members of the Company as fully paid

bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company brought
forward represents the amounts transferred from the
capital account due to the capital reduction effective
on 10th September 2002. The difference between
the underlying net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
which were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company at
the time of the Group reorganisation in 1992 and the
amount transferred from the capital account due to the

capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of a
company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.

Share-based payment reserve represent the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair value of the
options over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and
is recognised as staff costs and related expenses with
a corresponding increase in the share-based payment

reserve.
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RESERVES (Continued)

(&
)

BEEBGHEREIN  MBETZATRER
BEDRRERED BRGESHN LESHND -
TABELAFEERRARRN (R FEED
ERRETATMEREBEZTSNEEE) M
BOIMBHRRARERNIAFEEREZE
HRGREZED BEBOHERDIZDEE
RAFIME - BP0 FRERN TRRRIRFRE
BEERBRER (ERSERERMEE) IR
BED (BN S EZREREER,RiTER)
Bl

RRBZRABRBEHEER -NANFEEA
7]332,640,000% B #1717 2 E (B 8 & % 1.00
BITHBESROGETHELE SR - RE
ERBEADRRAMAIFEI20EMBBRL — 8
RER  BRAHRREATBEINRARER
BzeBERBBELRABGE TR EERE
AUEER - RS E AR B &R
2R
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(d)

Notes: (Continued)

Under HKAS 32, convertible notes issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component
at its fair value which is determined using a market
interest rate for equivalent non-convertible notes and
attributing to the equity component the difference
between the proceeds from issue and the fair value
of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible loan notes
reserve until the notes are either converted (in which
case it is transferred to share premium) or the notes
are redeemed (in which case it is released directly to
retained profit/accumulated losses).

The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000 issued
shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
directors pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, the capital reduction reserve shall be
applicable for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off any loan
capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied.

“.:_'q:lﬂ!

"



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B E

E £ B AR 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

B #t % Mt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZ)\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

BEEARTEXRBRBER (REEMN X5
B)REHER(RBITHEZEBERFEH2.5%
ZEFRHEB) HBEFUAEBRREEN A
40,880,000/ 7T (ZZZ + 4 : 51,100,0007% JT)
ZIRENME MEITHEERTRERR &
BEFREARTFALHER -THERT DA
A 7N & B B T B 49499,457,0008 T (Z T T+
F:8&) 29310008 (ZTETLF:B) R
488,646,000 L (ZTT 4 : &) 2 FHE LT -
BFEREZIREER - THERERISEEZE
T EEE D H(EE25,000,0008 7T 0 EEHERE
REXEFRBAMEENEARG - IBEFTE
BB TLEE -

B
>
el
e
"
B
"
JeE)
i
m
N
=
B
i
B
(S
-

BEEE -

/=ty - 4
39. ﬁﬂﬂ- 1EI ﬁ 39. BANK BORROWINGS
rEE
The Group
—EENE —EELEF
2008 2007
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BEBRITER Secured bank loans 383,467 10,941
FEEZRHEBEET The maturity of the above borrowings
is as follow:
—FR Within one year 102,561 2,418
—EWE Between one and two years 102,631 2,528
MERF Between two and five years 178,251 5,681
HFEE Over five years 24 314
383,467 10,941
W —FERIEBHNARBARE Less: Amount due within one year shown
ZRIA under current liabilities (102,561) (2,418)
—F &I 2 KIA Amount due after one year 280,906 8,523

Secured bank loans comprise a mortgage loan
which bears interest at commercial rates and a term
loan which bears interest at 2.5% per annum below
the bank’s best lending rate. The mortgage loan is
secured by the Group’s investment property with
carrying value of approximately HK$40,880,000 (2007:
HK$51,100,000). The mortgage loan is repayable
in installments over a period of ten years. The term
loan is secured by the Group’s leasehold land,
buildings and construction in progress with carrying
value of approximately HK$499,457,000 (2007: nil),
HK$2,931,000 (2007: nil) and HK$488,646,000 (2007:
nil) respectively. The term loan is repayable by 18 equal
consecutive quarterly installments of HK$25,000,000
each commencing from the 9th month after the date of
the first loan drawdown. All interest-bearing borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate to their
fair values.
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BEATRRER
RZZEZENF=ZA+NH AQ&E MELucky
State Group Limited ([EHEHFE AL B1TAE
#1384,000,00078 7T 2 & H # A] #a fg R 4R ([ 7] #2
REE]D  ERWRESEZHBHARE - JRIRE
BEFRABE YHER-_Z—N\F=ZA++A8
HE - HREZEBR B BAZERAREREAA
REPEEZERENZARIBUEEERE
ABBRERBEFN 2 EREEZARE_T—N
FZATtH ZERBAATRIRERESR
030 (A PHAR) BAIHEBREES2 K BM
(1,000,000/ 7T 2 B &) K@ AARDE 2R o

AREREMEERESMEKDAERK - BEK
MZRAFEEFARBER  NESESETT
BHEBZDENERAREREFTRILAE -
BRTEBRERGBEKD  UWATRRERREES
FEat ARRAES

40.

UNSECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 18th March 2008, the Company issued unsecured
convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$384,000,000 (the “Convertible Notes”) to Lucky
State Group Limited (the “Noteholder”) as part of
consideration for the Acquisition. The Convertible
Notes are interest bearing at 5% per annum and will
be matured on 17th March 2018. The Noteholder may
convert the whole or part (in multiple of HK$1,000,000)
of the Convertible Notes into shares of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per share (subject
to adjustment) from the date either the guarantee profit
from Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, the guarantor and beneficial
owner of the Noteholder, is achieved or the shortfall is
received from the Noteholder to 17th March 2018.

The Convertible Notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The fair value of the liability
component, included in long-term borrowings, was
calculated using discounted cash flow method with
reference to a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note. The remaining balance
represented the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders’ equity named as convertible
notes reserve.
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40. EEBTBRBRERE (£ 40. UNSECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES
(Continued)
KEBRB AT The Group and the Company
TERRRE
ZEBEH5

Liability component
of the convertible

notes
FAET
HK$’ 000
R-ZZEZ+F—A—H At 1st January 2007 19,867
BT MR EE Issue of convertible notes 105,768
BB LR Converted into ordinary shares (106,738)
HENBHRXZ Imputed interest expenses 1,501
BATFLE Interest paid (398)
fEm Redemption (20,000)
WZEZE+F+-_HA=+—H At 31st December 2007 and 1st January 2008
kZZTZENF—F—H -
BITENS 5008 Proceeds of issue 384,000
FE 25 X 19 Equity component (71,691)
RETASZBEKG Liability component at the date of issue 312,309
FEXZH Interest charged 13,729
& [l Redemption (176,759)
BERFE Interest paid (10,889)
RZZEZNF+-A=+—H8  At31st December 2008 138,390
HBRZEAERN 2 BERFELNRT7.75% - The effective interest rate on the liability component of

the convertible notes is approximately 7.75%.
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i FE Bi 78

AEE
UTAARERR, X EREHARBREER
BRE

41.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The Group

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
and assets recognised by the Group and movements

thereon:
KEREAR EIEH REMEZ
ZATERE ARRRAE APEEEE @t
Fair value Fair value
adjustment Unsecured changes of
on acquisition convertible investment
of subsidiaries notes property Total
FEL FET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZT+E—-A—H At 1st January 2007 - - 1,888 1,888
EESSYON il Charge to the consolidated
income statement - - 1,578 1,578
RZZZ+F+=-A=+—H At31st December 2007 and
R=ZZ)\F-A—H 1st January 2008 - - 3,466 3,466
&N Acquisition of subsidiaries 80,888 - - 80,888
BITARRER Issue of convertible notes - 11,829 - 11,829
BOEERTARER Redemption of unsecured
convertible notes - (6,475) - (6,475)
R BB Surplus on revaluation upon
transfer - - 1,053 1,053
EESSYON il Charge to the consolidated
income statement - (476) (1,968) (2,444)
RZSENF+ZA=+—H At31st December 2008 80,888 4,878 2,551 88,317

RZBENF+T-_A=+—B AEEEEDH
408,266,000/ 7L (=T T L4 : 417,320,000/
L) Z KRB R ET B B R A 41K 8K A % Al o
AR AR AR ZEHN - M EERELHIE

ENG

AR ARBETRE B &R ZBF - JOE BB AR IR E
18#786,734,000/8 7T (= FF L4 : 81,870,000/8
T RELHIERE

At 31st December 2008, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$408,266,000
(2007: HK$417,320,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The Company

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of estimated tax losses of approximately HK$86,734,000
(2007: HK$81,870,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.
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42. B 5 BN KM

44.

BEIRNERZREDITOT -

42.

E-TTN\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

TRADE PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the trade creditors is as follows:

0%30H
31%E60H
61Z90H
91E180H
HiE180H

WEE% ESrEE REAM 43

0 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

B EE S Deposits received
FEEtIER Accruals
Hh JE < 500E Other payables

BN DBRR A

44.

ENAEELBRRZRBELR 28 RA

RERME -

rEE

The Group
—BENE —ETLEF
2008 2007
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
650 2,980
48 1,174
17 5
632 167
5,736 13,295
7,083 17,621

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

rEE PN

The Group The Company
—EENE TZ STk Tz
2008 2007 2008 2007
THER FET THER FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
53,731 55,123 10,000 10,000
14,245 3,635 8,123 2,387
1,295 7,260 874 2,611
69,271 66,018 18,997 14,998

AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to minority shareholders of the Group are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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45. LB[E% M{l‘% n ﬁ_l 45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
REBZE-_ZEZENE+_B=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31st December 2008
RZZEENF=ZA+NA AEBUERE On 18th March 2008, the Group acquired entire
1,054,900,0007% 7t Yz BEBest Mindz & #F A% & - equity interest in Best Mind at a total consideration
H #1600,000,0007% 7T JA B & X+ - 384,000,000 of HK$1,054,900,000, which were satisfied by
B ITTIA BT AR R & 2 77 3 2 % 70,900,000 HK$600,000,000 in cash, HK$384,000,000 by the issue
78 7T DA Fid 3% K %% 77236,333,333 A BR %I B =2 of the Convertible Notes and HK$70,900,000 by the
2Bz ARSI - allotment and issue 236,333,333 shares credited as

fully paid.
Best MindE BiOcho Sociedade Unipessoal Best Mind entered into a profit agreement with Ocho
Limitada ([ Ochol « At SER M E 5% 2 7 Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), a Macau
AR ISR FIHE - LD Z0chok /S ERF company engaged in the gaming promotion business,
FEOchoRBPIFN B IR 5 L & 2 Hdh — EAVIP to share 0.4% of the rolling turnover generated by
BRERMEE R € %8 20.4% - Ocho and/or its customers at one of the VIP gaming
rooms operated by Ocho at the Grand Lisboa Casino in
Macau.
TN FEERBEFBOT Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:
WA~ BREE AFEERE NEEE
Carrying amount
before the Fair value
Acquisition adjustment Fair value
FHBT FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Frii g F & B - Net assets acquired:
BIEE (Msta) Intangible assets (note a) - 989,205 989,205
WITRFHERS Cash at bank and in hand 1 - 1
B 5 EWR K Trade receivables 5 - 5
Hh JE A 5RIR Other payables (6) - (6)
- 989,205 989,205
Bk Goodwill 8,975
BRE(ZRAFE) Total consideration at fair value 998,180
LATRFI S f48KRE Total consideration at fair value
(BRFE): satisfied by:
BENBRERE Cash consideration paid 600,000
RAFEETRS
(Ff5ED) Issue of shares at fair value (note b) 14,180
BT RRER Issue of the Convertible Notes 384,000
998,180
WHEMEEZRS Net cash outflow arising from
R EFE the Acquisition:
BENBEERE Cash consideration paid 200,000
B 2 RIT R Cash at bank and in
FERE hand acquired (1)
199,999
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45. WK B A = (&) 45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
RBZE-_ZZENE+-A=+—-BHLEE(E) For the year ended 31st December 2008 (Continued)
Hiat - Notes:
(a) B EEER—THTEERS T RIRES (a) The intangible assets represented the rights in sharing

HEHp—BVIPEMZENAEBZ RN TEZ
TR o A E 2 A F{E47989,205,0007% 7T
2EBIUAEREEMHAEMPETHARAR
RABRBESREBFETZHERER -

(b) EREBREBEZ -5 ARAEIT
236,333,333/ & A& T {H0.05/8 7T 2 L il °
AAREBAR 2 AFE (RAKERSTE
BZBBEMBEER0GETTUET)HA
14,180,000 7T °

REBEE-_ZZNE+-_A=1+—HILFE  Best
MindB W BEE B R AR AR E B E B S F 4
203,316,000/ 7T °

REZ-ZZtE+-A=+—-HLEE
RZZBZLFE=A=1+H AEEUREY
231,777,0007% JC W BEKHL 2 38.5% % # ([ & 8
WHEFEE]) RZTTLFRA=TH A%H
i 18 DA {8 49490,000,0005% 7T Y8 B Triumph Up
Investment Limited & E Kt /@2 7] EGreat Chain
Limited 2 E I &8 2 7 — P W HEKHL 2 61.5% 1
w=([E-BKEEE]D -

of profit streams from junket business at one of the
casino’s VIP room in Macau for an indefinite period
of time. The fair value of the intangible assets of
approximately HK$989,205,000 has been arrived with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional

valuers, by using discounted cash flow method.

(b) As part of the consideration for the Acquisition,
236,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company with par
value of HK$0.05 each were issued. The fair value
of the ordinary shares of the Company, determined
by using the published price of HK$0.06 per share
available at the date of the Acquisition, amounted to
approximately HK$14,180,000.

During the year ended 31st December 2008, Best Mind
contributed profit of approximately HK$203,316,000 to
the Group since the completion of the Acquisition.

For the year ended 31st December 2007

On 30th March, 2007, the Group acquired 38.5% equity
interest in KHL (“Initial Acquisition”) at a consideration
of approximately HK$231,777,000. On 30th May 2007,
the Group further acquired 61.5% interest in KHL
through acquisition of the entire interest in Triumph Up
Investment Limited and its subsidiaries and Great Chain
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Second Acquisition”), at a
consideration of approximately HK$490,000,000.
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45, LB[E% WE NEE] (/{é‘f 45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
REBZE-ES+E+=-A=+—-HALEE(E) For the year ended 31st December 2007 (Continued)
REBRF_HWREEZRKE XEBHHF Following the completion of the Initial and Second
KHLZ Zf#ezs - HIB RS —TH W BE B IEFT N ES T Acquisition, the Group had 100% interest in KHL. The
BEWT net assets acquired in the Initial and Second Acquisition

were as follows:

WA 2 REE N EEAE NTEE
Carrying amount
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustment Fair value
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FrliE 2 FEE - Net assets acquired:
M - HERHRE Property, plant and equipment 48,881 221,865 270,746
TAE T HkERS Interest in leasehold land 87,796 452,203 539,999
FE Inventories 1,035 - 1,035
2 5 IR Trade receivables 5,982 - 5,982
%%  BRFEKREM  Deposits, prepayments and
FEYRIAE other receivables 425 - 425
RITRFRES Cash at bank and in hand 12,848 - 12,848
ERNEEZERARFIE  Amounts due to immediate
holding companies (81,004) - (81,004)
B S EMNERR Trade payables (892) - (892)
BlERS - FEFTIER Deposits received, accruals and
T oAt fE 5008 other payables (11,980) - (11,980)
EIERIE Deferred tax - (80,888) (80,888)
Pl & FE Net assets acquired 63,091 593,180 656,271
g7 Discount on acquisition (15,498)
640,773
BREUTHAFRZM - Total consideration satisfied by:
Be Cash 721,777
BEHEER Shareholder loan (81,004)
640,773
WEEMEERSRE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
FEE
ERRERE Cash consideration paid 721,777
Frik BRI RIE  Bank balances and cash acquired (12,848)
708,929
[RENE s Deposit paid (40,000)
668,929
BEERE_ERBEBEFRIANARAR_EE Details of the Initial Acquisition and Second Acquisition
NEANAZTFNBRZZEZSLF=ATHAEZ were set out in the Company’s circulars dated 10th
KA o March 2007 and 28th September 2006.
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46. Hj % WE n EJ 46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
REBZE-_ZEZENE+_B=+—-HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2008
RZZEENFENATNR  AEBURED On 18th August 2008, the Group disposed CSL, an
330,567,000 THEAQNA 2 HEEZENBA indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
AICSL ° consideration of approximately HK$330,567,000.
R-FEENFEF+A-++H AEBUREY On 27th October 2008, the Group disposed China
50,0008 THEARRA ZEE2ENE AR+ Star Advertising Company Limited (“CSAL”), an
EREBERAR(RHEEEE]) - indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a

consideration of approximately HK$50,000.
FTEEEEFEFBHOT Details of the net assets disposed of are as follows:
FEEES @t
CSL CSAL Total
TAT FAT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it EEEFE Net assets disposed of:
kYN Interest in associates 349,607 - 349,607
ME - BERSRE Property, plant and equipment - 2
AHEEZSRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 5,498 - 5,498
e —FHE AR Convertible notes receivable from
RRER an associate 707 - 707
e —FEEE AR Conversion option embedded in
THBRERENE 2 convertible notes receivable from
R e an associate 222 - 222
&e - BAFIEREAM Deposits, prepayments and
FENRIE other receivables 12 26 38
Re KRTHER Cash and bank balances 57 - 57
FERAREE 2 Amount due to the Group - (36,713) (36,713)
FEETIE B REMERFRIE Accruals and other payables (5) (7,221) (7,226)
356,098 (43,906) 312,192
BETEAENAEE Amount due to the Group assigned to
2B the Purchaser - 18,624 18,624
HERMERNREE Amount due to the Group written off
2R on disposal - 18,089 18,089
DER R Minority interest - (1,183) (1,183)
B Release of exchange reserve (19,707) (301) (20,008)
HERSREESMHEE Release of financial assets
revaluation reserve 9,073 - 9,073
345,464 (8.677) 336,787
HERBLR Z W/ (BE) Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries (14,897) 8,727 (6,170)
330,567 50 330,617
PATRFI A I - Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 330,567 50 330,617
HEZRSLFE - Net cash outflow from disposals:
BEREERE Cash consideration received 330,567 50 330,617
EHZRITERREAS Bank balance and cash disposed of (57) - (57)
330,510 50 330,560
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46. HEMB QR (&

REBZ-ZEENF+-A=1+—-BLEEE)
NEE-ZENEF+-_A=+—-BIFE CSL
FFHBEESVEARNEBERIMNEESR 5
Bl & AN & B F [Z & | 7 7k 85 18 4920,840,000/%8 7T
121,566,000 7T ©

BE-Z2ZLHE+-A=+—HLEE
RZZEELFNA-+ B AEBURE
#)315,000,0007% 7T H & i & X AIKHL 50% 2
RELABBAEEER MMl BEEBHBLY
45,471,000 7T F It - AEBRKHLZ R 2
F100% [ B& £50% °

PSR BKHLZ BEFHEUT ¢

46.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2008, CSL and
CSAL did not contribute any to the Group’s turnover
and contributed a loss of approximately HK$20,840,000
and HK$1,566,000 to the Group’s profit for the year
respectively.

For the year ended 31st December 2007

On 22nd June 2007, the Group had disposed of 50%
interest in a subsidiary, KHL and the relevant sale loan
at a consideration of approximately HK$315,000,000,
resulting in a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$45,471,000. Accordingly, the Group’s shareholding
in KHL has decreased from 100% to 50%.

The net assets of KHL at the date of disposal were as
follows:

—ETLF
2007
T
HK$'000
BT ANEE B EEFE The Group’s share of net assets before disposal 645,468
AASEES MY Expenses incurred by the Group (4,526)
JEGPTHEEEFE Share of net assets disposed (320,471)
HEBNEBHES 2 B(REEFE  Share of net assets owned by the Group after disposal 320,471
GRS EEFE Share of net assets disposed 320,471
RR=1 NSNS E v o= Loss on disposal of interest in a subsidiary (45,471)
275,000
BREATINFAZA - Total consideration satisfied by:

FTUCEN R & (R (8 Cash consideration received 315,000
FTHERRE R Shareholder’s loan disposed (40,000)
275,000

PEEAZREESRAFE Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
RERE Cash consideration 315,000
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47. HMERIE ar.

RZBENF+ZA=1+—H AEERERT
JIMREm 2 EENE T RREERNZ BR

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31st December 2008, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-

RERSAEDT : cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:
A%H
The Group
—BENE ZETLF
2008 2007
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
—5R" Within one year 2,250 1,566
FE_EFERFRN(BREEERTF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,151 1,016
4,401 2,582

MERORREARERAENERA 2 RS -
ROTERTHMERPRE  MTHmE2 R
SEETE -

48.
AEENGH O AMKEES T REREES 2K
ROAEMT :

BARERE 48.

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
by the Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals
are fixed for an average of two years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following outstanding commitments
in respect of acquisitions of equity interests in certain
entities at the balance sheet date:

EREROHN - BRREE

Authorised and contracted, but not provided for

EE
The Group
“EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
THET TR
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
163,680 654,900
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49. %Hﬁ%%%ﬁwﬁﬁiﬁz&

BER-_ZST_FRA-TtHBITZARAR
RBEFAELRBZ - HRER KLETARF
R=NARFTAZ+t=BRMzBREAE((E
BAGERE)) - YR T BT BRER S (T3
BAEE]) -

ERKRESS
ERREAEZEZGIBANT :

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ERES2EE 7R -

Z

m W
P

HEARAKETMKE AR ZEM[R
EE

=) o

\

2 IR B 2 IR 19 EIR M T8
BBA AT 2 DBTRA10% -

BRSEETER 2 BREMY &2 BH
LR MERBEMAR-282FRLZ
BEREMSHTRUBTZRNDEE T
BHEATE ZkM LR 225% -

49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 27th May 2002, the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on
23rd October 1996 (the “Old Option Scheme”) was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Option Scheme”) was adopted.

The Old Option Scheme

The major terms of the Old Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i) The participants included any employee or
director of any members of the Group.

(iii) The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options might be granted must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

(iv)  The maximum number of shares in respect
of which share options might be granted to a
participant, when aggregate with shares issued
and issuable under any share option granted to
the same participant, must not exceed 25% of
the maximum shares from time to time.
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49. LB REEEURAG /2% 49 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

2 (/g) TRANSACTION (Continued)

EERESE(E) The Old Option Scheme (Continued)

(v) TERETRZBRER AR LERR (v) Any share option may be exercised in whole or
BE B 2 ZR ek ER D 171 o in part at any time after the date on which the

share option is deemed to be granted.

(viy BREZTERTSHaEMEHET T+ (vi)  The exercisable period of a share option must
&F o not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of acceptance.

(viiy  ERAEREL B BRBI0R REMNE (vii)  The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
Mt (i) - WAARAZ BT must be made within 30 days from the date
AR [EIFRIA o of the offer of the grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company.
(i) BREZTEEEATIzZESE : (viii)  The exercise price of a share option must be the
higher of:
a. TEREEERHERER A a. a price not less than 80% of the average
T 5 AERRRGREN 2F closing price of a share of the Company
BT EBO% Z(ER + & for the 5 trading days immediately

preceding the grant; and

b. RRBERBRD 2 EIE ° b. the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

HREBEREFEER-_ZE-_FHRA=-TtH As the Old Option Scheme was terminated on 27th

wRiE A BEBRENREEEBRETSME May 2002, no further share options can be granted

Ho AR PR ERRERBRETZERE under the Old Option Scheme thereafter. However, all

M ARITE 2 BRERDABR WA REERE outstanding share options granted under the Old Option

[ B 5T 8 2 AE TR T LATT(E © Scheme prior to the said termination shall remain valid

and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the Old Option Scheme.
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49. UBRELEEUARD T 2R
% (%)

HBRESE
BB 82 T2 HEFRBR T

(i) BEEEASEEHARBEMEL K AREE
2 BRkZ 2R R 3R o

(1) (a8 FEAXDRARKRABEEL
REFHEMRAERZ
ERER (Gl HEaEa
Egl) cEMKERR
ARBEMEZERR A
AREEBBRESZAE
A RRMER Z EAHITR
FHTESIREES (R
BEMBIFNTES)
PRARBEENRIRE

g8

(b) ERBAERDZEREIMFNKE
NAEARAMEREER
RABADB T EMEE
Bl 2 EA 2B EBZ EM[
BB K2 AL

(c) FHEERZBEBEIFKER
AEARBEFEERR
A DA B BCRES
AR AR FAETEMAE
HZEMBEAA

49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose is to provide incentives and
rewards to the participants for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

(i) The participants include:

(1) (a) any directors or proposed
director (whether executive or
non-executive including any
independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed
employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the
Company and any entity in which
the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds any equity interests
(collectively the “Interested
Group”) or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;

(b) any individual for the time
being seconded to work for any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(c) any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;
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49. LA % *E ﬁ EA B fﬁ 3'2 1‘]‘ z 2> 49. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
5 (&) TRANSACTION (Continued)
HERETE (E) The New Option Scheme (Continued)
(ii) SEERE (B) (i) The participants include: (Continued)
(1 (d) FHEERZEBEEKER (1)  (d) any business or joint venture
A AAREMEERR partner, contractor, agent or
SAARREEZREIE representative of any member

TEMARZEHREE
B ANE REES
K

of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

M5 E Ew EEEAKE
RAIKARBEAEZR
RBEARAEEZRTE
B2 EAARREREZ
FAFREAE  HME -
BEACERE -#E8.

B UAREMHARAF
RMMEEAR - #FHAR
A-BERAA - ’BER
G- SN I S /N

REZERBRA

,awi

)

o

FFFAEDREBIAKE
RAEIHA DB EMEER
RIMARBETERRE
2 EMRARREES
EREE RO H
mi%%ZEﬂ1ﬁﬁ
ES GREABIFEEL
A
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any research assistant, technician,
adviser, consultant, artist, actor,
actress of, and any research
company, technical support
company, advisory company,
consultancy company, production
company, advertising company,
distribution company and
professional services company
to any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;

any supplier, producer, director
or licensor of films, television
programmes, video features,
goods or services to any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial

shareholder of the Company;



(ii)

(iii)
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49. UBRELEEUARD T 2R
% (%)

MR B ()

SHEEQE: (B)

(1) (@9 ®‘RARSEBEMNKXE
RAEIHA DB EMEER
RABADB T EMEE
Bl ZEMDRRBRES
ERHE FRHOE B
mAMRB 2 ERMER 5
AFREARA (BREFTE
BIRAN) KD HE

(hy HEERZERBIMKER
A AR A EERR
HMARAEERRES
ZEFARBZERMEE
SMAFE (BREEMOER
F): &k

(2) MHM—ABARZHELAEFAEHNZE
FHIES 2 ERAT -

RIBF BRI IR R 2 B P S o
2ty ERBEB TN BBAKR AR AT
PrEst 8 R M2 B BITRA10%  HZ L
PRAT i R BR IR K& L #7 - HATREPT
BIRE R A At 8 S (A7 L b B A pE AT
e REmERITRZBREMET 2K
MEREE  THEBAISCHTRNZ
30% ° WA F T3 A H - RIFHERE
R (EEH) MA BT 2 BREAR
#3514,30410 (AR A BN A FH TR
HE BT #40.01% °

49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) The participants include: (Continued)

(1) (9) any customer, licensee (including
any sub-licensee) or distributor of
films television programmes, video
features, goods or services of any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(h) any landlord or tenant (including
any sub-tenant) of any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company; and

(2) any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above
classes of participants.

(iii) The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the New Option Scheme
and such limit might be refreshed by the
shareholders in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of share
options available for issue under the New Option
Scheme (after refreshment) at the date of this
annual report was 514,304, which represented
approximately 0.01% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of this annual report.
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49.

49. UBRELEEUARD T 2R
% (%)

MR B ()

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

RIFEEGSRRME TREGEL2HEER
TZEANERZERE(BEBTE
B R RTE 2 ERE) T AT
FTes T RGBT 2 R B - TEBBT
REBEITRM21% -

TEHHESTENRDBRERRE - 1§
ERNANSBARE AR +F -

BREFERARTERREHAREBRER
SEREN  UEHATFEERENTENE
KAEZ&ERA -

EEANARE LB HE0RAENE
Bk (i) - XMARR LM 1ETA
AR EFRIE

BREZOTEEAATIIZES

a. RERHMERARAERENZ

W fE

b,  FEEHAMAEERSAAR
AR 2 FHRTE &

c. AREEREMN 2 HE -

FRRE A ERARSREE -
HA-+ABLETERER -
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in 12
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue from time to time unless the same is
approved by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the date of grant;

b. the average closing price of a share
of the Company for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption until 26th May 2012.
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49. UREEE LR B /2% 49. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

2 (/g) TRANSACTION (Continued)

TEREBARAREIERE EF A£EEER The following table discloses details of the Company’s
HMWSEEMBEAQNBREZ B RZSME share options held by the Company’s substantial
a2 E) shareholders, directors, the Group’s employees and

other participants and movements in such holdings:

BERES
Number of Share Option
Hog8tE
t2Rzt-8 Hog8ENE
HoR8tE R-g88NE 2R

SR -A-R RCERLE RCEMME REH HCERE -B-R HCSBNE MCEENE RCERBAE MR It

FEEE hi £ RiAE T ER BE  HATR B i Fag B A 4 4 B 8 HAR
Qutstanding
asat

Qutstanding Gramted ~ Exercised Transfer ~ Adjustment  31.12.2007 Lapsed  Adjustment Granted Transfer ~ Outstanding

Category Exercisable  Exercise price asat during during between during and during during during between asat

of Paricipants ~~ Name of scheme Date of grant period  pershare 01012007 007 00T category 201 01012008 2008 2008 008 calegory 31122008

HKS (Notei)
i (H)
RATTERR EERERE 2032000 2B03.2000- 27032010 1545001 VAN - - - 7895 1001088 - 900,980) - - 100,108
gz Old Option Scheme (2062000 02.08.2000- 0108 2010 e 47508 - - - B8 153258 - (4079%2) - - $63%
Substantial

shareholders HERETE 16.07.2002 16.07.2002- 15072012 19810" 21448 - - - 18964 U040 - (216,368) - - 108

anddiectors —— New Option Scheme 17.07.2003 17.07.2003- 16.07.2013 520 457,000 - - - 1% 496,13 - (446524) - - 49612
of the Company™*

2018075 - - - mer 21089 - (1971804 - - 219,088

RiTER™ iahErE 16.07.2002 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 198100 1109557 - - - BT 12457 - (1084117) - - 120457

Dirctor New Option Scheme 17.07.2003 17.07.2003- 16072013 50 2265000 - - - 196677 2480677 - (2232609 - - 248,068
of the Company™*

3304557 - - - 084 366250 - [331672%) - - 3852%

s 8| xR 05011999 (5.01.1999- 0401.2009 160 4 - - - 3 aq - ) - - 4

Employees 0l Opton Scheme 28032000 28032000 27.03.2010 1o4.590" 240099 - - - 2562 260,661 - (234,594 - - 26067

ofthe Group (2062000 02.06.2000- 01.06.2010 e 47508 - - - 75 45326 - (407,936 - - $63%

R 16.07.2002 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 fo810" 2219114 - - - 190,03 2409149 - (16828 - - 20916

New Qption Scheme 17072008 17.07.2003- 16.07.2013 5000 2285000 - - - 19667 240617 - (2232609 - - 248,068

13.12.2004 13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 4790 6,000,000 - - - 513612 6513812 - (B88) - (325,691) 326,601

(4022005 (04.02.2005- 03.02.2015 490 28110000 - - (4200000 207542 B%THL (4559668 (19.258,086) - (153078 1986713

30122005 30.12.2005 - 29.122015 2280 18,005,000 - (11.3%,000) - 66417 1181417 - (64633) - - 118,148

2.11.2008 21.11.2006- 20.11.2016 2550 40,0000 - (20000000 (8000000)  t0764 13027624 - (1724860 - B kA1)

50207 25052007 - 24052017 380 - 7500 (590000 - 187003 2354200 - (21167809 - (574844 1779.35

7062007 27.06.2007 - 26062017 3850 - 00 - - 12685 15676575 - (14108918) - (556388 1,011,269

8102007 2B102007- 22102017 1830 - 66170000 - - - 66,170,000 - (39553000 - (13000 5243000

21.08.2008 21.08.2008- 20.08.2018 0236 - - - - 21.3%,000 - 3500

G216765 108196000 (9290000) (10200000  TI064 1636789 (450668) (M3TEM) 21306000 (2083908) 34322319

AfpER FERE 16072002 16.07.2002- 15072012 580 4432 - - S 08 4B - (%40 - - 1818
Othr partcipars~ New Qption Scheme 1707200 1707203 16072013 s 70800 - - S B 781% - ) - - T
13122004 13122004- 12122014 40 e 000 - - S 1820 - (158%) S W 1

04022008 (4022008030201 450 1020500 - S L0 1285% 156576 - (1ameTg) S0 17692

30122005 9012205- 9122015 20 B - (500 S A0RETY 13461879 BN A ] - R KN

2111.2008 2111.2006- 0112016 250 4000 - (4000 000 TIOTIB 9770718 - (BT - -

BI5007 552007 - 4062017 367 - NEBm - <6 BB - () S TR 3U50N

70620070 27062007 - 26062017 3650 - 105000 - R 1/ A T Rv/A - (1001%) S TR 166

210207 B102007- 2102017 180 - 5 - - - 5000 - (mEmo) S 1340 6000

21082008 2106.2008- 0082018 023 - - - - 5B - 25

F90328  G4BN0  (BE00) 00000 BTN 13514041 - (106840 25E00 20398 401300

106065 19560000 (78285,000) S TBTOIBR MMAGRAR (ASS0GR  (BBTGTSE 4310000 - B
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49. UREEE LR B /2% 49. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

% (&)

*

*k

(if)

FARRTEZBEREZTEERBEERFEA )
TR & G T 1EE EE

REARBZIERRIEZAERELERR -
ES it Pa 1

REARRESFTREHEL AT ZERAE -
Notes:
RABIRODEE-_ZSZNFRLEERERD A (i)

Z W E R ER0.2308 T

ZEENFRAVEFREETE(CTSLF (i)
78,285,0000%) R (=TT LF - &) -
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TRANSACTION (Continued)

The exercise prices and numbers of options which
remained outstanding during the year have been
adjusted due to completion of share consolidation

during the year.

Represented the share options held by Mr. Heung Wah
Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the substantial
shareholders and directors of the Company.

Represented the share options held by Ms. Li Yuk

Sheung, a director of the Company.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant of share options in 2008 was
HK$0.230 per share.

No share option was exercised (2007: 78,285,000
shares) or cancelled (2007: nil) during the year 2008.



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

B E

E £ B AR 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

W} % #t ¥ B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZ)N\F+-A=1—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

49. UBRELEEUARD T 2R

% (%)

BUR A X 2 RBRX

RER N E 7 B 5 i 2 RSB 258 DA B 00 X 9 2 3R
A2k R_EE_F+-AtRAZEMERR
HEREMETREREZAFEE ERARFAX -
REBHAINERX 2 BB H2EMRERE
ZAVFEEEE -

W (53 AT EER - AR SR EEA
& BEARRAZBEMT

49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

Share-based payment expenses

Following to the adoption of HKFRS2, Share-based
Payment, the fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options after
7th November 2002 is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted.

The estimated fair value of the options is measured
based on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The variables
input into the model are as follows:

rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
FTHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
REtE A2 NEFIRE (BT) Weighted average share price
at measurement date (HK$) 0.275 0.28
MAEFHITEE BT) Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.236 0.280
8 HR R 18 (LA IN#E ¥R 18 51 7R ) Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility) 70.03% 55.77%
B s E (LAINEFHFH517R)  No. of years for option life
(expressed as weighted average life) 5 10
B BRAR B Expected dividends - -
2 2 ) Risk-free interest rate 3.019% 4.38%
REtERMBZNEFHRAFEE Weighted average fair value at
(B7T) measurement date (HK$) 0.169966 0.09

TRHR 0 70 DA B T R R (4R B8 R 2 P39 10 4 )
HREHRFE) REE - FBHRBUBERER
BEE -FRAZIBRRAZEDASH L FEE
ZIEFEEERTE -

BRETDREBERBGEMR L o R G LE
AFEERZ RN RE A2 A FEEFE M
Rz BREET SR L RS-

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options). Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share options granted.
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50. EXBAEALIRS

(a)

RZZETZNFRA+=8 ARAIz2E
B /& 2 B]China Star Entertainment (BVI)
Limited#2Glenstone Investments Limited
([Glenstone D AT —HE B sk - UK
& X f€330,567,000/ 7T ! ECSL & &b
BEETIRA([CSLEEEIA]) - CSLz*x
ZEEDPTEEKRE 258,360,612/ %
o ERBEEMPEERED HITRA
229.90% : 109,090,908/ KE R 5 + £
BRI R SRED EITRA28.68% :
VAR JE M SR 2 7K & 58 731,000,00078 7T
Z AR E % o Glenstone A AR} Z £
ZRE THRARL LT EREBC0%2
BamkAMEREFERABI0N L ER
(BARERRRAZHTEEREERR) »
CSLEEFIBEWR A LM ARAE14AZ AT
M2BAERS o

BUFRTEEER  CSLLERRETIIK
—REEESR FaEQEZME R IE
RARBZAREBBRBETL - CSLH
EFEHBURRN-_ZZNFLA+—
A#tE YER-FTENFNAATNBE
B o
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50.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

On 13th May 2008, the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary, China Star Entertainment
(BVI) Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Glenstone Investments Limited
(“Glenstone”) to dispose the entire issued
share capital of CSL for a cash consideration
of HK$330,567,000 (the “CSL Disposal”’). CSL’s
major assets are the 58,360,612 shares of China
Star Investment, representing 29.90% of the
issued share capital of China Star Investment
at date of agreement; 109,090,908 shares in
Brilliant Arts, representing approximately 8.68%
of the issued share capital of Brilliant Arts at date
of agreement; and a convertible bond receivable
from Brilliant Arts with principal face value
of HK$1,000,000. Glenstone is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and is beneficially
owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
and as to 40% by Mr. Heung Wah Keung who
are both the executive directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The CSL Disposal
is regarded as a connected transaction pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors confirm
that the CSL Disposal is on normal commercial
terms, in the interest of the Company and not in
the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
The CSL Disposal was approved by independent
shareholders on 11th July 2008 and had
completed on 18th August 2008.
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50. EABIEATRE (& 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) FERNAEFRRBERLETRINES (b) During the year, the Group entered into the

following transactions with Brilliant Arts Group:

—EBENE ZEELF
2008 2007
k=3 THET FET
REME Nature of transactions Notes HK$’000 HK$' 000
JEE 2 AT #A AR Interest income receivable
SEMBWA from convertible notes (i) 41 124
EERBEWA Production service income (i) - 58
ERRENER Film production expense
SUEE paid or payable (i) - 1,733
BE D HEKA Film distribution income - 21
st - Notes:
(i) REBFTZARBREBTIAARALZ (i) The convertible notes issued from Brilliant Arts
2EWBARICSLER - B A =& is held by CSL, a wholly owed subsidiary of
R EE S EID£9.75% ° the Company. The effective interest rate on the
liability component of the convertible note is
approximately 9.75%.
(ii) SHEEIMEZEBRET - (i) The amounts were determined at prices agreed
between the parties.
(iii) REEEME-_TTN\F—A=+NA (iii) Brilliant Arts Group ceased to be associates
BIABABARRAGIZHE AT - of the Company with effect from 28th January

2008.
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50 EXRAEANLRS (&

(c)

F A% E ETogether Again Limited
([TALD) ERIEK B AR ([TALEE]) &
THRINRS :

50.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with Together Again
Limited (“TAL”), together with its subsidiaries
(“TAL Group”):

“EENE ZEELF
2008 2007
=3 FEx FHET
XHME Nature of transactions Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
RETALEE 2 Management fee income from the
ERBWA TAL Group (i) & (ii) 4,860 4,860
B REZMHTAL  Artists promotion charges paid and
SECEAEHE payable to the TAL Group (i) & (ii) - 1,720
Mt - Notes:
(i) SHESITRECBRERE - (i) The amounts were determined at prices agreed
between the parties.
(if) BREARLZ T IRATALZ —RESE - (ii) Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany is a common

R_TZLF+A=-+=ZA ARAF
2EMWBARKHLEI Y —EERIB#E R
KHL=E Z % ®Most Famous Enterprises
Limited# F — % & % 196,000,000/ 7T 2
EXRE TEXZHWEFELMBRAUE
VAAEFT 2 BER 5 - EREE BEA -
ZERBRMALHTHBB=F

RARBYIFNTESHR  BRRER
SR8 WIEARR A FERKBIERET
o BERBEWE-—MREEGRT RS
ARAIRADNBBIBE 2 EEFZE - 2
BREVABIRER-_ZZTLE+ A
—Hi#tE YR —_ZTF+_A=ZHIE
HY X 78196,000,000/% 7T °
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director of TAL.

On 23rd October 2007, KHL, a non wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement to grant a loan facility of up
to HK$196,000,000 to Most Famous Enterprises
Limited, a substantial shareholder of KHL.
The transaction is regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The loan facility is unsecured,
interest free and for a term not exceeding three
years commencing from the drawdown date.

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirmed that the transaction is not
on normal commercial terms as it is interest free,
not in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business but in the interests of the Company and
the independent shareholders of the Company
as a whole. The transaction was approved by
the independent shareholders on 3rd December
2007 and amount of HK$196,000,000 was drawn
on 3rd December 2007.
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50 EXRAEANLRS (& 50.

R-FT\F+-A=+-8 RE
BERGEERTHRAEEEREAR
183,750,000 7T °

HE-FF/\F+-A=+-AR-TT
tE+Z A= RILFE - MERLE
MR LR - HRTREEARR
URERAEBESZ RTEN - AEER
BRAXNEA

REEREBEAL ZBRENGEAEE

BEX-

MM ISR TEEEAEME (B
BEXNTFARREERETRAFHERZ

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, the outstanding
loan granted according to the loan agreement
amounted to HK$183,750,000.

For the year ended 31st December 2008 and
31st December 2007, Mr. Heung Wah Keung and
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany provided personal
guarantees to a bank to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. No fee was paid to them
by the Group.

Details of the balances with related parties
at the balance sheet date are set out in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Key management personnel

Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the Company’s

FE)WOT directors and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in note 15, is as follow:

—EENE —EELF

2008 2007

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

HehHMmEHER Salaries and other short-term benefits 7,473 6,742
RIS FT B Pension scheme contributions 68 60
AR 7 2 38 Share-based payment 2,267 5,229
9,808 12,031

— 167 —




CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Gy E £ R 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

B #t % Mt 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZ)\F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

51. IEM{]‘E/A\ﬁJﬁ% 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
TRV EERATEZEREFBEENEEY The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
KRARMBELRF - EERR ZINEMHER A which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
ZEREFERBBANRIIE - affected the results or assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

KARfEE BETR
Fits ROTRE/ M BrRE/
WEAR R EBRRYA  ER/RIER/ % B EHR EREELS EMER  TEEH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
BAL
%
Best Combo Limited Bl EBRAES Lk 100 REEIZET  RERR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 2B Investment holding

1 share of US$1

Best Mind BaiAY RERNAE Lk 100 100REE REREBREEER
International Inc. Incorporated ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1En kiR WERE 2 ¥ 7%
(Hi#b) 100 share of  Investing in operations
(Note b) US$1 which receive profit

streams from the
gaming promotion
business

Business First Limited Bl RERNAE Lk 100 REEIET  HEARERE
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary M Holding of cable right
1 share of US$

China Star Entertainment s kL EBRAHE LBk 100 200&REREE  KERR
(BVI) Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1Zm2BRB  Investment holding
200 shares of
US$1 each

HEI2IRER Bal7a 0 TER 100 JREREE  REER
AR Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary TBILZERER  Investment holding
China Star Entertainment 21,000,000/
Holding Company BREBIEL
LERZRERR
(Hiitb)
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
and 1,000,000
deferred
non-voting
shares of
HK$1 each
(Note b)
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5. TEMB A TS (£ 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
KARfEE BEITR
fifs BORA /M BRBRE/
WEAR LR EBRRY  ER/RIER/ % B EXEELS) dMER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
BAL
%
PEEERERITERAR ML 36 EER 100 100000 EF¥RESEEE
China Star HK Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary SREEIAT 7
Distribution Limited L@ Distribution of motion
100,000 pictures and television
ordinary shares drama series

of HK$1 each

MEEEEREERAR ML B TER 100 10000008  HERERTR
China Star HK Entertainment Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BREBIET REER
Company Limited LEK  Distribution of video
1,000,000 rights and
ordinary shares investment holding

of HK$1 each

China Star International Bl EERAHE Lk 100 8001k  EYREREER
Distribution Limited Incorporated ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary BREEIZT £l
(Hiita) ZM&{3  Distribution of motion
(Note a) 8,001 shares of pictures and
US$1 each television drama
series
EERESFRERAR ML 36 EER 100 15,0000  RAEERBER
China Star Laser Disc Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HREE REER
Company Limited 10087 L@K  Provision of
15,000 ordinary management
shares of services and

HK$100 each investment holding
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5. TEME D TEE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
KARfEE BEITR
fifs BORA /M BRBRE/
WEAR LR EBRRY  ER/RIER/ % B EXEELS) dMER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
BAL
%
FHEYERRAR Bl Eh LER 100 k. HABYME
China Star Pictures Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary GREEIET  Holding of film
Limited Liak rights
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
MEERERBERAT ML Bk gl 100 oM REVEERIERY
China Star Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary SREENET  Provision of post-
Services Limited il production services
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
hEEBRARAT Ediam RBRUAE LRk 100 REEIET  BEEERGRE
China Star Trademark Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 2|3 Holding of trademark
Limited 1 share of and copyrights
US$1
China Star Worldwide A (G TER 100 W00RER  BYREREEH
Distribution B.V. Incorporated ~ Netherlands Ordinary AEI00HER #17
(Hiita) &R Distribution of motion
(Note a) 400 ordinary pictures and
shares of television drama
Dutch Guilders series
100 each
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5. TEME D TEE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
KARfEE BEITR
Fifs BTRE /2R BRRE/
WEAR LR ERERES  HB/AIER/ Y gVl EXEELS) dMER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
B
%
Exceptional Gain B3l EBRAES LBk 100 1REE  RERR
Profits Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1ETZRA Investment holding
1 share of
US$1
Kingsway Hotel Rauan RF EEk 50 250,000  WEFIREEERSE
Limited Incorporated ~ Macau Ordinary HE1ERE ROERE
2% Provision of hotel
(Hzbsa) 250,000 services in Macau and
(note b&ad) ordinary shares property investment

of MOP 1 each

Z& (B%) RAA Balilav B Lk 100 deER  HENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary EETET  Property holding
L EBR
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
—BEEYARRA Bl B LiEk 100 3,000,000k @ EEFEE
One Hundred Years of Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary SHEAENET  Film production
Film Company Limited L EBR
3,000,000

ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

BEREERAT B3l BB LBk 100 JREREE  BEEY
S & W Entertainment Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BT LBk SREER
Limited 2 ordinary  Production of motion
shares of pictures and television
HK$1 each drama series

Het - Notes:

(a) ERRICEER - (a) Operating internationally.

(b) ERFICEET - (b) Operating in Macau.

(c) EREREERNERITEEFD>ZZR AR (c) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
BoBERZARDBRRAGzEE  HEZEX rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
EREGLEREZERN EBERRITTAIEZE or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to
FR DK ° participate in any distribution on winding up.

(d) RKHLIE B49% 1 EiE 2 —KHLR R E B & (d) One of the shareholder of KHL holding 49% voting
KEARBZREREEERE - At - KHL power in KHL has agreed to follow the voting and
WRAKRRARZWBRF - management decision of the Company. Therefore, KHL

is considered as a subsidiary of the Company.
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52.

5. TEMB A TS (£ 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Best Combo Limited * Best Mind International Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc.,
Inc. » China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited & China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited and China Star
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V.FA A2 7] Worldwide Distribution B.V. are directly held by the
EEEE MIABHEMWEBRRHHEARRMRE Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by
A - the Company.
MR BIEPEEN WBRARZTELEMI AT Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
7 o operation of the subsidiaries is Hong Kong.
FEWBARRFEAXNFPEMKENERE None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
Bl BEHES o outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
Igﬂﬁﬁﬁé NI EEME 52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
ASSOCIATE
TRV EERATEZEREHBLEEREEY The following table lists the associate of the Group
REBBE QT - which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group.
KRR
BRAIRE/ BRR
i/ EfER BrREx/
EEUNGEA ERARES  RIER/ 4 s8R HELH aftEs  TEEH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of associate structure formation shares held by the Group capital  Principal activities
Bt
%
Together Again Limited Bl EBRIES LAk 49.00 48,080/ RERRRREHEA
Incorporated ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary BREEIET  ERRE
23 Investment holding and
48,080 shares provision of artists

of US$1 each management services

—172—



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Gy E £ R 2 F

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #k

W} % #t ¥ B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZZ)N\F+-A=1—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2008

53. £E HEEE 53. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) RZZEENF+ZANB  ARGEEE (a) On 8th December 2008, the directors of the

HTIERRHEERBBARERRR

(i) BREARREE HEREERND
0.O5B T2 RBEBELAHEEND
72888,486,0800% % & ik 17 & T~ %
#1,064,486,0800% % & i {p « &
EENTCHBHERE—REAR
AT AREREIREERD &
RAR(EEAERBE-RBER
DRI ([RARE]D :

(i) RBESMEERERAA(—HR
HeResEMrIzBRAA
ERDREBEABERIMARA
RIEIZER EM) BT 2ASE AR
60,000,000/ 7T (5 AR EBH
#81912,000,000/%8 7T ) 2 AJ ] RR &=
BOEMNEITRREED &

iy ®HARAZFEERKRAXH
100,000,000# L (# B
2,000,000,000f% & % [ E0.05/%
TL 2 & 1) $8 51 Z=500,000,0007%8
7t (% /410,000,000,0008% & &
B0.05% L2 ik fn) °

RAERERRBENEBURBREZFE
FNARBAR_FTENFT_A=1HT|
BZBEK - ARBEER_ZTNF=A
“HER MEMNERITRREEER-F
FNE-A-TNABTURE-
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Company announced the following proposed
open offer and subscription of convertible notes:

(i) open offer of not less than 888,486,080
offer shares and not more than
1,064,486,080 offer shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.05 each per
offer share on the basis of 2 offer shares
for every 1 ordinary share of the Company
held on the record date, with bonus
shares on the basis of 3 bonus shares for
every 1 offer share taken up under the
open offer (the “Open Offer”);

(i) subscription of convertible notes (the
“GC Convertible Notes”) issued by Golife
Concept Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Cayman Island with
limited liability whose shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprises Market of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, in
the principal amount of HK$60,000,000 in
five tranches of HK$12,000,000 each; and

(iii) increase the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$100,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.05 each to HK$500,000,000 divided
into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05
each.

Details of the open offer and subscription of
the GC Convertible Notes were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 30th December 2008.
The Open Offer has been completed on 2nd
March 2009 and the GC Convertible Notes
has been subscribed on 29th January 2009
respectively.
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53. EREEHE(~Z 53. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)
(b) RIBTZAE_AZ+,B AQRAESE (b)  On 26th February 2009, the directors of the

EMARTERZ TFIEE ([RAZER])

(i) Ity & oF - G0l BT koK #
TR A 6 R—BERL (46K
1)

(if) feAREHE: (NVETHARRRAK
PERDETEFRKD0.99%E T
ZHREX UBRMBEETA
BFIR 7 2 T 18 # §1.007%8 7T
F0.0187T - BURAA R B BT
A5 R(DNEIE AR R B #ITRA
FTEEZERBHALRAZHA
ABBE &

(i)  BOFA: SREE1.008T2E
TFEAEREETTA OFAZ 0 37 4 A 1008%
FREE.01VE T ZFM »

AEAFBHANRARAR - ETNF=
AZ+BRRAEZEEK -
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Company announced the following changes
to the capital of the Company (the “Capital
Reorganisation”):

(i Share consolidation: every 20 issued and
unissued shares be consolidated into one
share (the “Consolidated Share”);

(i) Capital reduction: (i) the issued share
capital of the Company be reduced
by cancelling the paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.99 on each issued
Consolidated Share in the share capital
of the Company such that the nominal
value of all issued Consolidated Share
will be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01
each; and (ii) the credit arising from the
reduction of issued share capital of the
Company be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company; and

(iii) Share subdivision: each of the authorised
but unissued Consolidated Shares of
HK$1.00 each be subdivided into 100
new shares of HK$0.01 each

Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set
out in the Company’s circular dated 20th March
2009.
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53. KEREBSEE (& 53. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)
() RIZETAFZA+—B > AQFIEFPEH (¢)  On 11th March 2009, the Company entered into

ERE (ARAEZHEERERIAD
B HEBRMDREERAER E™) ;LB R
B B FPREERERERARAR
H £ % £200,000,0007 7T 7 &K & 5%
BE(EFRE]D BEXREZFHEH
RABEERER_ZZENF=A=1+HT

a loan agreement with China Star Investment,
a company which the directors of the Company
have beneficial interest and its shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, in
which China Star Investment agreed to grant an
unsecured loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000

BB o (the “Loan Facility”) to the Company. Details of
the Loan Facility were set out in the circular of
China Star Investment dated 30th March 2009.
54. #tE E\z]‘i%iﬁ% 54. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUBRER-_SZNENA -+ +EREESS The financial statements were approved and authorised
g R RETE - for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th April 2009.
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Gl

BE+-—A=+—-BLEE

For the year ended 31st December

=L LD — T+ CRERRF —TTRF —EENF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
FET FAET FH T FHET F T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
E Results
- Turnover 227,747 78,351 152,777 92,234 165,307
BEBIRTE R, (B51B)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 63,149 (101,856) 38,769 (20,889)  (303,152)
RIEE B, () Taxation credit/(charge) 2,441 (1,951) (1,918) (124) (268)
FREHEF,(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 65,590 (103,807) 36,851 (21,013)  (3083,420)
AT ALTEA : Attributable to:
KRR Z R Equity holders of the
#HBHA Company 90,604 (92,547) 36,880 (20,961)  (303,219)
DE R RE = Minority interests (25,014) (11,260) (29) (52) (201)
65,590 (103,807) 36,851 (21,013)  (3083,420)
[N Dividends 4,790 - - - -
R+=—BAR=+—H
As at 31st December
iU —TTtFE —TTREFE -TTREF —RITOF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
FE T FET FET FHT FT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EENREE Assets and liabilities
BESE Total assets 2,605,167 2,307,603 789,037 743,396 667,880
BEREN Total liabilities and
DE R RE S minority interests (1,186,456) (1,133,470) (94,210)  (145,840)  (155,241)
EE S Shareholders’ funds 1,418,711 1,174,133 694,827 597,556 512,639
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